
55
Branches

`1630 Cr.+
Disbursed

19170+
Customer

Se�ved

`980 Cr.+
AUM
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CORPORATE
OVERVIEW



MANAGING DIRECTOR 
& CEO's PERSPECTIVE

DEAR STAKEHOLDERS,

It is with great pleasure that I present to you our 

Annual Repo�t for the financial year 2024-25, a 

year marked by resilience, transfo�mation, and 

measured growth. In an evolving economic and 

global environment, we have continued to 

navigate challenges with cla�ity and purpose-

anchored by our values and d�iven by a shared 

commitment to excellence. 

Over the past year, we have made significant 

progress across our strategic p�io�ities. We 

strengthened our core operations, deepened our 

customer relationships, invested in innovation, 

and reinforced our commitment to sustainability 

and long-te�m value creation. Despite exte�nal 

headwinds, our team demonstrated agility and 

dete�mination, achieving a total revenue of 

₹13,375.37 lakh, marking a robust growth of 

21.02% over the previous yea�'s revenue of 

₹11,051.87 lakh.

We also took bold steps toward our future. From 

accelerating digital transfo�mation initiatives to 

enhancing operational efficiencies, our effo�ts 

have laid the groundwork for scalable and 

sustainable growth. Impo�tantly, we continued to 

invest in our people—recognizing that our 

success is fundamentally rooted in the talent, 

energy, and dedication of our teams.

BUSINESS AND PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE

Du�ing the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 

the Company achieved a total revenue of 

₹13,375.37 lakh, marking a robust growth of 

21.02% over the previous yea�'s revenue of 

₹11,051.87 lakh.

Despite a dynamic and challenging economic 

environment, the Company demonstrated strong 

operational resilience du�ing FY 2024–25. Profit 

Before Tax (PBT) stood at ₹617.38 lakh, and 

Profit After Tax (PAT) was ₹461.73 lakh. 

The Company's Assets Under Management 

(AUM) reached ₹98,014.05 lakh, comp�ising 

₹85,168.43 lakh in the Own Book, ₹12,483.44 lakh 

under Direct Assignment, and ₹362.18 lakh from 

Co-lending a�rangements. This represents a 

significant increase compared to the AUM of 

₹77,525.88 lakh as on March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

Du�ing the year, the unwave�ing suppo�t from our 

conso�tium of lenders played a pivotal role in 

sustaining our growth trajecto�y and operational 

resilience. Their continued confidence in our 

strategic direction enabled timely access to 

financial capital, ensu�ing liquidity and stability 

across all business ve�ticals. We remain deeply 

grateful for this pa�tnership, which not only 
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Despite a dynamic and challenging 

economic environment, the 

Company demonstrated strong 

operational resilience du�ing FY 

2024–25. Profit Before Tax (PBT) 

stood at ₹617.38 lakh, and Profit 

After Tax (PAT) was ₹461.73 lakh. 



reflects the strength of our fundamentals but 

also reinforces our shared commitment to long-

te�m value creation.

HUMAN CAPITAL

Our people remain the foundation of our success. 

This year, we continued to invest in building a 

future-ready workforce by foste�ing a culture of 

agility, inclusion, and continuous lea�ning. From 

enhancing digital capabilities to strengthening 

leadership pipelines, our HR initiatives were 

aligned with our strategic goals. This year 

marked a significant milestone in our jou�ney 

toward building a more inclusive and ownership-

d�iven culture with the successful implementation 

of our Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP). The 

ESOP reflects our belief that those who 

cont�ibute to the company's growth should also 

share in its success.

Through this initiative, we aim to attract and 

retain top talent, foster long-te�m commitment, 

and align employee interests with shareholder 

value. The plan has been thoughtfully designed 

to reward pe�fo�mance, encourage innovation, 

and instill a sense of ownership across all levels 

of the organization.

I am confident that the ESOP will not only 

enhance employee engagement but also se�ve 

as a catalyst for sustained value creation. We 

remain committed to nu�tu�ing a workplace 

where eve�y individual feels empowered to grow 

with the company.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In our pursuit of a digital future, we have 

unde�taken several progressive initiatives over 

the past year. Notable implementations include 

digital tools such as the E-Signing of Loan 

Agreements, electronic Know Your Customer 

(eKYC) processes, and the activity tracking 

platfo�m Roha Raahi. These innovations have 

significantly enhanced operational efficiency 

and improved customer convenience.

The Company has also made substantial st�ides 

in strengthening its network and cybersecu�ity 

infrast�ucture. Upgrades to the central firewall-

from model 30E to 100F-have been completed, 

and a new endpoint detection and response 

solution, COMODO Xcitium, has been deployed. 

Additionally, the cybersecu�ity framework has 

been fu�ther reinforced with the adoption of 

Check Point Email Secu�ity and JumpCloud 

Active Directo�y, facilitating streamlined single 

sign-on authentication.

RISK

In an increasingly complex and interconnected 

world, �isk management remains central to our 

strategic p�io�ities. This year, we navigated 

a landscape shaped by global economic 

unce�tainty, evolving regulato�y frameworks, 

and rapid technological change. Our proactive 

approach to identifying, assessing, and mitigating 

�isks-across credit, market, operational, and cyber 

domains-has strengthened our resilience and 

safeguarded stakeholder interests. We continue 

to invest in robust gove�nance st�uctures, data-

d�iven insights, and a culture of accountability to 

ensure we remain agile and future-ready.

WAY FORWARD

Looking ahead, our focus remains clear: to build a 

more resilient, innovative, and customer-cent�ic 

organization. We are ente�ing the next phase of 

our jou�ney with cautious optimism, a robust 

strategy, and a deep commitment to delive�ing 

long-te�m value for our shareholders, customers, 

employees, and communities.

I would like to extend my hea�tfelt appreciation to 

our esteemed Shareholders, Rese�ve Bank of 

India, National Housing Bank, Our Customers, 

Our esteemed Lending Banks & Institutions, 

Board of Directors and my dedicated and 

energetic Team for their t�ust and suppo�t. We 

are committed to delive�ing value, foste�ing 

growth and upholding the highest standards of 

Corporate Gove�nance. Together, we will forge 

ahead seizing oppo�tunities and creating a 

prosperous future for our shareholders, 

maintaining a strong relationship with indust�y 

regulators and business pa�tners and foste�ing a 

th�iving environment for our valued employees.

Regards, 

Sunil Kapoor
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COMPANY'S 
MISSION & VISION

MISSION 

To offer people financial solutions through 
fast se�vice, backed by simple processes 

and transparent and honest dealings
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VISION

To help people through timely 
financial Pa�tnerships, so that they can 

achieve the milestones of their life



COMPANY'S 
CULTURE & VALUES
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INTEGRITY
Doing what is �ight never goes out of style, and we are committed to 
maintain high standards of integ�ity. We take p�ide in being honest, ethical 
and fair, and consistently reiterate these values through our actions.

TEAM WORK
We believe the company's success depends highly on strong inter-
relationships between teams, and we foster a collaborative and mutually 
suppo�tive environment to promote such solida�ity. Eve�y team member is 
valued, encouraged to cont�ibute, and recognized for their effo�ts, and we 
work together to achieve greater success.

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE
We keep our Customers at the centre and build our processes and 
systems to create not just customer expe�ience, but Customer Delight. We 
go an extra mile to understand the custome�'s requirements and deliver 
se�vices that are beneficial and efficient. We st�ive to build strong and 
long-te�m associations with our customers.

INNOVATION
We believe that the only thing constant in life is Change, and it is 
impo�tant to stay pe�tinent with these changing times. Hence, we 
constantly revisit our processes and systems, and redefine our standards 
of excellence. We encourage new ideas and 'out-of-the-box' thinking to 
challenge conventional views, and to d�ive new and efficient practices.



CORPORATE 
INFORMATION
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LEADERSHIP TEAM 

Mr. Soumyendra Joarder
(Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. M�inal Aga�wal 
(Head– Operations & IT)

Mr. Va�un Khunteta 
(Head- Finance & Treasu�y)

Ms. Preeti Singh*
(Chief Compliance Officer)
*Appointed as Chief Compliance Officer 
w.e.f. 30th September, 2024  
Previous Chief Compliance Officer 
Ms. Arpita Bane�jee resigned 
w.e.f. 22nd August, 2024

COMMUNICATION ADDRESS

A-45, 2nd Floor, Civtech Building, 
Sector- 04, Noida- 201301
Uttar Pradesh, India
T: +91 120 6877600

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Mr. Akash A & Associates
284, Jai Dev Park, East Punjabi Bagh, 
New Delhi-110026

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

KFin Technologies P�ivate Limited
“Selenium Tower-B”, Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachibowli, 
Financial Dist�ict, Nanakramguda, Se�ilingampally, 
Hyderabad-500032, Telangana
Ph. : +91 40 6716 2222, 3321 1000 
Email id: unlse�vices@kfintech.com

NBFC'S/HFC'S

MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
TATA CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICE LIMITED
LIC HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
SUNDARAM HOME FINANCE LIMITED
BAJAJ FINANCE LIMITED
POONAWALLA FINCORP LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala
Chai�man & Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sunil Kapoor
Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i
Non-Executive Director

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pankaj Rawat  
(Company Secreta�y & Compliance Officer)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited
CIN: U65999MH2017PTC293277
JJT HOUSE 44/45, Road No 2
MIDC Mumbai, MH- 400093
T: +91 22 4933 1111
F: +91 22 2830 2531 / 32
Website: www.rohahousing.com
E-mail: customerse�vice@rohahousing.com
            suppo�t@rohahousing.com

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Sh�idhar & Associates
101, Vaibhav Chambers, 
Madhusudan Kelkar Marg, 
Behind Gu�unanak Hospital, 
BKC, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

NATIONAL HOUSING BANK
THE FEDERAL BANK LIMITED
CSB BANK LTD
BANDHAN BANK LIMITED
DCB BANK LIMITED
SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED
HDFC BANK LIMITED
STATE BANK OF INDIA
IDFC FIRST BANK LIMITED
INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK
UTKARSH SMALL FINANCE BANK
KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK LIMITED
KARUR VYSYA BANK LIMITED
BANK OF BARODA 



BRIEF PROFILE OF  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Mahesh Tibrewala se�ves as the Managing Director of ROHA Dyechem. He 

holds a Bachelo�'s degree in Business Administration, with concentrations in 

Marketing and Finance, from the Indian Institute of Planning and Management. 

Additionally, he has pursued business studies at the esteemed Wha�ton School. 

With over 17 years of expe�ience, he has adeptly managed va�ious enterp�ises 

within the ROHA group.

Mr. Tibrewala commenced his jou�ney with ROHA Dyechem as an inte�n in 2008 

and swiftly ascended to spearhead the company's strategic expansions 

worldwide. He facilitated the establishment of offices in diverse nations such as 

Turkey, Thailand, Egypt, Af�ica, Australia, Dubai, Japan, Colombia, and 

Argentina, catalyzing the company's growth both organically and through 

acquisitions.

Under his stewardship, the ROHA group diversified its po�tfolio beyond food 

ingredients, ventu�ing into the housing finance sector in 2017, acqui�ing licensure 

from the National Housing Bank (NHB) in the same year. Fu�the�more, he is the 

founder of Roha Asset Managers and holds directo�ial positions in several other 

enterp�ises. 

Mr. Mahesh 
Ramakant Tibrewala
Chai�man & Non-
Executive Director

Mr. Sunil Kapoor, aged 57 years, is the Managing Director & CEO of Roha Housing 

Finance P�ivate Limited (RHFPL). He has been at the helm of the company's 

affairs since its inception in July'2017. Du�ing the last 7 years he has grown the 

organization to an AUM of Rs. 980.14 crores, set up the dist�ibution in more than 

55 cities in 8 states se�ving more than 13000 customers, building a team of more 

than 770 employees. He was inst�umental in successfully obtaining the Housing 

Finance License from NHB, setting up banking lines with biggest bank/NBFC's in 

the indust�y like SBI, HDFC, IDFC, LIC, Bajaj Finance, Bandhan Bank, Bank of 

Baroda, CSB Bank, DCB Bank, Federal Bank, Ka�ur Vysya Bank, Kotak Mahindra 

Bank, Utkarsh Bank and TATA Capital to name a few.

Mr. Kapoor is a professionally qualified Cha�tered Accountant (May'1991) and 

Cost Accountant (Decembe�' 1990) and in the past spearheaded global giants 

like Ame�ican Inte�national Group (AIG), Citigroup, GE Money, Ame�ican Express 

(AMEX), and Cap�i Global Capital Limited, Siemens, Bha�ti AXA Life Insurance, 

and Godfrey Phillip. He b�ings more than 31 years of expe�ience in diverse 

functions like sales & dist�ibution, channel management, operations, �isk and 

credit (unde�w�iting), collections, and finance in all kinds of retail asset products 

including loans, cards, finance, mo�tgages, and insurance.

P�ior to his association with RHFPL, Mr. Kapoor headed Cap�i Global Capital Ltd., 

a listed NBFC, in the capacity of Executive Director.

In this swiftly changing scena�io of the housing finance indust�y, Mr. Kapoo�'s 

unparalleled vision, decisiveness, inclusivity, adaptability, and ability to engage 

stakeholders, asce�tain a glo�ious future for the company and its stakeholders.

Mr. Sunil Kapoor
Managing Director 
& CEO
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BRIEF PROFILE OF  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

With tenure of 18 years as CFO of the P�ince group, Mr. Shast�i has an 

unmatchable edge in Financial Planning & Analysis, Fund Management, 

Budgeting, Treasu�y Management, Compliances, Corporate Rest�uctu�ing, 

Amalgamation and Acquisitions along with foreign pa�ty collaboration. He has 

been with the Roha Group for more than 9 years, handling the financial activities 

of the Flagship Company and its va�ious global subsidia�ies. He sets the bar high 

with his competence, demanding each and eve�yone to up their game.

With more than 29 years of �ich work expe�ience in the field of Accounts and 

Finance, Mr. Jyotin Shast�i is a professionally qualified Cha�tered Accountant 

and MBA Finance from NMIMS Mumbai.

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i
Non-Executive 
Director
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COMMITTEES
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i
Chai�man

Mr. Mahesh R Tibrewala 
Member

Mr. Sunil Kapoor
Member

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i
Chairperson

Mr. Sunil Kapoor   
Member   

Mr. Soumyendra Joarder
Member   

Mr. Va�un Khunteta
Member   

Mr. M�inal Aga�wal 
Member   

Mr. Rupesh Kumar 
Member   

WORKING COMMITTEE

Mr. Sunil Kapoor 
Chairperson
 
Mr. Jyotin Shast�i    
Member

Mr. Va�un Khunteta
Member

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i
Chai�man

Mr. Mahesh R Tibrewala 
Member

Mr. Sunil Kapoor
Member

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Sunil Kapoor  
Chairperson
    
Mr. Soumyendra Joarder
Member

Mr. Va�un Khunteta
Member

Mr. M�inal Aga�wal
Member

ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

Mr. Sunil Kapoor  
Chairperson
    
Mr. Soumyendra Joarder
Member

Mr. Va�un Khunteta
Member

Mr. M�inal Aga�wal
Member



KEY HIGHLIGHTS  
FY 2024-25 
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ASSETS UNDER 
MANAGEMENT 

(AUM)- 980.14 Crores

DISBURSEMENT - 
315.86 Crores

BRANCHES- 55

EMPLOYEES-770 

GROSS NON PERFORMING 
ASSET- 0.91%

NET NON-PERFORMING 
ASSET- 0.68%

CAPITAL 
ADEQUACY 

RATIO-  47.00%



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

ROHA HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

13

JOURNEY OF
ROHA HOUSING FINANCE

2017-18
Received Licence 
from National 
Housing Bank                                           
Disbursed First 
Loan to customer

Incorporated in March 2017

2018-19
Launched 
operation in five 
States 
Achieved 100 crore 
AUM milestone

2019-20                                                                            
Raised first debt 
funding from Bank                                                                      
Received Credit 
Rating of CARE A-
(CE) Stable 

2020-21
Received funding from 
National Housing Bank
Achieved disbursement 
of Rs. 250+ Crores 
Enhancement in Credit 
Rating to CRISIL A 
(CE)/Stable Achieve 
Operational Profitability. 
The standalone credit 
rating from CRISIL du�ing 
the financial year was 
BBB Stable.      

2021-22
Launched operations in 
Rajasthan State. Raised 

more than 150 crores 
through Bo�rowings.

Completed 5 years of 
operations 

2022-23                                                             
Expanded 

Geographical 
dist�ibution, Operated 

from more than 47 
branches in 7 States, 

Covered    
�ural belts extensively 
in MP and Rajasthan, 

Introduced co-lending 
model. Achieved a one 

notch 
improvement in Credit 

Rating of the 
Company. The                        

rating upgraded to 
ICRA “BBB+” in the 

FY2022-23. 

2023-24                                                             
Expansion was the

key in 2023-24
The Company 
expanded the

dist�ibution channels,
branches and

resources to meet the
organization's

objective. More
than 75 branches 

operational with
multiple dist�ibution

channels like DSA and
Co-Lenders. 

Credit rating upgraded 
from BBB+ to A-. 

2024-25                                                             
This year 

sta�ted with se�ving
more than 10000

families. Along with
expansion of 
footp�ints in

Rajasthan, the 
company focused to 

satisfy
the existing customers

with se�vices.
This was the year

where the company 
worked for

quality of acquisition
and quantity of

retention parallelly. 
Achieved va�ious

automations like Roha 
Raahi, Roha

assistance to provide
effective TAT, rational
sanction decision and

efficient employee's
productivity.



Net Worth (` Crore)

OUR FINANCIAL  
PERFORMANCE

Outstanding AUM (` Crore)  

Gross and Net NPAs (` Crore)

Net NPA (` Crore)Gross NPA (` Crore)

Income  (` Crore)

Disbursement (` Crore)Pro�t After Tax  (` Crore)
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PRESENCE ACROSS INDIA 
OUR FOOTPRINTS
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DELHI/NCR

PUNJAB

HARYANA

RAJASTHAN

GUJARAT

MADHYA PRADESH

MAHARASTRA

CHHATTISGARH

2



OUR 
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PRODUCTS OFFERED

Home Loan for Purchase of ready /under-const�uction residential 

units

Loans for const�uction /extension / renovation of homes

Loans for plot purchase and const�uction

INCOME SEGMENT

Lower Income Group (LIG)- <INR 2,00,000 to 6,00,000 per annum 

Middle Income Group (MIG)- <INR 6,00,000 to 18,00,000 per annum

TICKET SIZE AND TENOR

From Rs. 1 lakh to Rs. 1 Crore for up to 25 years

Average ticket size of Rs. 9 lakhs with an average tenor of 220 

months

SECURITY

Loan amount up to 30 lakhs, Max LTV: 90%, More than 30 lakhs till 

75 lakhs, LTV 80%, more than 75 lakhs up to 1 crore, LTV 75%

Average Loan to value ~ 56%

PRODUCTS OFFERED

Business loan against Residential /Commercial Prope�ties, Purchase 

of commercial prope�ties.

INCOME SEGMENT

Lower Income Group (LIG)- <INR 2,00,000 to 6,00,000 per annum 

Middle Income Group (MIG)- <INR 6,00,000 to 18,00,000 per annum

TICKET SIZE AND TENOR

From Rs. 1 lakh to Rs.1 Crore for up to 15 years

Average ticket size of Rs. 9 lakhs with average tenor of 155 months

SECURITY

Loan to Value of 75%

Average Loan to value ~ 52%

HOUSING 
FINANCE

NON-HOUSING 
FINANCE
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STATUTORY
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BOARD'S REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Eighth Annual Repo�t of Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited 

(RHFPL), together with the Company's audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025.

1. BACKGROUND

Your Company, RHFPL, is registered with the National Housing Bank ('NHB') as a non-deposit taking 

Housing Finance Company and the Company is classified as Middle Layer as per Master Direction - 

Rese�ve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 

('RBI SBR Master Directions') as updated from time to time.

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

stThe Company's financial pe�fo�mance for the financial year ended 31  March, 2025 as compared to the 
stprevious financial year ended 31  March, 2024 is summa�ized below:

Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited (“Company” or “RHFPL”), is a Company incorporated in the year 

2017 and registered with the National Housing Bank (“NHB”) to ca��y on housing finance activities. The 

Company offers a range of housing loans and loans against prope�ty to va�ious segments of society 

such as sala�ied individuals, self-employed individuals and professionals etc. Your Company obtained 

the registration ce�tificate from NHB on December 12, 2017, and commenced its lending operations in 

March 2018.

Du�ing the year ended March 31, 2025, total revenue stood at INR 13,375.37 lakh as compared to Rs. 

11,051.87 lakh du�ing the previous year, registe�ing a growth of 21.02 %. Profit after tax stood at Rs. 

461.73 Lakh du�ing F.Y. 2024-25 as compared to the Profit after tax of Rs. 513.23 lakh in the 

immediately preceding year. Profits before tax stood at Rs. 617.38 lakh as compared to previous year 

being Rs. 702.00 Lakh. Assets Under Management stood at Rs. 98,014.05 Lakh (Own book – Rs. 

85,168.43 Lakh, Direct Assignments – Rs.12,483.44 Lakh, Co-lending – Rs.362.18 Lakh) whereas Rs. 

77,525.88 Lakh in the previous year.

Pa�ticulars
Cu�rent Year   
2024-2025
(INR in lakh)

Previous Year
2023-2024
(INR in lakh)

Total Revenue 13,375.37 11,051.87

Total Expenditure 12,757.99 10,349.87

Profit Before Tax 617.38 702.00

Less: Cu�rent Tax
Defe�red Tax
Adjustment for Previous years 

200.76
(43.74)

(1.37)

210.18
(21.41)

-

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 461.73 513.23

Ea�nings per share (of Rs.10/- each)

Basic & Diluted 0.27 0.31
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3. DIVIDEND

Your directors do not recommend any dividend on equity shares of the company for the financial year 

ending March 31, 2025, to conse�ve resources.

4. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) and section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, ('the 

Act') your Directors confi�m that:

sta) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31  March, 2025, the 

applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

mate�ial depa�tures, if any;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and p�udent so as to give a t�ue and fair view of the 
ststate of affairs of the Company as at 31  March, 2025 and of the Profit of the Company for year 

ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets 

of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other i�regula�ities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going conce�n basis;

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

f) the Directors have laid down inte�nal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such inte�nal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

5. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company's inte�nal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and 

conversation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial repo�ting and compliance with laws 

and regulations. 

With a view to ensure and review the effectiveness and implementation of the systems and operations, 

the Audit Committee regularly reviews them. The Audit Committee is b�iefed about the co�rective 

actions taken by the management on the audit obse�vations.

The Audit scope is regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee for enhancement/modification of scope 

and coverage of specific areas. The Company has put in place adequate policies and procedures to 

ensure that the system of inte�nal financial control is commensurate with the size and nature of the 

Company's business. These systems provide reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial 

and operational info�mation, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the 

Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and 

ensu�ing compliance with Company's policies. 

On review of the inte�nal audit obse�vations and action taken on audit obse�vations, the Company can 

state that there are no adverse obse�vations having mate�ial impact on financials, commercial 

implications or mate�ial non-compliances which have not been acted upon.
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6. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND REPORT

The Company had appointed Sh�idhar & Associates in the Extraordina�y General Meeting of the 
thcompany held on 19  October, 2021 and fu�ther in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 

nd th 2 July 2022 to hold office of the Statuto�y Auditors up-to the conclusion of 7 Annual General Meeting 

of the Company. Fu�ther, they were re-appointed as the Statuto�y Auditors of the Company in the 
thAnnual General Meeting of the Company held on 27  May 2024 to hold office of the Statuto�y Auditors 

thup-to the conclusion of 10  Annual General Meeting of the Company.  They have audited the financial 

statements of the Company for the financial year under review.

The Auditors' Repo�t read with notes to the accounts are self-explanato�y and therefore do not require 

fu�ther comments/elaborations pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no 

qualifications made by the Statuto�y Auditors in their repo�t. Fu�ther, there were no fraud repo�ted by 

the Statuto�y Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

7. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as presc�ibed under the provisions of 

Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities ca��ied out by 

the Company.

8. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Section 186 (11) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') read with Rule 11(2) of the 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the loan made, guarantee given or secu�ity 

provided or any investment made in the ordina�y course of business by a Housing Finance Company 

registered with National Housing Bank (“NHB”) as required under Section 29A of the NHB Act, 1987, are 

exempt from the applicability of provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

Info�mation regarding investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the said Act is 

detailed in the financial statements.

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND POLICY

Your company has not entered into any related pa�ty transactions pursuant to Section 188(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) du�ing the year under review. There were no mate�ially significant 

related pa�ty transactions made by your Company with its promoters, directors, key manage�ial 

personnel or other designated persons, which might have any conflict with the interest of the 

Company. Your Board has approved and put in place a policy on related pa�ty transactions. In te�ms of 

provisions of Section 177 of the Act, all the related pa�ty transactions are required to be placed before 

the audit committee for its approval/ratification/rejection. Mandato�y fo�m AOC-2 is annexed as 

Annexure A to this repo�t.

None of the Directors had any pecunia�y relationships or transactions with the Company except as 

provided in the notes to the accounts.

Pursuant to the requirement of Rese�ve Bank of India Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial 

Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated Feb�ua�y 17, 2021 the 

policy on related pa�ty transactions is available on the Company's website, www.rohahousing.com and 

also attached herewith at Annexure – B to this Repo�t.



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

ROHA HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

21

10. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company is committed to adhe�ing to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of 

its business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company has implemented the Whistle 

Blower Policy (the Policy), to provide an avenue for employees to repo�t matters without the �isk of 

subsequent victimization, disc�imination or disadvantage.

The Policy applies to all employees working for the Company. Pursuant to the Policy, the whistle 

blowers can raise conce�ns relating to matters relating to fraud, b�ibe�y, co��uption, employee 

misconduct, illegality, misapprop�iation of Company's funds/ assets etc. A whistleblowing or repo�ting 

mechanism, as set out in the Policy, invites all employees to act responsibly to uphold the reputation of 

the Company.

The Policy aims to ensure that se�ious conce�ns are properly raised and addressed and are recognized 

as an enabling factor in administe�ing good gove�nance practices. There was no incident where access 

to the Audit Committee was denied to any employees with respect to Vigil Mechanism. The details of 

the Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the Company at www.rohahousing.com  

11. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 

COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There were no mate�ial changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

which occu�red between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this Repo�t.

12. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company du�ing the year under review.

13. PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOING

The Company does not ca��y out manufactu�ing activities. Therefore, the pa�ticulars of conse�vation of 

energy technology absorption and foreign exchange ea�nings and outgoing shall not be applicable to 

the company.

a) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

a. The steps taken or impact on conse�vation of energy:- NA

b. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alte�nate sources of energy:- NA

c. The capital investment on energy conse�vation equipment:- NIL

b) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

a. The effo�t made towards technology absorption-

 No specific activities have been done by the Company.

b. The benefits de�ived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 

impo�t substitution-

  No specific activity has been done by the Company
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c. In case of impo�ted technology (impo�ted du�ing the last three years reckoned from the         

beginning of the financial year: - NA

d. The expenditure incu�red on Research & Development. - NIL

 c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

  There are no Foreign Exchange ea�nings and outgoings were taken place du�ing the financial year 

as required by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

14. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the Section 92 (3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, the annual retu�n as on 
st31  March 2025 is available on the company's website on www.rohahousing.com under “Investors 

Tab”.

15. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Company does not have any subsidia�y, associates and joint venture company as on the date of 

this Repo�t. Accordingly, Fo�m AOC-1 is not attached to the financial statements.

16. SHARE CAPITAL

The capital st�ucture of the company du�ing the financial year under the repo�t stood as follows:
 

Du�ing the year under review, the Autho�ized Share Capital of the Company increased from Rs. 

172,50,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Seventy-Two Crore and Fifty Lac) divided in 17,25,00,000 

(Seventeen Crore Twenty Five Lac) equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 183,00,00,000/- (Rupees One 

Hundred Eighty-Three Crore) divided into 18,30,00,000 (Eighteen Crore Thi�ty Lac) equity shares of Rs. 
th10 each vide Extra Ordina�y General Meeting held on 13  November 2024 and the same was fu�ther 

increased from Rs. 183,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Eighty-Three Crore) divided into 

18,30,00,000 (Eighteen Crore Thi�ty Lac) equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 183,90,00,000/- (Rupees 

One Hundred Eighty-Three Crore Ninety Lac) divided in 18,39,00,000 (Eighteen Crore Thi�ty Nine Lac) 
thequity shares of Rs. 10 each vide Extra Ordina�y General Meeting held on 6  March 2025.

Du�ing the year under review, your company received capital infusion from existing shareholders by 

way of Right Issue offers with approval from the Board of Directors. 

Pursuant to the above-said Right Issue offers, your board approved the allotment of equity shares 

under the Rights Issue of the Company as per the details mentioned below:

Share Capital Amount in (Rs.)

Autho�ized Share Capital
(18,39,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

183,90,00,000 /-

Issued, Subsc�ibed and Paid-up Share Capital
(18,05,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

180,50,00,000 /-

S. No Date of Allotment Number of Equity Shares Allotted 
at Rs.10/- each

Total Paid up amount

1 June 28, 2024 17,50 ,000 (Seventeen  Lac  F i f ty 
Thousand) at Rs. 10/- each for cash at a 
premium of Rs. 30 Per equity shares 

Rs. 7,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Seven Crore Only)
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2 November 19, 2024 75,00,000 (Seventy-Five Lac) at Rs. 10/- 
each for cash at a premium of Rs. 30 Per 
equity shares

Rs. 30,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Thi�ty Crore Only)

3 December 27, 2024 25,00,000 (Twenty-Five Lac) at Rs. 10/- 
each for cash at a premium of Rs. 30 Per 
equity shares

Rs. 10,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Ten Crore Only)

Total 1,17,50,000 47,00,00,000

The Company cu�rently has no outstanding shares issued with differential �ights, sweat equity or ESOS.

stAll the equity shares of the Company are in demate�ialized fo�m as on 31  March 2025. 

17. TRANSFER OF SHARES

There was no share transfer du�ing the financial year under review.

18. DEPOSITORY 

As on 31st March 2025, the Company's total equity paid-up share capital comp�ising of 18,05,00,000 

Equity shares were held in demate�ialized mode.

19. APPOINTMENT/RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

As on 31st March 2025, the Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company comp�ised of 3 (Three) 

Directors including 2 (Two) Non-Executive Director and 1 (one) Executive Director. Detailed info�mation 

about the Board of Directors is provided in the Corporate Gove�nance Repo�t, which fo�ms pa�t of this 

repo�t. Du�ing the year under review, the appointment of Mr. Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala as Chai�man 

and Additional Non-Executive Director of the Company was regula�ized as a Non-Executive Director 
thand Chai�man of the Board of Directors of the Company vide the Annual General Meeting held on 27  

May 2024.

20. FIT & PROPER CRITERIA

All the Directors meet the fit and proper c�ite�ia stipulated under the Master Directions - Non-Banking 

Financial Company (NBFC's) – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021.

21. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

In te�ms of the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Act, read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Manage�ial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Mr. Sunil Kapoor, Managing Director & Chief 

Executive Officer (MD & CEO) and Mr. Pankaj Rawat, Company Secreta�y (CS), are the Key Manage�ial 

Personnel of the Company.

22. INCREASE IN BORROWING POWERS

Pursuant to section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'), the bo�rowing limits approved by 

the shareholders which may be exercised by the Board, presently stood at INR 1,000 Crore.

23. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors had 

approved and adopted the nomination & remuneration policy, inter alia, for the appointment and 

fixation of Remuneration of the Directors, Key Manage�ial Personnel and all other employees of your 

Company as applicable. The said Policy is attached herewith at Annexure – C to this Repo�t. The policy 

is also available on the website of the company at www.rohahousing.com.
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24. APPOINTMENT & STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

As per the Provision of Section 149(6) and read with 149(10) of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 

to the Company being p�ivate limited Company.

25. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Du�ing the year under review, your Company transfe�red INR 92.35 lakh to the Rese�ve Fund created as 

per the no�ms laid down under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987.

26. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company has in place Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, in compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 

2014, as amended, which, inter-alia, lay down the guidelines and mechanism for unde�taking socially 

useful projects for welfare and sustainable development of the community at large. The Board 

approved CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at 

https://rohahousing.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/RHFPL_CSR-Policy.pdf.

Your Company is not required to fo�mulate Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as per the 

provisions of Sec 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 as the amount to be spent on CSR is less than fifty 

lakh �upees. 

Du�ing the year under review, your Company was required to spent 2% of its average net profits 

(computed as per the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013) of the three immediately 

preceding years on CSR projects. Accordingly, the Company has transfe�red an amount of Rs. 

10,75,058/- in financial year 2024-25 to “JAGDISHPRASAD JHABARMAL TIBREWALA PARMARTH 

KOSH” a registered entity having registration number CSR00005320 to unde�take CSR activities. The 

Annual Repo�t on CSR activities in Annexure – G fo�ms pa�t of this Directors' repo�t.

27. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD

The Company, being a P�ivate Limited Company, was not required to ca��y fo�mal annual evaluation by 

the Board of its own pe�fo�mance and that of its committees and individual directors pursuant to 

Section 134 (3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Although, the Directors of the Company are vigilant towards their duties and responsibilities as Director 

of the Company.

28. DEPOSITS

The Company is a non-deposit accepting housing finance company. Du�ing the year the Company has 

not accepted any deposits, within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

29. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant mate�ial orders passed by the Regulators / Cou�ts/ T�ibunals impacting the 

going conce�n status of the Company and its future operations.

30. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Repo�t prepared as per requirements of Master Direction – Non-

Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 fo�ms pa�t of 

this repo�t as Annexure-D.
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31. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Being a P�ivate limited company, the pa�ticulars of the employees as required under Section 197 of 

Companies Act, 2013 read with �ule 5 (2) & �ule 5 (3) of Companies (appointment and remuneration) 

Rules 2014 are not applicable, du�ing the year under review.

32. VOTING RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES

Du�ing the year under review, the Company has not given loans to any employee for purchase of its own 

shares as per section 67 (3) (c) of Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the Company not required to make 

disclosure as per �ule 6 (4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

33. DISCLOSURES

 (i) Regarding the issue of employee stock options:

  Du�ing the year under review, the Company implemented the RHF Employee Stock Option Plan 

2025 (ESOP Plan) with approval of the Shareholders vide Extra Ordina�y General Meeting held on 
th6  March 2025.  Under the said ESOP Plan, an ESOP pool has been set aside for issuing stock 

options to employees subject to the te�ms of the ESOP Plan. However, du�ing the year under 

review, the Company has not granted any stock options to the employees. 

 (ii) Regarding the issue of sweat equity shares:

  The Company has not issued sweat equity shares pursuant to provisions of Section 54 read with 

Rule 8 of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014) du�ing the Financial Year.

34. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 

2013 and the �ules thereunder (POSH Act'), the Company has framed a policy on Prevention of Sexual 

Harassment at Workplace ('Policy').

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to constitution of inte�nal committee under the 

POSH Act. 

Du�ing the year under review, no cases had been repo�ted under the provisions and guidelines of this 

Policy.

35. BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Your Company is prompt in making the payment of interest and repayment of loans to the financial 

institutions / banks apa�t from payment of interest on working capital to the banks. Banks and Financial 

Institutions continue their unstinted suppo�t in all aspects and the Board records its appreciation for the 

same.

36. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Gove�nance Repo�t fo�ms pa�t of this repo�t as Annexure-E

37. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

th The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 6 March, 2025, appointed M/s Akash A & 

Associates, Practicing Company Secreta�ies, having its office at 284, Jai Dev Park, East Punjabi Bagh, 
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New Delhi-110026, (having Membership Number– ACS 45362 and Ce�tificate of Practice Number 

20828) as Secreta�ial Auditor, pursuant to section 204(1) of Companies Act, 2013. The Secreta�ial audit 

repo�t for FY 2024-25 is annexed to this repo�t as Annexure- F. There are no qualifications or adverse 

remarks in the Secreta�ial Audit Repo�t for the F.Y. 2024-25.

38. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Du�ing the year under review, Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of Secreta�ial 

Standards.

39. COMPLIANCES UNDER RBI GUIDELINES/CIRCULARS AND OTHERS

A. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

st  The Regulato�y Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of the Company was 47.00% as on 31  March 2025, 
stas against CAR of 46.03% as on 31  March, 2024 which is within the regulato�y requirement. 

B. NON-PERFORMING ASSETS AND PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCY

  Your Company adhered to the p�udential guidelines for Non-Pe�fo�ming Assets (NPAs), as 

required under the Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI) Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company 

– Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021, as amended from time to time. Your 

Company did not recognize income on such NPAs and fu�ther created provisions for 

contingencies on standard as well as non-pe�fo�ming housing loans and prope�ty loans, in 

accordance with the abovementioned master direction.

  The Company has also made additional provisions to meet unforeseen contingencies. The 

following table set fo�th Company's gross NPAs, net NPAs, cumulative provisions and w�ite- offs 

for the pe�iods indicated:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 C. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

  In line with our commitment to d�iving digital transfo�mation, your Company has implemented 

several fo�ward-looking initiatives this year. Key digital tools such as E-Signing of Loan 

Agreement, eKYC and activity tracker 'Roha Raahi' have been initiated. These platfo�ms have 

enhanced process efficiency and customer convenience. Significant advancements were also 

made in network and cyber secu�ity. The central firewall was upgraded from 30E to 100F, and a 

new endpoint detection and response solution, COMODO Xcitium, was introduced. 

  Your Company has fu�ther strengthened its cybersecu�ity framework with Check Point email 

secu�ity and JumpCloud Active Directo�y for seamless single sign-on access.

Pa�ticulars
As at March 31

2025 2024

Gross Non-Pe�fo�ming Assets 776.43 387.57

% of Gross NPA to Total Loan Po�tfolio 0.91% 0.55%

Net Non-Pe�fo�ming Assets 574.62 284.21

% of Net NPA to Total Loan Po�tfolio 0.68% 0.41%

Cumulative provision- loans 512.06 379.15

W�ite-off 8.97 21.25
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 D. INSURANCE

  Your Company also has in place a Mediclaim policy for its employees and their dependent family 

members, group te�m life and group personal accident policies, which provide benefits to all the 

employees.

  Fu�ther, your Company has obtained money policy to cover “money in safe and till counter and 

money in transit” for the Company's branches and va�ious offices.

 E. ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT POLICY

  We manage liquidity �isk in accordance with our Asset Liability Management Policy. This policy is 

framed as per the cu�rent regulato�y guidelines and is approved by the Board of Directors. The 

Asset Liability Management Policy is reviewed pe�iodically to incorporate changes as required by 

regulato�y stipulation or to realign the policy with changes in the economic landscape. The Asset 

Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Company fo�mulates and reviews strategies and provides 

guidance for management of liquidity �isk within the framework laid out in the Asset Liability 

Management Policy.

 F. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT & IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

POLICY

  We ensure effective monito�ing of credit facilities through a �isk-based asset review framework 

under which the frequency of asset review is higher for cases with higher outstanding balances. 

The Credit Monito�ing team ve�ifies adherence to the te�ms of the credit approval p�ior to the 

commitment and disbursement of credit facilities. The Credit Monito�ing team/Operations team 

monitors compliance with the te�ms and conditions for credit facilities p�ior to disbursement. It 

also reviews the completeness of documentation, creation of secu�ity and insurance policies for 

assets financed.

  Inte�nal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) has been adopted to identify, assess, and 

manage all �isks that could potentially have a significant negative impact on our business, financial 

position, or capital adequacy. Risk Management Committee, Asset Liability Management 

Committee, IT Stee�ing Committee and Audit Committee have been set-up which meets up 

regularly to ensure monito�ing of �isks and provide Gove�nance as applicable.

 G. TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT

  Du�ing the year under review, the Company has conducted functional training for on-roll 

employees. The training was impa�ted on va�ious aspects including Risk Management, KYC and 

Anti- Money Launde�ing. A total of 859 employees were trained/ assessed in the training 

conducted du�ing the year ended March 31, 2025.
 
  Apa�t from the in-house training, employees were also nominated for va�ious training organized by 

NHB.

 H. REGISTRATION AND COMPLIANCES

  In pursuant to compliance of NHB/RBI provision and directions, your Company has registered on 

the below mentioned po�tals and has complied with their respective provisions.
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  Details of Registration on the NHB Presc�ibed Po�tals:

  Fu�ther, pursuant to regulato�y requirements company has registered with the below mentioned 

Credit Info�mation Companies:

  Details of Registration under Credit Info�mation Companies:

  Your Company is duly registered with CERSAI and has submitted va�ious required info�mation and 

uploading of charge creation details for mo�tgage loans on a timely basis.

 I. TOTAL NUMBER OF CLAIMED, UNCLAIMED AND UNPAID PUBLIC DEPOSIT DISCLOSURE 

UNDER MASTER DIRECTION FOR NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY – HOUSING FINANCE 

COMPANY (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2021

  The Company is not eligible to accept Public Deposit and therefore the Company is not required            

to make the above disclosure.

 J. CREDIT RATING

  Your Company has been rated Rs 1000 crores as on December 03, 2024 by Care Ratings Ltd, 

which has provided the ratings for the outstanding debt inst�uments/ facilities of the company, 

and the rating actions by CARE on the ratings as on date is as mentioned below:

 K. CODES AND STANDARDS

  The Company adheres to the Fair Practices Code (FPC) recommended by the regulator, Rese�ve 

Bank of India (RBI), to promote good and fair practices by setting minimum standards in dealing 

with customers. The Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI) has also issued comprehensive Know Your 

Customer (KYC) Guidelines and Anti Money Launde�ing Standards in the context of 

recommendations made by the Financial Action Task Force on Anti Money Launde�ing Standards.
 

Sr. No. Name of the Po�tals User ID allotted

1 FINnet Po�tal of Financial Intelligence Unit-India FIHFC00134

2 CERSAI po�tal of Central Regist�y of Secu�itization Asset 
Reconst�uction and Secu�ity Interest of India -

F0282

3 Centralised Repo�ting and Management Info�mation System 
(CRAMIS) Po�tal of National Housing Bank

OLRO3R

4 G�ievance Registration & Info�mation Database System 
(GRIDS) po�tal of National Housing Bank Use�name

12.0165.17

Sr. No. Name of the Po�tals User ID allotted

1 TransUnion (CIBIL) HF6408

2 Equifax Credit Info�mation Se�vices P�ivate Limited 027FM00523

3 Expe�ian Credit Info�mation Company of India P�ivate Limited cinp4696rhfp

4 CRIF High Mark Credit Info�mation Se�vices Limited 5172451

Rating Agency Inst�uments Rating assigned

CARE Ratings Ltd Long Te�m Facilities CARE A-, Stable
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 L. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH 

THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

  There is no application made or any pending proceeding under the Insolvency and Bank�uptcy 

Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) du�ing the financial year.

 M. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF 

ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS 

OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

  This clause is not applicable to the Company. 

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors take this oppo�tunity to express their appreciation for the suppo�t and co-operation 

extended by our va�ious pa�tners and other business associates. Your Company has been able to 

operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, creativity, integ�ity and continuous 

improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization of all its resources for sustainable and 

profitable growth.

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the cont�ibutions made and committed 

se�vices rendered by the employees of the Company at va�ious levels. Your directors also wish to 

express their gratitude for the continuous assistance and suppo�t received from the investors, clients, 

bankers, lenders, regulato�y and gove�nment autho�ities, du�ing the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited 

Place : Mumbai
Date : Ap�il 30, 2025                 

           Sd/- Sd/- 
      Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala Sunil Kapoor
       Chai�man & Director                         Managing Director & CEO
                                              DIN: 01342061  DIN: 01436404 
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ANNEXURE-A

FORM NO. AOC.2
Fo�m for disclosure of pa�ticulars of contracts/a�rangements entered into by the company with related 

pa�ties refe�red to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including ce�tain a�m's 

length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or a�rangements or transactions not at a�m's length basis: NIL

(a) Name(s) of the related pa�ty and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/a�rangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts/a�rangements/transactions

(d) Salient te�ms of the contracts or a�rangements or transactions including the value, i f any

(e) Justification for ente�ing into such contracts or a�rangements or transactions

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso 

to section 188

2. Details of mate�ial contracts or a�rangements or transactions at a�m's length basis: 

(a) Name(s) of the related pa�ty and nature of relationship: N.A

(b) Nature of contracts/a�rangements/transactions: N.A 

(c) Duration of the contracts/a�rangements/transactions: N.A

(d) Salient te�ms of the contracts or a�rangements or transactions including the value, if any: N.A

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: N.A

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

For Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited

 Sd/- Sd/- 
 Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala Sunil Kapoor
  Chai�man & Director                         Managing Director & CEO
 DIN: 01342061  DIN: 01436404 
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ANNEXURE-B

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY
1.  Introduction

Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited (the company) recognizes that Related Pa�ty Transactions can 

present potential or actual conflicts of interest and may raise questions about whether such 

transactions are consistent with the Company and its shareholders' best interests and in compliance to 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Master Circular- Housing Finance Companies – Corporate 

Gove�nance (NHB) Directions, 2016 dated July 1,  2019 and other laws and regulations as applicable to 

the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of Audit Committee has adopted the 

following policy and procedures with regard to the mate�iality of Related Pa�ty Transactions and also on 

dealing with them as defined below. The Audit Committee will review and may amend this policy from 

time to time subject to the approval of the Board.

The objective of this policy is to regulate transactions between the Company and its Related Pa�ties 

based on the Companies Act 2013, NHB directions and other laws and regulations applicable to the 

Company.

 2.  Definitions 

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time.  

“A�m's length transaction” means a transaction between two related pa�ties that is conducted as if 

they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest

“Audit Committee” means the Committee of the Board fo�med under section 177 of the Act.

“Company” means Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited

“Board” shall mean the board of directors of the Company

“Directo�” means a person as defined in Section 2(34) of the Companies Act, 2013

“Employees” shall mean the employees and office-bearers of the Company, including but not limited to 

Directors 

“Key Manage�ial Personnel” shall mean the officers/employees of the Company as defined in Section 

2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 

“Mate�ial Transaction” transaction with a related pa�ty is considered mate�ial if the transaction / 

transactions to be entered into, either individually or taken together with previous transactions with 

such related pa�ty du�ing a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated tu�nover of 

the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the company

“Ordina�y course of business” means the usual transactions, customs and practices unde�taken by 

the Company to conduct its business operations and activities and includes all such activities which the 

company can unde�take as per Memorandum & A�ticles of Association as may be amended from time 

to time. The Board and Audit Committee may lay down p�inciples for dete�mining ordina�y course of 

business in accordance with statuto�y requirements and other indust�y practices and guidelines.
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“Related Pa�ty” means an individual, entity, fi�m, body corporate or person as defined in Section 2(76) 

of the Act. 

“Related pa�ty transaction” shall mean transaction of any nature between the company and any 

Related Pa�ty which include but not limited to  

(a)  Transfer of resources, se�vices or obligations between a company and a related pa�ty, regardless 

of whether a p�ice is charged

(b)  Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or mate�ials; 

(c)  Selling or othe�wise disposing of, or buying, prope�ty of any kind; 

(d)  Leasing of prope�ty of any kind;
 
(e)  Availing or rende�ing of any se�vices; 

(f)  Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, mate�ials, se�vices or prope�ty; 

(g)  Appointment to any office or place of profit in the company 

(h)  Unde�w�iting the subsc�iption of any secu�ities or de�ivatives thereof

A transaction shall be const�ued to include a single transaction or a group of transactions in a contract. 

“Relative” with reference to a Director or KMP means the person as defined in Section 2(77) of the Act 

and �ules presc�ibed thereunder. 

Any other capital/ p�incipal te�m not defined herein shall have the same meaning as defined in the 

Companies Act, 2013.

3.  Applicability 
 
This Policy shall be applicable to all Related Pa�ty Transactions entered into on or after June 27, 2020. 

The Audit Committee of the Company shall review all existing related pa�ty transactions as a matter of 

good gove�nance and agree on co�rective steps, if required, to ensure that the transactions entered are 

in the ordina�y course of business and are on an a�m's length.   

4.  Identification of Related Pa�ty Transactions: 

4.1.  All Related Pa�ty Transactions must be brought to the notice of the Audit Committee of the 

Company. 

4.2.  Any employee of the Company who is aware of any transaction that is or may be perceived to be a 

Related Pa�ty Transaction is required to b�ing the same to the attention of the Audit Committee of 

the Company through Company Secreta�y. 

4.3.  All Directors and Key Manage�ial Personnel (KMPs) are responsible for info�ming the Company of 

their interest (including interest of their Relatives) in other companies, fi�ms or conce�ns at the 

beginning of eve�y financial year and any change in such interest du�ing the year. 
 
4.4. All Directors, Members of the Management Committee and KMPs (hereinafter refe�red as 

conce�ned persons) are responsible for providing notice to the Audit Committee either directly or 

through Company Secreta�y of any potential Related Pa�ty Transaction involving him/her as 

Director, Member or othe�wise or his or her relative.  
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4.5.  All the conce�ned persons shall fu�nish all such additional info�mation or documents as may be 

called by audit committee pe�taining to pa�ticular transaction.  

4.6.  The audit committee shall record the disclosure of interest and accordingly dete�mine whether 

the transaction is in the ordina�y course of business and on an a�m's length basis. 

4.7.  Such notice of any potential Related Pa�ty Transaction should be given well in advance so that the 

Company Secreta�y has adequate time to obtain and review info�mation about the proposed 

transaction and to refer it to the Audit Committee.

5.  Review and Approval Process 

5.1. Approval by Audit Committee: 

(i) All related pa�ty transactions shall be entered into after p�ior approval of Audit Committee. The 

Audit Committee shall consider all relevant factors while deliberating the Related Pa�ty 

Transactions for its approval.

(ii) Any member of the audit committee who has any interest in any Related Pa�ty Transaction will 

recuse themselves and abstain from discussion and voting on the approval of the Related Pa�ty 

Transaction.

(iii) The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Pa�ty Transactions proposed to be 

entered into by the company subject to the following conditions: 

a. The Audit Committee shall lay down the c�ite�ia for granting the omnibus approval in line with 

this policy on Related Pa�ty Transactions of the company 

b. Approval shall be applicable in respect of transactions which are repetitive in nature. 

c. The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus approval and that such 

approval is in the interest of the company

d. Omnibus approval shall specify:  

(i)  The name/s of the related pa�ty, nature of transaction, pe�iod of transaction, maximum 

amount of transaction that can be entered into. 

(ii)  The indicative base p�ice / cu�rent contracted p�ice and the fo�mula for va�iation in the 

p�ice if any and 

(iii)  Such other conditions as the Audit Committee may deem fit; 

e. Provided that where the need for Related Pa�ty Transaction cannot be foreseen and 

aforesaid details are not available, Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for such 

transactions subject to their value not exceeding Rs.1 crore per transaction. 

f. Audit Committee shall review, at least on a qua�terly basis, the details of RPTs entered into by 

the company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given. 

g. Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a pe�iod not exceeding one year and shall require 

fresh approvals after the expi�y of one year.

 (iv) Based on the te�ms and conditions of a transaction, and applicable regulato�y requirements, the 

Audit Committee will have the discretion to recommend / refer it for the approval of Board of 

Directors or Shareholders, as the case may be. 
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5.2.  Approval of the Board of Directors. 

(i) In the event transaction, contract or a�rangement is not in the ordina�y course of business or not at 

an a�m's length p�ice, the audit committee shall refer the same to the board for their consideration 

and approval. 

(ii) The Board will consider factors such as, nature of the transaction, mate�ial te�ms, the manner of 

dete�mining the p�icing and the business rationale for ente�ing into such transaction. On such 

consideration, the Board may approve the transaction or may require such modifications to 

transaction te�ms as it deems approp�iate under the given circumstances. 

(iii) Any member of the Board who has any interest in any Related Pa�ty Transaction will recuse 

themselves and abstain from discussion and voting on the approval of the Related Pa�ty 

Transaction. 

5.3.  Approval of the Shareholders. 

(i) All mate�ial related pa�ty transactions or not in the ordina�y course of business or not at an a�m's 

length p�ice and exceeds thresholds presc�ibed under the Companies Act, 2013 for respective 

transaction will be placed for approval of the shareholders of the Company. 

(ii) Any member of the company who is a related pa�ty shall abstain from voting on such resolutions. 

(iii) The Audit Committee will have the discretion to seek opinion / repo�t of an independent expe�t in 

case of mate�ial transactions. 

6.  Disclosure 

All Directors/KMP are required to disclose the pa�ties in which they are deemed to be interested in 

presc�ibed fo�m. 

Fu�ther, each Director and KMP of the Company shall promptly notify the Secreta�ial Depa�tment of any 

mate�ial transaction or Relationship that could reasonably be expected to give �ise to a conflict of 

interest. 

6.1.  Eve�y related pa�ty transaction, if required under law shall be refe�red to in the Board's repo�t 

along with the justification for ente�ing into such contract or a�rangement. 

6.2.  The Company shall maintain Register in the presc�ibed fo�m for noting of related pa�ty transaction. 

6.3.  The company shall disclose the policy on dealing with Related Pa�ty Transactions on its website 

and a web-link thereto shall be provided in the Annual Repo�t.

7.  Whistle blower for any Related Pa�ty Transaction entered by company in non-compliance of this 

policy.  

Any officer or employee can approach access / approach the vigil mechanism or Company Secreta�y to 

repo�t a fraudulent related pa�ty transaction.

8.  Guidance P�inciples for approval of a Related Pa�ty Transaction by the board/Committee thereof 

To review a Related Pa�ty Transaction, the Board/Committee will be provided with all relevant mate�ial 

info�mation of the Related Pa�ty Transaction, including the te�ms of the transaction, the business 

purpose of the transaction, the benefits to the Company and any other relevant matters. In dete�mining 

whether to approve or a Related Pa�ty Transaction, the Board/Committee will consider the following 

factors, among others, to the extent relevant to the Related Pa�ty Transaction: 
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8.1.  Whether the te�ms of the Related Pa�ty Transaction are fair to the Company and would apply on 

the same basis if the transaction did not involve a Related Pa�ty; 

8.2.  Whether there are any compelling business reasons for the Company to enter into the Related 

Pa�ty Transaction and the nature of alte�native transactions, if any; 

8.3.  Whether the Related Pa�ty Transaction would present an improper conflict of interest for any 

Director or KMP of the Company, taking into account the size of the transaction, the overall 

interest of the Director, Executive Officer or other Related Pa�ty, the direct or indirect nature of the 

Executive Office�'s or other Related Pa�ty's interest in the transaction and the ongoing nature of 

any proposed relationship and any other factors the Board/Committee deems relevant. 

8.4.  In any case where either the Board/Committee dete�mines not to ratify a Related Pa�ty 

Transaction that has been commenced without approval, the Board/Committee, as approp�iate, 

may direct additional actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation or rescission 

of the transaction, or modification of the transaction to make it acceptable for ratification. In 

connection with any review of a Related Pa�ty Transaction, the Board/Committee has autho�ity to 

modify or waive any procedural requirements of this Policy. 

9.  Amendment and Limitation to the Policy

The Audit Committee of the Company shall review and may amend this Policy at least once eve�y three 

years, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Any or all provisions of this Policy would be subject to revision / amendment in accordance with the 

Rules, Regulations, Notifications, etc. on the subject as may be issued by relevant statuto�y autho�ities, 

from time to time. 

In case of any amendment(s), cla�ification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant autho�ities, not 

being consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), 

cla�ification(s), circular(s), etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall be 

deemed amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under such amendment(s), 

cla�ification(s), circular(s), etc.
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ANNEXURE-C

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
I.  INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Master Circular- 

Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Gove�nance (NHB) Directions, 2016, the Company is required 

to constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee dete�mines and recommends to the Board the compensation payable to Directors. 

Remuneration for the Executive Directors consists of a fixed component and a va�iable component 

linked to the long te�m vision, medium te�m goals and annual business plans. 

Section 178 of the Act provides that the Committee shall recommend to the Board a policy, relating to 

the remuneration for the Directors, Key Manage�ial Personnel and other employees, fu�ther the 

Committee shall also fo�mulate the c�ite�ia for dete�mining qualifications, positive att�ibutes and 

independence of a director. This Committee and the Policy is fo�mulated in compliance with Section 178 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable �ules thereto.

II.  APPLICABILITY

This Policy shall be applicable to: 

a.  Board of Directors 

b.  Key Manage�ial Personnel as defined under Section 2(51) of the Act 

c.  Senior Manage�ial Personnel, shall mean personnel of the company who are members of its core 

management team excluding Board of Directors. No�mally, this shall comp�ise of all members of 

management one level below the Executive Directors, including all functional heads. 

d.  Other Employees of the Company

III.  OBJECTIVE

a. To lay down the c�ite�ia for identifying the persons who are qualified to become directors and such 

persons who may be appointed as the Senior Manage�ial Personnel of the Company.

b. To dete�mine the qualifications, positive att�ibutes and independence of the Board and to ensure 

Board Diversity.

c. To recommend the Board for dete�mining the remuneration of the Directors, KMP and other 

employees.

d. To set the c�ite�ia for evaluation of the pe�fo�mance of Board of Directors and other employees of 

the Company (if applicable).

 IV.  DEFINITIONS 

“Board” or “Board of Directors” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company. 

“Company” shall mean Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited 
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“Key Manage�ial Personnel” (as defined in Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013) in relation to the 

Company, means – 

i. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager 

ii. Company Secreta�y 

iii. Whole Time Director 

iv. Such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time employment, 

designated as key manage�ial personnel by the Board

v. Such other officer as may be presc�ibed by the Gove�nment. 

The expression “senior management” means personnel of the company who are members of its core 

management team other than the Board of Directors. This would include all members of management 

one level below the executive directors, including all the functional heads of the Company.

Note: Te�ms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in 

the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.

V.  MEMBERSHIP

a) The Committee shall comp�ise at least three (3) Directors.

b) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable statuto�y requirement.

c) Te�m of the Committee shall be continued unless te�minated by the Board of Directors.

VI.  GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The Policy ensures that:

a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate Directors of the quality required to �un the Company successfully

b) Relationship of remuneration to pe�fo�mance is clear and meets approp�iate pe�fo�mance 

benchmarks and

c) Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the longer te�m interests of the company and 

its shareholders;

d) Link to long te�m strategy as well as annual business pe�fo�mance of the company; and

e) Reflective of line expe�tise, market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent

VII.  ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The role of the Committee inter alia will be the following:

a) To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the c�ite�ia laid down and to recommend to the Board their 

appointment and/ or removal.
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b) To ca��y out evaluation of eve�y directo�'s pe�fo�mance (if applicable)

c) To fo�mulate the c�ite�ia for dete�mining qualifications, positive att�ibutes and independence of a 

director, and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 

manage�ial personnel and other employees.

d) To fo�mulate the c�ite�ia for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board (if applicable).

e) To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole‐time Director(s) 

based on their pe�fo�mance and defined assessment c�ite�ia.

f) To ca��y out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and /or enforced by 

any statuto�y notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

g) To pe�fo�m such other functions as may be necessa�y or approp�iate for the pe�fo�mance of its 

duties.

VIII.  FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committee shall be held atleast once in a year or at such inte�vals as may be 

required.

IX.  APPOINTMENT CRIERTIA FOR THE BOARD AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

A.  APPOINTMENT CRITERIA FOR MANAGING DIRECTOR/WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

a) The Managing Director/Whole-Time Director shall be appointed as per the applicable 

provisions of the Act and �ules made there under.

b) The person to be appointed will be assessed against a range of c�ite�ia which shall include but 

shall not be limited to qualifications, skills, indust�y expe�ience, fit & proper, background and 

other att�ibutes required for the said position.

c) The Managing Director/Whole-Time Director shall have all the powers and autho�ities as 

presc�ibed by the Board of Directors and as provided in the A�ticles of Association and 

applicable provisions of the Act. The Managing Director/Whole-Time Director will be overall 

in-charge of the business, administration and other affairs of the Company subject to the 

supe�intendence, control and directions of the Board of Directors and he shall guide, control 

and supe�vise the employees of the Company, their functions, the business ca��ied on by the 

Company and all administrative matters.

B.  APPOINTMENT CRITERIA FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

a) The Non-Executive Director shall be appointed as per the applicable provisions of the Act and 

�ules made there under.

b) The person to be appointed shall be assessed on va�ious parameters such as qualification, 

relevant expe�ience and expe�tise, integ�ity, skill sets etc. The person considered to be 

appointed as a Non-Executive Director should possess relevant expe�tise which will help the 

person to act objectively and const�uctively.

C.  KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

a) Section 203 of the Act provides for appointment of whole-time Key Manage�ial Personnel 

(“KMP”) such personnel shall be appointed by means of resolution of the Board containing the 

te�ms and conditions of such appointment.



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

ROHA HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

39

b) The KMP and Senior Management Personnel should comp�ise of individuals with approp�iate 

mix of skills, expe�ience and personal att�ibutes. The said employees should be adapt and 

understand the business and the environment in which the Company operates and pe�fo�m 

towards the achievement of Company objectives and goals.

c) For the appointment of KMP and Senior Management Personnel, the following c�ite�ia's shall 

be considered:

- assessing the appointee against a range of c�ite�ia which includes but not limited to 

qualifications, skills, regional and indust�y expe�ience, background and other qualities 

required to operate successfully in the respective position,

- the extent to which the appointee is likely to cont�ibute to the overall effectiveness of the 

organization, work const�uctively with the existing team and enhance the efficiencies of 

the Company;

- Personal specifications like degree holder in relevant disciplines; expe�ience of 

management in a diverse organization; excellent interpersonal, communication and 

representational skills; demonstrable leadership skills, commitment to high standards of 

ethics, personal integ�ity and probity, commitment to the promotion of equal 

oppo�tunities and skills must also be considered.

d)  The appointments of one level below the Executive Director shall be within the ambit of the 

Committee and the Committee shall be duly info�med on the appointments at the Senior 

Management Personnel level and above.

D.  OTHER EMPLOYEES

 The Company shall rec�uit individuals with high level of integ�ity and having desired qualification, 

skill sets and expe�ience relevant to the Company's requirements for the specific position for 

which such individual is inte�viewed.

X.  NOMINATION PROCESS

1. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall be responsible to review the st�ucture, 

composition and diversity of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed 

changes/ new appointments to complement the Company's objectives and strategies.

2. The Committee shall ensure that the Board has approp�iate skills, professional knowledge, 

characte�istics and expe�ience in diverse fields like finance, banking, insurance, economics, 

corporate laws, administration, etc. required as a whole and by its executive directors, non- 

executive directors and independent directors (if any) in their individual capacity.

3. The Committee may on annual basis review the approp�iate skills, knowledge and expe�ience 

required for the Board as a whole and its individual Directors.

4. The Committee shall while identifying and selecting suitable candidates for fresh appointment/ 

re-appointment/ filling up casual vacancy shall inter-alia consider the following c�ite�ia:

a. consider educational and professional background and personal achievements;

b. consider individuals who are approp�iately qualified, based on their talents, expe�ience, 

functional expe�tise and personal skills, character and qualities;
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c. consider c�ite�ia that promotes diversity, including gender, age and relevant background;

5. The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

 a. Shall possess a Director Identification Number;

b. Shall not be disqualified under the Act;

c. Shall give his w�itten consent to act as a Director;

d. Shall endeavor to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee 

Member, the Committee Meetings;

e. Shall disclose his conce�n or interest in any company or companies or body corporate, fi�ms, 

or other association of indiv iduals including his shareholding, Committee 

membership/chai�manship at the first meeting of the Board in eve�y financial year.

f. Such other requirements as may be presc�ibed, from time to time under the Act and other 

relevant laws.

6. Upon receiving the consent to act as a Director, the profile of the person proposed to be appointed 

as a Director, shall be placed before the Board for its consideration and approval.

7. As per the provisions of the Act, appointment of Directors by the Board shall be placed before the 

shareholders for their approval.

XI.  FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA

At the time of appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, the Company shall be required to follow 

the due diligence process as stated in the Company's Policy on Fit and Proper c�ite�ia for the Directors 

fo�mulated as per the Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Gove�nance (National Housing Bank) 

Directions, 2016, dated May 16, 2019.

XII.  TERM AND TENURE OF MANAGING DIRECTOR/ WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director or Whole-time Director 

for a te�m not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year 

before the expi�y of te�m.

XIII.  REMUNERATION CRITERIA FOR THE BOARD AND THE EMPLOYEES

A) Remuneration paid to Executive Directors

i. The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board in the Board meeting, subject to the 

subsequent approval by the shareholders at the general meeting and such other autho�ities, 

as the case may be.

ii. The remuneration is a��ived by conside�ing va�ious factors such as qualification, expe�ience, 

expe�tise, prevailing remuneration in the indust�y and the financial position of the company. 

The elements of the remuneration and limits are pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 

Act 2013.

  Remuneration Policy St�ucture, the remuneration st�ucture for the Executive Directors would 

include the following components:
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i)  Basic Sala�y - Provides for a fixed, per month, base level remuneration to reflect the scale and 

dynamics of business to be competitive in the exte�nal market.

- Are no�mally set in the home cu�rency of the Executive Director and reviewed annually.
 
- Will be subject to an annual increase as per recommendations of the Nomination and 

Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors. (if required)

ii)  Commission - Executive Directors will be allowed remuneration, by way of commission which is in 

addition to the Basic Sala�y, Perquisites and any other Allowances, benefits and amenities.

  - The amount of commission shall be paid subject to recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors.

iii)  Perquisites and Allowances - A basket of Perquisites and Allowances would also fo�m a pa�t of 

the remuneration st�ucture.

iv)  Cont�ibution to Provident and Other funds- In addition to the above, the remuneration would 

also include:

 - Cont�ibution to Provident and Superannuation Funds
 
 - Gratuity

B)  Remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors (if any)

  The Remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors would be as per recommendations of the 

Nomination and Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors. It would be 

pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

C)  Remuneration Philosophy for Key manage�ial personnel & Senior management 

  The compensation for the Key manage�ial personnel & senior management at Roha Housing 

Finance P�ivate Limited would be guided by the exte�nal competitiveness and inte�nal pa�ity 

through annual benchmarking su�veys. 

  Inte�nally, pe�fo�mance ratings of all Roha Housing Finance Employees would be spread across a 

no�mal dist�ibution cu�ve. The rating obtained by an employee will be used as an input to 

dete�mine Va�iable and Me�it Pay increases. Va�iable and Me�it pay increases will be calculated 

using a combination of individual pe�fo�mance and organizational pe�fo�mance. Grade wise 

differentiation in the ratio of va�iable and fixed pay as well as in increment percentage must be 

made. 

XIV.  Removal & Retirement:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, �ules and 

regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in w�iting, 

removal of a Director, KMP subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

other applicable laws, guidelines, regulations. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, 

KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or othe�wise even after 

attaining retirement age, for the benefit of the Company subject to the applicable laws. 

The Senior Management Personnel and other employees shall retire as per the applicable provisions 

the Act, �ules and regulations and the prevailing HR policies of the Company. The Managing director / 
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Head – HR (Head- HR means Head of Human Resource depa�tment by whatever name called) will have 

the discretion to retain Senior Management Personnel in the same position / remuneration or othe�wise 

even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company, subject to compliance of 

regulations, if any, from time to time and if applicable as per prevailing HR Policies of the Company. 

Fu�ther, the Managing director will have the discretion to retain Head- HR.
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ANNEXURE-D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 

ANALYSIS REPORT 

A) GLOBAL ECONOMY OVERVIEW

The global economy in 2025 is navigating a complex landscape marked by policy shifts, trade tensions, 

and financial market adjustments. According to the Inte�national Moneta�y Fund (IMF), global growth is 

expected to decline compared to previous forecasts, with heightened unce�tainty due to escalating 

trade disputes and geopolitical instability. Inflation is projected to ease, but at a slower pace than 

anticipated, as central banks balance moneta�y policies to stabilize economies. The global economic 

system is undergoing a reset, potentially ushe�ing in a new era of economic dynamics. Meanwhile, India 

is set to become the fou�th-largest economy, surpassing Japan, with a projected GDP of $4.19 t�illion, 

reinforcing its position as a key player in global markets. However, conce�ns over ta�iff increases and 

policy unpredictability continue to weigh on global trade and investment decisions, affecting major 

economies like the United States, China, and Japan. As nations adapt to these evolving conditions, 

maintaining financial stability and foste�ing inte�national cooperation will be c�ucial for long-te�m 

economic resilience.

B) OUTLOOK

The global housing finance sector faces challenges such as economic unce�tainty and affordability 

issues. The sector is also expe�iencing significant growth d�iven by technological advancements, 

policy suppo�t, and a shift towards sustainable housing. Housing Finance Companies that adapt to 

these changes and strategically position themselves can capitalize on emerging oppo�tunities in the 

evolving market landscape.

The global housing indust�y in 2025 is expected to maintain steady growth, d�iven by urbanization, 

�ising incomes, and evolving consumer preferences. In India, the housing market is projected to remain 

strong, with increasing demand for mid-range and premium housing. Also, affordable housing demand 

is increasing in both urban and �ural areas due to ever-increasing awareness and va�ious impetus 

provided by the Gove�nment.

Globally, housing markets are expe�iencing moderate p�ice increases, with some regions seeing 

stabilization after rapid growth in previous years. In major cities, key areas near commercial hubs and 

pe�ipheral locations are expected to witness sharper p�ice hikes. 

C) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

India's housing finance sector is witnessing significant developments:

Ÿ Policy Suppo�t 

 The Indian gove�nment has allocated funds to the Pradhan Mant�i Awas Yojana (PMAY) to deliver 

20 million urban homes by 2025, stimulating demand and suppo�ting low- and middle-income 

families.
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Ÿ Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Scheme

 The Indian Gove�nment has created the “Credit Risk Guarantee Fund” to create an enabling 

environment and encourage the member lending institutions for sanctioning housing loans to the 

weaker sections of the society and enhance their credit accessibility by reducing perceived 

default �isk on the home loans for financial institutions, thereby increasing loan eligibility through 

financial inclusion of EWS/LIG.

Ÿ Affordable Housing Demand

  While the affordable segment accounted for only 20% of total housing sales in early 2024, there's a 

growing recognition of the urgent need for affordable housing options in urban as well as �ural 

areas.

Ÿ Technological Advancements

  Fintech platfo�ms are streamlining loan applications, reducing processing times, and enhancing 

transparency, making housing finance more accessible.

D) CHALLENGES AND RISKS

The housing finance business faces several challenges and �isks, including credit �isk, interest rate 

fluctuations, and regulato�y unce�tainties. One of the p�ima�y conce�ns is the �isk of loan defaults, 

pa�ticularly in markets with volatile economic conditions. Interest rate fluctuations can impact 

bo�rowing costs, affecting both lenders and homebuyers. Additionally, liquidity constraints may a�ise 

due to sudden shifts in market demand or financial instability. Regulato�y changes, such as 

modifications in lending policies or tax st�uctures, can also create unce�tainty for financial institutions. 

Fu�the�more, the affordability gap remains a significant issue, as �ising prope�ty p�ices make 

homeownership difficult for lower-income groups. Fraud �isks, including identity theft and 

misrepresentation of financial documents, pose additional challenges for lenders. Addressing these 

�isks requires robust �isk management strategies, technological advancements in credit assessment, 

and policy inte�ventions to ensure sustainable housing finance growth.

E) KEY REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS

Key regulato�y developments for Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) in the financial year 2024-25 

include revised liquidity no�ms, alignment with NBFC regulations, and increased focus on investor 

protection and �isk management. The RBI is also ha�monizing HFC regulations with those of NBFCs, 

leading to st�icter deposit acceptance no�ms, investment limits, and the introduction of Key Facts 

Statements (KFS). The major regulato�y developments as announced by va�ious agencies/regulato�y 

bodies du�ing the last financial year are as under:

Ø Regulato�y Ha�monization:

  HFCs are being aligned with NBFC regulations, impacting aspects like deposit acceptance, asset 

cover, and investment limits. 

Ø Investor Protection:

 The introduction of Key Facts Statements (KFS) aims to enhance transparency for bo�rowers

Ø Fundraising:

  HFCs are expected to adjust their fundraising strategies to comply with the revised regulato�y 

framework, including board-approved policies for p�ivate placements.
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Ø P�incipal Business C�ite�ia (PBC):

 HFCs must ensure they meet the P�incipal Business C�ite�ia (PBC).

Ø Risk Management:

  HFCs are encouraged to adopt better gove�nance practices and �isk management strategies to 

strengthen financial stability.

Ø Fraud Risk Management:

  The RBI has issued Master Directions on Fraud Risk Management (MDs) to strengthen fraud �isk 

management systems and frameworks within regulated entities, including HFCs.

F) BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Ÿ Dist�ibution and other initiatives

In view of va�ious factors such as volatile economic conditions, �ising real estate p�ices, and 

ongoing regulato�y developments, the Company adopted a conse�vative approach towards 

growth du�ing Fiscal 2025. This p�udent strategy was aimed at safeguarding the Company's 

financial stability, managing �isks effectively, and ensu�ing long-te�m sustainability amidst an 

unce�tain business environment.

Last fiscal year was more of consolidation with an objective of focusing on branch productivity. 

Review of the branch level productivity and reassessment identified ce�tain branches yielding 

suboptimal retu�ns while overlapping with existing locations, leading to increased operational 

expenses. To enhance efficiency, select branches were merged in Q3 FY 25 to the nearest existing 

branch, reducing Opex and improving branch-level productivity. These consolidations have 

resulted into cost savings, positioning the company to regain profit momentum in Q4 FY 25 and 

achieve a marked improvement in profit margins.

The employee strength stood at 770 employees on March 31, 2025, as compared 859 employees 

on March 31, 2024.

The Company reviewed its focus towards non-housing segment with cautious increase in 

disbursements and simultaneously meeting the mandato�y p�incipal business c�ite�ia. The 

disbursements under non-housing segment du�ing fiscal 2025 accounted for 49.76% of the total 

retail mo�tgage disbursements which helped boost margins for the Company. The Company 

disbursed ₹158.70 Crores towards Housing finance du�ing fiscal 2025 compared to ₹ 177.25 

Crores du�ing fiscal 2024. 

Ÿ Loan Po�tfolio

The Assest Under Management of the Company stood at ₹ 980.14 Crores (Loan Book at ₹ 851.68) 

at March 31, 2025 as compared to ₹ 775.26 Crores (Loan Book at ₹ 698.37) at March 31, 2024, 

registe�ing a growth of 26.42%. Disbursements under housing segment du�ing fiscal 2025 was ₹ 

158.70 Crores which constituted 50.24% of the total retail mo�tgage disbursements. 

Du�ing the year, the Company had entered into Direct Assignment transaction for alte�native 

source of funding and assigned loans amounting to ₹ 65.38 crores as compared to ₹ 77.98 Crores 

du�ing fiscal 2024. 
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Ÿ Risk Management

As a diversified enterp�ise, your Company believes that, pe�iodic review of va�ious �isks which 

have a bea�ing on the business and operations is vital to proactively manage unce�tainty and 

changes in the inte�nal and exte�nal environment so that it can limit the negative impact and 

capitalize on oppo�tunities. Risk management framework enables a systematic approach to �isk 

identification, leverage on any oppo�tunities and provides strategies to manage, transfer, avoid or 

minimize the impact of the �isks and helps to ensure sustainable business growth with stability of 

affairs and operations of the Company. 

Keeping the above in view, your Company's �isk management is embedded in the business 

processes. As a pa�t of review of business and operations, your Board with the help of the 

management pe�iodically reviews va�ious �isks associated with the business and products of the 

Company and considers approp�iate �isk mitigation processes. However, there are ce�tain �isks 

which cannot be avoided but the impact can only be minimized. 

In order to mitigate these �isks a Risk Management Policy has been placed under the supe�vision 

of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Company and the same has been approved by 

the Board. The Company has laid down approp�iate systems to facilitate repo�ting pe�taining to 

key �isks to the Board of Directors, Board committees and the senior management.

The Company is taking the following measures to ensure the effectiveness of �isk management, 

maintaining a strong, diversified and resilient po�tfolio and ensu�ing that areas of growth are well 

controlled and sustainable:

Ø Affordable segment policies for enabling effective sourcing 

Ø Branch level po�tfolio monito�ing and inte�vention 

Ø Early wa�ning monito�ing like early mo�tality and non-sta�ters repo�ting 

The Company has a robust credit �isk management framework implemented through va�ious 

policies, manuals and guidelines. The Company has implemented pre and post disbursement 

controls ensu�ing effective �isk analysis and measurement, pe�iodic monito�ing and repo�ting 

based on va�ious parameters and adherence to amendments in policy changes. The delegation 

st�ucture for approval of credit limits is approved by the Board of Directors. All credit proposals are 

rated as per the limit presc�ibed under the policy by the �isk management team p�ior to 

consideration at the approp�iate delegated autho�ity.

The Company mainly uses Prope�ty as collateral to mitigate the underlying credit �isk in its regular 

lending operations. The Credit Recove�y Policy and Valuation Policy of the Company provides the 

�isk mitigation guidelines to be followed by it. 

G) DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Company sta�ted its business operations with focus on key areas – operating efficiency, 

collaboration, quality management and customer cent�icity and it was a high-pe�fo�mance year of the 

Company which was made possible by a balanced po�tfolio mix, volume growth, and p�udent �isk 

management. Key financial parameters are:

Ÿ  Assets under Management (AUM) as on 31 March 2025 stood at ₹980.14 crore;
Ÿ  Total income grew by ₹ 23.24 crore to ₹ 133.75 crore in 2024-25;
Ÿ  Profit before tax stood at ₹ 6.17 crore in 2024-25;
Ÿ  Profit after tax stood at ₹ 4.62 crore in 2024-25.
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H)  MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources is the most valuable asset in mode�n business environment. Recognizing the fact, 

the Company gives much impo�tance to human resources development and management in the 

organization.  The management ensures the employees are engaged throughout the year by 

constantly communicating the mission and the strategies to its diverse teams.

B�ief synopsis of HR initiatives du�ing the year:

RECRUITMENT STRATEGY

The HR depa�tment implemented va�ious strategic initiatives to attract and select top talent from the 

indust�y. We employed innovative sourcing methods, leveraged social media platfo�ms, and 

collaborated with exte�nal rec�uitment agencies to widen our talent pool. Additionally, we streamlined 

the selection process, incorporating comprehensive candidate assessments and st�uctured inte�views 

to ensure the �ight fit for each role. As a result, we successfully on boarded highly skilled professionals 

who aligned with the company's values and cont�ibuted to the organization's growth.

TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT

At our organization, we continue to place a strong emphasis on continuous lea�ning and capability 

building as key d�ivers of growth and excellence. This year, we focused on strengthening our lea�ning 

culture through targeted and high-impact training initiatives. From intensive sessions on new process 

rollouts and app launch training to �igorous legal and technical ve�ification workshops, our programs 

were designed to equip employees with the �ight skills at the �ight time. St�uctured assessments helped 

track progress and ensure lea�ning effectiveness.

We remained committed to embedding our core values through eve�y stage of lea�ning, from induction 

programs to refresher sessions. We take p�ide in the high levels of employee pa�ticipation and the 

consistently positive feedback we received, which reinforce our belief that a well-trained, info�med, 

and value-d�iven workforce is the co�nerstone of sustainable success.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

The PMS facilitated regular pe�fo�mance reviews, allowing managers and employees to discuss 

achievements, areas for improvement, and career development oppo�tunities. By implementing an 

effective PMS, we promoted a pe�fo�mance-d�iven culture that rewarded high pe�fo�mers and 

identified areas for growth and development. We extended pe�fo�mance-linked va�iable pays and 

market-competitive average increments along with promotions for eligible employees. 

As on March 31, 2025 the Company had 770 employees on its rolls at va�ious organizational levels. 

I) OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

For the financial year 2024-25, Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) faced both oppo�tunities and 

threats within the Indian housing finance market. Oppo�tunities include the overall growth of the 

market, suppo�ted by robust st�uctural factors and gove�nment incentives, and the potential for 

expanding their share in the market, especially in the affordable housing segment. However, HFCs also 

face challenges, including increased competition from banks, regulato�y compliance, and potential 

impact from global financial �isks. 

Oppo�tunities

Some of the key oppo�tunities faced by the housing finance companies are as under:
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Ø Market Growth:

The housing finance market is expected to grow significantly in the coming years, d�iven by 

factors like �ising urbanization, increasing per capita income, and gove�nment initiatives.
 
Ø Affordable Housing:

The gove�nment's focus on affordable housing creates a large market for HFCs, especially in the 

affordable housing segment, which is expected to see significant growth. 

Ø Digitalization:

The growth of digital platfo�ms and technologies can help HFCs reach a wider customer base and 

improve efficiency. 

Ø Increased Awareness:

  Growing awareness about the benefits of homeownership and the impo�tance of housing finance 

can d�ive demand for HFC se�vices. 

Ø Refinance Oppo�tunities:

 HFCs can take advantage of refinance oppo�tunities to expand their po�tfolio. 

Threats faced by HFCs 

Some of the key threats faced by the housing finance companies are as under:

Ø Increased Competition:

Banks, with their cost-of-funds advantage, wider reach, and strategic pa�tnerships, pose a 

significant threat to HFCs. 

Ø Regulato�y Compliance:

St�ict regulations and compliance requirements can be a burden for HFCs, especially in areas like 

KYC, fair practices, and �isk management. 

Ø Global Financial Risks:

  Geopolitical unce�tainties and global economic headwinds can impact the housing finance market 

and HFCs' pe�fo�mance. 

Ø Credit Quality:

Changes in the credit quality of HFCs and the need to address stress in the po�tfolio can also 

present challenges. 

Ø Interest Rate Fluctuations:

Fluctuations in interest rates can impact the cost of funds for HFCs and their ability to offer 

competitive loan products. 

Ø Non-Pe�fo�ming Assets (NPAs):
 
 Rising NPAs can impact the profitability and sustainability of HFCs. 
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Ø Regulato�y Changes:

Changes in regulations, such as those related to non-housing po�tfolio limits for HFCs, can impact 

the growth and profitability of HFCs. 

J) SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

Your Company is a housing finance company with a focus on providing housing finance and related 

products for the underse�ved majo�ity, p�ima�ily through home loans provided to the Low and Middle 

Income (LMI) segment in India. Your Company provides secured finance only to individuals for the 

purchase, self-const�uction, improvement and extension of homes, new and resalable flats, 

commercial prope�ties and plots plus const�uction. Your Company also provides other non-housing 

loan products including loans against prope�ty.

RETAIL LOANS

Your Company's Housing Loans po�tfolio consists of a range of home loan products designed for the 

va�ious classes of bo�rowers, matched to their bo�rowing capabilities. The products, suitable for 

sala�ied professionals, self-employed and entrepreneurs, come with repayment options up to 30 years. 

Loans for purchase of ready or under-const�uction housing units, home renovation/extension, self-

const�uction, purchase of plots and composite loan for purchase of plot and self-const�uction are 

included in this catego�y. Special care is taken to enable home loan access to the LMI segment, while 

designing the product and processes.

As at March 31, 2025, your Company's total Loan Book comp�ises of ₹ 534.78 crore of Housing loans 

and ₹ 316.90 crore of Non-Housing Loans cont�ibuting to 62.79 % and 37.21 % of the total Loan Book 

respectively.

K) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company's inte�nal audit system has been continuously monitored and updated to ensure that 

assets are safeguarded, established regulations are complied with and pending issues are addressed 

promptly. The audit committee reviews repo�ts presented by the inte�nal auditors on a routine basis. 

The committee makes note of the audit obse�vations and takes co�rective actions wherever necessa�y. 

It maintains constant dialogue with statuto�y and inte�nal auditors to ensure that inte�nal control 

systems are operating effectively.

Based on its evaluation (as provided under Section177 of the Companies Act, 2013) the Audit 

Committee has concluded that as of 31st March 2025, the Inte�nal Financial Controls were adequate 

and operating effectively. The Statuto�y Auditors of the Company audited the financial statements 

included in this Annual Repo�t and issued a repo�t on the inte�nal controls over financial repo�ting (as 

defined in Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013).

The inte�nal controls exist in the system and that sufficient measures are taken to update the inte�nal 

control system, as and when needed. The system also ensures that all transaction are approp�iately 

autho�ized, recorded and repo�ted as and when required. 

It is wo�th noting that past pe�fo�mance does not necessa�ily indicate future results, and some 

info�mation in this Management Discussion and Analysis section may contain fo�ward-looking 

statements. The Company has based these fo�ward-looking statements on its present beliefs, 

expectations, and intentions regarding the facts, actions, and events that may occur in the future. 

A fo�ward-looking statement may also include a statement of the assumptions or basis underlying the 

fo�ward-looking statement. The Company made these assumptions or basis in good faith and believes 
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that they are reasonable in all mate�ial respects. However, it cautions that fo�ward-looking statements 

and assumptions typically differ from actual results, and the differences can be significant depending 

on the circumstances.

For Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited

 Sd/- Sd/- 
 Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala Sunil Kapoor
  Chai�man & Director                         Managing Director & CEO
 DIN: 01342061  DIN: 01436404 
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ANNEXURE-E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited (hereinafter “Company”) believes that good corporate gove�nance is 

a process in directing and controlling the affairs of the Company in an efficient manner and helps in 

achieving the goal of maximizing value of Company's stakeholders in a sustainable manner. Corporate 

Gove�nance plays an integral role in improving efficiency, growth as well as enhancing investor confidence. 

Corporate Gove�nance is about enabling organization to achieve their goals, controls, �isks and assu�ing 

compliance. 

The Company p�ima�ily focuses on housing loans in the lower and mid-income housing segment and in 

making available hassle-free, convenient, and customer cent�ic home loan offe�ings to aspi�ing home 

buyers, thereby encouraging home ownership. Its transparent and robust business practices have helped 

the Company build strong relationship with its investors, customers, employees and lenders.

Good Corporate Gove�nance incorporates a set of �ules that define the relation between stakeholders, 

management and the Board of Directors of a Company and influence how the Company is operating. 

Corporate gove�nance is about making business of the Company to work better while abiding by the �ules. 

Corporate Gove�nance is not just a destination but a consistent jou�ney to consolidate and enhance 

sustainable value creation to the Company.

A.   DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of eminent persons with optimum balance of Executive 

Directors and Non-Executive Directors having professional expe�tise from different fields.  The Board, 

inter-alia, provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent view / judgment to the 

Company's management. The Board meets at regular inte�vals for planning, assessing and evaluating 

all impo�tant business.

The Board members are updated from time to time, on the Company's procedures and policies. The 

Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to the company's 

management and also direct, supe�vise and control the pe�fo�mance of the Company. 

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company comp�ises of an optimum combination of 

Executive and Non- Executive Directors. The Board consist of 3 (Three) directors out of which 2 (Two) 

Director are Non-Executive and 1(one) is Executive director.
 
All the Directors have made necessa�y disclosures as required under section 164 & 184 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Company also has obtained a declaration and unde�taking from the 

Directors as required under Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance 

Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by the Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI).

Du�ing the year under review there were no changes in the Directors of the Company.
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As on March 31, 2025, the composition of the Board and detail of KMP are as follows:

(B)  GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 The details of the Annual/Extra-Ordina�y General Meetings are given below:

Name of the 
Director/KMP & 

DIN/PAN

Director 
since

Catego�y of 
Directorship

No. of other 
Directorships

stAs on 31  March, 2025
Other Directorship    

(including their designation
 in other entities)

Mr. Mahesh 
Ramakant 
Tibrewala
(DIN: 01342061)

31/01/2024 Chai�man & 
Non-Executive 
Director

9 1. Roha Food Ingredients P�ivate 
Limited (Director)

2. P�ima Te�ra Infotech P�ivate Ltd 
(Director)

3. Spheroclean Foodstuffs P�ivate 
Ltd (Fo�merly Known As Jupiter 
Eco Energy Pvt Ltd) (Director)

4. Roha Dahej Sez P�ivate Ltd 
(Director)

5. Roha Ink jet  P� ivate L imited 
(Director)

6. Roha Wealth Managers Pvt Ltd 
(Director)

7. Roha Dye Chem P�ivate Limited 
(Managing Director)

8. Roha D�ied Ingredients Limited 
(Fo�mely Saraf Foods Limited) 
(Director)

9. Roha Trading P�ivate Limited 
(Director)

Mr. Jyotin 
Shast�i
(DIN: 07068008)

29/04/2017 Non-Executive 
Director

5 1. St Angelo S Computers Limited 
(Director)

2. Roha Capital and Holding P�ivate 
Limited (Director)

3. Roha Investment  Managers 
P�ivate Limited (Director)

4. Roha D�ied Ingredients Limited 
(Fo�merly Saraf Foods Limited)

5. Indras Agencies P�ivate Limited 
(Director)

Mr. Sunil Kapoor 
(DIN: 01436404) 

06/07/2017 Managing 
Director & 
CEO

1 1. Nearby Technologies P�ivate 
Limited (Nominee Director)

Mr. Pankaj 
Rawat 
(PAN: 
BJZPR1362M) 

NA Company 
Secreta�y & 
Compliance 
Officer

NA NA

Sr. 
No.

Type of Meeting 
(Annual/Extra-Ordina�y)

Date and Place Special resolutions 
passed

1. Annual General Meeting
thMonday, 27  May 2024 at the registered 

office of the Company situated at JJT House, 
44/45, Road No. 2 MIDC, Andhe�i East, 
Mumbai-400093

No Special Resolution 
was passed.
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2. Extra Ordina�y General 
Meeting

thWednesday, 13  November 2024 at the 
Corporate office of the Company located at 

thUnit No. 1117 & 1118, 11  Floor, World Trade 
Tower, Sec-16, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh

No Special Resolution 
was passed.

3. Extra Ordina�y General 
Meeting

thThursday, 6  March 2025 at the registered 
office of the Company situated at JJT House, 
44/45, Road No. 2 MIDC, Andhe�i East, 
Mumbai-400093

To approve the 
alteration of A�ticle of 
Association of the 
Company.

(C)  NUMBER AND DATES OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 

2025

Du�ing the Financial year 2024-25, our Board has met 7 (Seven) times and the Meetings of the Board of 

Directors were held on:

 1.  May 09, 2024   5.  November 13, 2024 
 2.  June 27, 2024    6.  December 11, 2024
 3.  August 17, 2024  7.  March 06, 2025      
 4.  September 30, 2024

The maximum gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than one hundred and twenty 

days, as stipulated under section 173 of Companies Act 2013 and Secreta�ial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secreta�ies of India (ICSI). As per applicable laws, minimum four Board meetings 

are required to be held eve�y year (one meeting in eve�y calendar qua�ter). The company has convened 

additional Board meetings to address specific needs of the company. In case of any exigency/ 

emergency, resolutions are passed through circulation.

In addition to that the names of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board meetings held 

du�ing the year and their attendance at the Annual General Meeting as on March 31, 2025 are given 

herein below.

(D)  DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

None of the directors of the Company are related to each other.

(E)  NUMBER OF SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY DIRECTORS

stMr. Sunil Kapoor, MD & CEO of the Company holds 32,30,000 equity shares of the Company as on 31  

March 2025.

(F)  ROLE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY IN OVERALL GOVERNANCE PROCESS

The Company Secreta�y plays a key role in ensu�ing that the Board (including committees thereof) 

procedures are followed and regularly reviewed. In te�ms of applicable laws, the Board had appointed 

Name of the Director No. of Board Meetings du�ing the 
year 2024-2025

Percentage of 
Board Meeting 

Attendance

Whether 
Attended the 

last AGM held on 
May 27, 2024

Held du�ing 
their tenure

Attended

Mr. Mahesh R Tibrewala 7 7 100 Yes

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i 7 5 71.43 Yes

Mr. Sunil Kapoor 7 7 100 Yes
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Mr. Pankaj Rawat as Company Secreta�y & Compliance Officer of the Company to unde�take va�ious 

responsibilities as stipulated under Companies Act, 2013, NHB/RBI Guidelines and other applicable 

laws. The Company Secreta�y ensures that all relevant info�mation, details and documents are made 

available to the directors and senior management for effective decision making at the meetings. 

The Company Secreta�y is p�ima�ily responsible to assist and advise the Board and Chai�man in the 

conduct of affairs of the Company, to ensure compliance with applicable statuto�y requirements and 

applicable Secreta�ial Standards, to provide guidance to directors and to facilitate convening of 

meetings. The Company Secreta�y acts as the Secreta�y to all the Committees of the Board constituted 

under applicable laws.

(G)  DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no defaults obse�ved in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 

including with respect to compliance with accounting and secreta�ial standards, du�ing the year under 

review.

(H)  DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES

There were no penalty/st�icture imposed by RBI/NHB or any other statuto�y autho�ity du�ing the year 

under review. 

(I)  TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company have not entered into any pecunia�y relationships or 

transactions with the Company or its Directors, Senior Management, other than in the no�mal course of 

business of the Company, except receipt of sitting fees and commission by the Non-Executive, 

Independent Directors of the Company. The Company does not pay any remuneration to its Non-

Executive Directors. 

(J)  COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted a set of Committees with specific te�ms of reference/scope to focus 

effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. The Committees operate 

as empowered agents of the Board as per their Cha�ter/te�ms of reference. Targets set/actions 

directed by them as agreed with the management are reviewed pe�iodically and mid-course 

co�rections are ca��ied out. The Board of Directors and the Committees also take decisions by circular 

resolutions, which are noted in the next meeting. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees of the 

Board are placed before the Board for discussions/noting.

Cu�rently, the Company has 9 (Nine) Committees: 

(i)    Audit Committee
(ii)   Risk Management Committee
(iii)  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(iv)  Asset Liability Management Committee 
(v)  Info�mation Technology (IT) Strategy Committee
(vi)  Working Committee 
(vii)  Inte�nal Committee
(viii) Info�mation Technology (IT) Stee�ing Committee
(ix)  G�ievance Redressal Committee

(I)   AUDIT COMMITTEE

The p�ima�y objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supe�vision of the 
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management's financial repo�ting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest 

level of transparency, integ�ity and quality of financial repo�ting.

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the �ules made thereunder and as per Master Direction – Non-Banking 

Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 as issued by Rese�ve 

Bank of India (RBI).

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee comp�ises of 3 (Three) Directors, out of which 2 (two) are Non-

Executive Directors and 1 (one) is Executive Director. All of whom are financially literate and have 

relevant finance and/or audit exposure. 

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i, Chai�man of the Committee is a Qualified Cha�tered Accountant. The quo�um of the 

Committee is two members or one-third of its members, whichever is higher. The Composition of the 

Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Du�ing the pe�iod under review, 4 (Four) Audit Committee meetings were held on May 09, 2024, August 

17, 2024, December 17, 2024 and Feb�ua�y 24, 2025. 

The te�ms of reference of the Audit Committee are wide enough to cover the matters as specified for 

Audit Committee under section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The te�ms of reference/Scope as 

approved by Board of Directors of the Company for the Audit Committee are as follows:

The scope of the Committee shall be included but not limited to following and which may be modified by 

the board from time to time.

(i)  To recommend appointment, remuneration and te�ms of appointment of auditors of the company;

(ii)  To review and monitor the audito�'s independence and pe�fo�mance, and effectiveness of audit 

process;

(iii)  To examine the financial statement and the auditors' repo�t thereon;

(iv)  To approve the related pa�ty transactions or any subsequent modification of transactions of the 

company with related pa�ties;

(v)  Sc�utiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(vi)  Valuation of unde�takings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessa�y;

(vii)  Evaluation of inte�nal financial controls and �isk management systems;

Name of Director(s) Designation/Catego�y No. of meetings held/attended 
du�ing the Financial year 

2024-2025

% of 
attendance

Held du�ing 
their tenure

Attended

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i Chai�man 
(Non-Executive Director)

4 4 100

Mr. Sunil Kapoor Member 
(Executive Director)

4 4 100

Mr. Mahesh Tibrewala Member
(Non-Executive Director)

4 4 100
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(viii) Monito�ing the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

(ix)  To ensure the Info�mation System Audit of the inte�nal systems and processes is conducted at 

least once in two years to assess operational �isks faced by the HFCs;

(x)  Any other roles and responsibility as presc�ibed under va�ious applicable laws from time to time.

(ii)  RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has in place the Risk Management Committee in accordance with the Master Direction – 

Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 as 

issued by Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI).

As on March 31, 2025 the Committee comp�ised of 4 (Four) Members, out of which 1(One) is Managing 

Director & CEO and other 3 (Three) are employees of the Company heading their respective 

depa�tments. The quo�um of the Committee is one-third of its total members or three members, 

whichever is higher. 

The Composition of the Risk Management Committee and the details of meetings attended by its 

members are given below:

th*Resigned as a member from 30  October 2024

The Committee shall be responsible to manage the integrated �isk and the scope as presc�ibed by the 

company through its board approved Risk Management Policy and other role and responsibilities as 

may be presc�ibed under va�ious applicable laws from time to time.

Du�ing the pe�iod under review, 4 (four) Risk Management Committee meetings were held on May 07, 

2024, July 15, 2024, October 21, 2024 and March 10, 2025. 

(iii)  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee oversees key processes through which the Company rec�uits new members to its 

Board, and also the processes through which the Company rec�uits, motivates and retain outstanding 

senior management and oversees the Company's overall approach to human resources management. 

As per the requirement of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the provisions of the 

S. 
No

Name of the 
Member

Designation Position 
in the 

Committee

No. of meetings 
held/attended du�ing the 

Financial year 
2024-2025

% of 
attendance

Held du�ing 
their tenure

Attended

1 Sunil Kapoor Managing Director Chai�man 4 4 100

2 Soumyendra Joarder Chief Risk Officer Member 4 4 100

3 Va�un Khunteta Head- Finance & 
Treasu�y

Member 4 4 100

4 Vinita Jain Head–Strategy & 
Business 
Development

Member 3 3* 100

5 M�inal Aga�wal Head-Operations 
& IT

Member 4 4 100
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Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) 

Directions, 2021 as issue by Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI), the company has constituted Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee comp�ises of 3 (Three) Directors, out of which 2 (two) are Non-

Executive Directors and 1 (one) is Executive Director. The quo�um of the Committee is two members or 

one-third of its members, whichever is higher. 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings 

attended by its members are given below:

The Company Secreta�y acts as secreta�y to Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Du�ing the 

financial year 2024-25, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) times on August 17, 

2024, November 11, 2024 and March 6, 2025. Du�ing the year under review the Committee has 

reviewed the policy on fit & proper c�ite�ia of Directors and inte�nal guidance on corporate gove�nance.

The te�ms of reference/Scope as approved by Board of Directors of the Company for the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee are as follows:

The scope of the committee shall be included but not limited to following and which may be modified by 

the board from time to time.

1. Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the c�ite�ia laid down and recommend to the Board their 

appointment and removal.

2. Fo�mulate the c�ite�ia for dete�mining qualifications, positive att�ibutes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key 

Manage�ial Personnel and other employees.

3. The Committee while fo�mulating the policy ensures that:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate directors of the quality required to �un the company successfully;

(b) Relationship of remuneration to pe�fo�mance is clear and meets approp�iate pe�fo�mance 

benchmarks; and

(c) Remuneration to directors, key manage�ial personnel and senior management involves a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting sho�t and long-te�m pe�fo�mance 

objectives approp�iate to the working of the company and its goals.

Name of Director(s) Designation/Catego�y No. of meetings held/attended 
du�ing the Financial year 2024-25

% of 
attendance

Held du�ing 
their tenure

Attended

Mr. Jyotin Shast�i Member 
(Non-Executive Director)

3 3 100

Mr. Sunil Kapoor Member 
(Executive Director)

3 3 100

Mr. Mahesh Tibrewala Member (Non-Executive 
Director)

3 3 100
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4. The Committee to ensure 'fit and prope�' c�ite�ia of proposed/ existing directors.

5. Oversee the fo�mulation and implementation of ESOP Schemes (if any), its administration, 

supe�vision, and fo�mulating detailed te�ms and conditions in accordance with applicable laws.

6. Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secreta�y of the Committee

7. Pe�fo�m such other roles and responsibility as presc�ibed under va�ious applicable laws from time 

to time.

(iv)  ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

The Company has in place the Asset Liability Management Committee in accordance with the 

provisions of the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company 

(Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 as issued by Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI).

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee comp�ises of 5 (Five) Members out of which 1 (one) is Managing 

Director and 3 (Three) are other Members of the Company. Mr. Sunil Kapoor is Managing Director & 

Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Chai�man of the Committee.

The composition of the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALM Committee) and the details of 

meetings attended by its members are given below:

th*Resigned as a member from 30  October 2024

Du�ing the year under review, Committee met 4 (four) times on May 16, 2024, August 17, 2024, October 

21, 2024 and March 10, 2025. The committee shall be responsible to manage the asset liability 

mismatch and the scope as presc�ibed by the company through its board approved Asset Liability 

Management Policy and other role and responsibilities as may be presc�ibed under va�ious applicable 

laws from time to time.

(v)   IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Company also has in place IT Strategy Committee in te�ms of Info�mation Technology Framework 

for NBFCs/HFCs as presc�ibed by the Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI)/National Housing Bank (NHB). Du�ing 

S. 
No

Name of the 
Member

Designation Position in 
the 

Committee

No. of meetings 
held/attended du�ing the  
Financial year 2024-25`

% of 
attendance

Held du�ing 
their tenure

Attended

1 Sunil Kapoor Managing 
Director 

Chai�man 4 4 100

2 Soumyendra 
Joarder 

Chief Risk Officer Member 4 4 100

3 Va�un Khunteta Head- Finance & 
Treasu�y

Member 4 4 100

4 Vinita Jain Head –Strategy & 
Business 
Development

Member 3 3* 100

5 M�inal Aga�wal Head- Operation 
& IT

Member 4 4 100
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the year under review, Committee met 4 (four) times on June 25, 2024, August 20, 2024, October 21, 

2024 and March 11, 2025.

As per the NHB/RBI Circular, the Chai�man of the Committee shall be an independent director. However, 

Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited is a “P�ivate Limited” Company and is not required to appoint 

Independent Director pursuant to provisions of The Companies Act, 2013, the gove�ning law, hence the 

company has fo�med an IT Strategy committee with Non-Independent and Non-executive director of 

the Company. The chai�man of the committee is Mr. Jyotin Shast�i.

The Board of Directors has constituted the IT Strategy Committee with the following 

Director(s)/member(s).

th*Resigned as a member from 30  October 2024

The te�ms of reference/Scope as approved by Board of Directors of the Company for the IT Strategy 

Committee are as follows:

The scope of the committee shall be included but not limited to following and which may be modified by 

the board from time to time.

1. Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensu�ing that the management has put an 

effective strategic planning process in place;

2. Asce�taining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT 

delivers value to the business;

3. Ensu�ing IT investments represent a balance of �isks and benefits and that budgets are 

acceptable;

4. Monito�ing the method that management uses to dete�mine the IT resources needed to achieve 

strategic goals and provide high level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources;

5. Ensu�ing proper balance of IT investments for sustaining HFC's growth and becoming aware about 

exposure towards IT �isks and controls.

S. 
No

Name of the 
Member

Designation Position in the 
Committee

No. of meetings 
held/attended du�ing 

the Financial year 
2024-25

% of 
attendance

Held du�ing 
their tenure

 Attended

1 Jyotin Shast�i Non-Executive Director Chai�man 4 0 0

2 Sunil Kapoor Managing Director Member 4 4 100

3 Va�un Khunteta Head-Finance & Treasu�y Member 4 4 100

4 Vinita Jain Head –Strategy & 
Business Development

Member 3 3* 100

5 Soumyendra 
Joarder

Chief Risk Officer Member 4 4 100

6 M�inal Aga�wal Head- Operations & IT Member 4 4 100

7 Rupesh Kumar Chief Manager-IT 
Member

Member 4 4 100
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6. Ensure compliance of the IT Framework of the company.

7.  To ca��y out any other function in te�ms of any other applicable guidelines or in any other 

applicable law (within the ambit of IT Gove�nance system).

(vi)  WORKING COMMITTEE

The Company also has in place a working committee for day to day operation of the Company (which 

are urgent in nature and require immediate action). The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 

November 12, 2020 constituted Working Committee with the following members along with scope of 

work as stated below.

 
 Scope and Function of Working Committee is as follows:

1. Accepting Loan/Bo�row monies from va�ious Banks/Financial Institutions/entity both domestic 

and foreign;

2. To invest the funds of the Company to the extent pe�missible under applicable laws.

3. To open/apply for placing fixed deposit with any Bank/financial institutions/Non-Banking Financial 

Companies, to the extent pe�missible under applicable laws.

4. To grant loans or give guarantee or provide secu�ity in respect of loans to the extent pe�missible 

under applicable laws.

5. Opening of Account (Including but not limited to Cu�rent account/Overdraft account/Fixed deposit 

account/Collection account/Disbursement account) at different places in India, any changes in 

autho�ised signato�ies who operate such accounts, apply for Net Banking and consequent 

changes in their autho�ity to operate, any closure of existing Account of the Company and to do all 

necessa�y needful in this regard.

6. Any other matter relating to the operations of va�ious bank accounts and other general purposes 

of the Company.

7. To open Demat/trading account with any deposito�y pa�ticipant(s) and to do all necessa�y needful 

in this regard.

8. To execute the leave and license agreement and to do all necessa�y needful in this regard.

9. To register under the shops and establishment act and to do all necessa�y needful in this regard.

10. To open or close of branch offices in any pa�t of India and to do all necessa�y needful in this regard.

11. Any other general purpose related to grant autho�ization to pe�fo�m day to day affairs of the 

Company.

Du�ing the pe�iod under review, 22 (Twenty Two) Working Committee meetings were held on Ap�il 01, 

2024, Ap�il 24, 2024, Ap�il 29, 2024, May 28, 2024, June 26, 2024, July 17, 2024, July 30, 2024, August 

05, 2024, September 02, 2024, September 18, 2024, September 27, 2024, October 04, 2024, October 

Sr. No. Name of Members Designation

1. Mr. Sunil Kapoor, Managing Director & CEO Chai�man

2. Mr. Jyotin Paresh Shast�i, Director Member

3. Mr. Va�un Khunteta, Head- Finance & Treasu�y Member
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26, 2024, November 12, 2024, November 28, 2024, Janua�y 07, 2025, Janua�y 20, 2025, Janua�y 29, 

2025, Feb�ua�y 08, 2025, Feb�ua�y 26, 2025, March 07, 2025 and March 18, 2025.

The quo�um for the meeting(s) of Working Committee of the board shall be one third of total members 

or 2 members, whichever is higher. The company secreta�y & compliance officer of the company will 

act as the secreta�y to the committee. 

(vii)  OTHER COMMITTEES

The company has in place other committees like Inte�nal Committee, Info�mation Technology (IT) 

Stee�ing Committee, Fraud Risk Management Committee, Identification Committee, Committee of the 

Executives, Info�mation Secu�ity Committee and G�ievance Redressal Committee working at employee 

level. 
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ANNEXURE-F
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Manage�ial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members
Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited
Regd. Office: JJT House 44/45, Road No. 2 MIDC,
Mumbai City MH-400093

I have conducted the secreta�ial audit of the compliance of applicable statuto�y provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited (CIN: 

U65999MH2017PTC293277) (hereinafter called “the Company”. Secreta�ial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statuto�y compliances 

and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my ve�ification of the books, papers, minute books, fo�ms, retu�ns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the info�mation provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

autho�ized representatives du�ing the conduct of secreta�ial audit, I hereby repo�t that in my opinion, the 
stCompany has, du�ing the audit pe�iod cove�ing the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2025, complied with 

the statuto�y provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repo�ting made hereinafter:

A. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, fo�ms and retu�ns filed and other records maintained 
stby Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited for the year ended on 31  March, 2025 according to the 

provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder (as amended from time to 

time);

II. The Secu�ities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the �ules made thereunder (Not 

Applicable to the Company as the equity shares of the Company are not listed on any stock 

exchange);

III. The Deposito�ies Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder (as amended 

from time to time);

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the �ules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Exte�nal Commercial 

Bo�rowings (as amended from time to time) (Not Applicable to the Company du�ing the audit 

pe�iod); 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines presc�ibed under the Secu�ities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): - 

a. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to Company du�ing Audit Pe�iod);
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b. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 

(as amended from time to time) (Not applicable to Company du�ing Audit Pe�iod); 

c. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (as amended from time to time) (Not applicable to Company du�ing Audit 

Pe�iod);  

d. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to Company du�ing Audit Pe�iod); 

e. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Secu�ities) 

Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to Company du�ing Audit Pe�iod); 

f. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (as amended 

from time to time) (Not applicable to Company du�ing Audit Pe�iod); 

g. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

(Not applicable to Company du�ing Audit Pe�iod); and 

h. The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Secu�ities) Regulations, 1998 (Not 

applicable to Company du�ing Audit Pe�iod);  

VI. I fu�ther repo�t that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and based 

on the representation made by the management of the Company and on examination of the 

relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company, being a housing finance 

Company registered with National Housing Bank, has complied with the following laws applicable 

specifically to the Company:

(a) Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company –Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve 

Bank) Directions, 2021 issued on 17th Feb�ua�y, 2021.

(b) Master Direction – Rese�ve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based 

Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued on 19th October 2023.

(c) Other applicable circulars/regulations as issued by Rese�ve Bank of India/National Housing 

Bank from time to time.

  I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secreta�ial Standards-1 (Meetings of Board of Directors) issued by The Institute of Company 

Secreta�ies of India. 

(ii)   Secreta�ial Standards-2 (General Meetings) issued by The Institute of Company Secreta�ies of 

India.

(iii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s); (Not Applicable to 

the Company)

 Du�ing the year under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  

B. I fu�ther repo�t that:

a. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
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Directors & Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 

that took place du�ing the pe�iod under review were ca��ied out in compliance with the provisions 

of the Act. Also, the concept of rotation of directors is not applicable being a p�ivate company. 

b. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining fu�ther info�mation and cla�ifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful pa�ticipation at the meeting. The Company is holding Board and Committee meetings 

at sho�ter notice (in case of urgency) with requisite compliance for holding Meeting at sho�ter 

notice, as applicable.

c. All decisions were ca��ied out with majo�ity as recorded in the Minutes of the Board of Directors or 

Committee of the Board as the case may be.

C. I fu�ther repo�t that:

 Du�ing the pe�iod, the Company has issued and allotted through Right Issue Basis -
 

th a. 17,50,000 Equity Shares on 28  June, 2024

th b. 75,00,000 Equity Shares on 19  November, 2024

th c. 25,00,000 Equity Shares on 27  December, 2024

 I fu�ther repo�t that: 
 

(a)  Du�ing the pe�iod under review, the Company has altered the provisions of Clause V (Increase in 

Autho�ised Share Capital) of the Memorandum of Association vide Ordina�y resolution passed in 
ththe Extra-ordina�y General meetings held on 13th November, 2024 & 06  March, 2025 and has 

complied with the provisions of the Act.

(b)  Du�ing the pe�iod under review, the Company has altered the provisions of Clause 1A (New Clause 

Inse�ted) of A�ticles of Association vide Special resolution passed in an Extra-ordina�y General 

meeting held on 06th March, 2025 and has complied with the provisions of the Act.

based on the info�mation provided and the representation made by the Company and also on the 

review of compliance repo�ts / ce�tificates taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in 

my opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, �ules, 

regulations and guidelines.

This repo�t is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed hereto and fo�ms integral pa�t of 

this repo�t.

For Akash A & Associates
Company Secreta�ies

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17th Ap�il, 2025

                                                                                                                      Akash Agga�wal
                                                                                                                                (Prop�ietor)

                 ACS No.: 45362/C.P. No.: 20828 
                            UDIN: A045362G000133549 

                    Peer Review Ce�tificate No.1542/2021
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Annexure to Secreta�ial Audit Repo�t of Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited for financial year ended 

31st March, 2025

To,
The Members
Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited
JJT House 44/45, Road No. 2 MIDC,
Mumbai City MH-400093

Sub. : Management Responsibility for Compliances

1. The maintenance and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, �ules, 

regulations, secreta�ial standards is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secreta�ial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were approp�iate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the co�rectness of the contents of the secreta�ial records. The ve�ification was done on test 

basis to ensure that co�rect facts are reflected in secreta�ial records. We believe that the process and 

practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have also relied upon the books, records and documents made available by the Company to us 

through electronic means and in digital fo�mat.

4. I have not ve�ified the co�rectness and approp�iateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company.

5. I have not ve�ified the co�rectness and approp�iateness of the info�mation fu�nished by the Company in 

its NHB / RBI filings and records maintained under the applicable provisions of law.

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

�ules and regulations and happening of events etc.

7. The Secreta�ial Audit repo�t is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Akash A & Associates
Company Secreta�ies

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17th Ap�il, 2025

                                                                                                                      Akash Agga�wal
                                                                                                                                (Prop�ietor)

                 ACS No.: 45362/C.P. No.: 20828 
                            UDIN: A045362G000133549 

                    Peer Review Ce�tificate No.1542/2021
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ANNEXURE-G
Annual Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2024-25

1. B�ief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 

 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of Roha Housing Finance has been developed in 

accordance with Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility) Rules, 2014 and its amendments notified by the Minist�y of Corporate Affairs, 

Gove�nment of India.

 The CSR vision of the Company is to create responsive and empowered communities and to cont�ibute 

to the socio-economic development of the communities through initiatives designed around 

sustainability and gove�nance.

 The CSR Policy, fo�mulated in alignment with the vision of the Company, lays down the guidelines and 

mechanisms to be adopted by the Company to ca��y out CSR Projects/Initiatives.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

 Pursuant to Section 135(1) of the Act stipulates that in case the total amount required to spend on CSR 

by a Company is less than �upees fifty lakh, then the fo�mation of a CSR Committee is not mandato�y for 

the Company. Hence, the Company is not required to fo�m a CSR Committee. 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

board and committee and spending disclosed on the website of the company.

 The web link where the CSR Policy approved by the Board is disclosed is mentioned below. Fu�ther, the 

Company has transfe�red funds to the “JAGDISHPRASAD JHABARMAL TIBREWALA PARMARTH KOSH” 

a registered entity having registration number CSR00005320 to unde�take CSR activities.

 https://rohahousing.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/RHFPL_CSR-Policy.pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR  :   Not Applicable
 projects ca��ied out in pursuance of sub-�ule 
 (3) of �ule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
 Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable 
 (attach the repo�t) 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance  :  Nil 
 of sub-�ule (3) of �ule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
 Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required 
 for set off for the financial year, if any

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) :  Rs. 5,37,52,877

7. (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company  :  Rs.10,75,058/-
  as per Section 135(5) 
       
 (b)  Surplus a�ising out of the CSR projects or 
  programmes or activities of the previous financial years  :  Nil  
 
 (c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year  :  Nil   
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 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)  :  Rs.10,75,058/- 

8. (a)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year  : 
 

 (b)  Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects  :  Nil 
  for the financial year        

 (c)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than  :  Nil 
  ongoing projects for the financial year      

 (d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads  :  Nil   

 (e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable  :  Nil  

 (f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year  :  Nil 
  (8b+8c+8d+8e)   
 
 (g)  Excess amount for set off, if any                    :  Nil        

9. (a)  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding 
  three financial years  :  Nil 

 (b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year 
  for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s) :  Nil

Total amount 
spent for the 
financial year 

(in Rs)

Amount unspent (in Rs)

Total amount transfe�red to 
unspent CSR account as per 

Section 135(6)

Amount transfe�red to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

Section 135(5)

Amount Date of 
transfer

Name of the 
Fund

Amount (Rs) Date of 
transfer

Rs.10,75,058/- NA

S.No Pa�ticular Amount in Rs

1 2% of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) 

2 Total amount spent for the financial year

3 Excess amount spent for the financial year (ii) –(i)

4 Surplus a�ising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years, if any

5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years (iii) –(iv)

S. 
No.

Preceding 
financial 

year

Amount 
transfe�red to 
CSR account 

under Section 
135(6) in Rs

Amount 
spent in the 

repo�ting 
financial 

year (in Rs)

Amount transfe�red to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per Section 135(6) if any

Amount 
remaining to be 

spent in 
succeeding 

financial years 
(in Rs)

Name of 
the fund

Amount 
in Rs

Date of 
transfer

1

2

3

Total
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, fu�nish the  :  Nil 
 details relating to the asset so created or acquired through 
 CSR spent in the financial year       

 (a)  Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)  :  Nil   

 (b)  Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of  :  Nil 
  capital asset              

 (c)  Details of the entity or public autho�ity or  :  Nil 
  beneficia�y under whose name such capital asset 
  is registered, their address etc.  

 (d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or  :  Nil 
  acquired (including complete address and location of 
  the capital asset)  

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 

Section 135(5)- Nil 

                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
                      Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited 

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th Ap�il 2025            

 Sd/- Sd/- 
 Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala Sunil Kapoor
  Chai�man & Director                         Managing Director & CEO
 DIN: 01342061  DIN: 01436404                       
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited

Repo�t on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited (" the Company"), which 

comp�ise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of 

Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summa�y of 

significant accounting policies and other explanato�y info�mation (hereinafter refe�red to as the “Financial 

Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our info�mation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

financial statements give the info�mation required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so 

required and give a t�ue and fair view in confo�mity with the Accounting Standards presc�ibed under section 

133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021  and other accounting 

p�inciples generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its 

profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are fu�ther desc�ibed in the Audito�'s Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repo�t. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Cha�tered Accountants of India ("ICAI") 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and approp�iate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Info�mation Other than the Financial Statements and Audito�'s Repo�t Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other info�mation. The other info�mation comp�ises 

the Directo�' s repo�t but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor ' s repo�t thereon. The 

Directo�'s repo�t is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audito�'s repo�t.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other info�mation and we will not express any 

fo�m of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other info�mation 

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other info�mation is 

mate�ially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or othe�wise 

appears to be mate�ially misstated.

When we read the Directo�'s repo�t, if we conclude that there is a mate�ial misstatement therein, we are 

required to communicate the matter to those charged with gove�nance under SA 720 'The Audito�'s 

responsibilities relating to other info�mation'.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Gove�nance for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
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respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a t�ue and fair view of the financial 

position, financial pe�fo�mance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

p�inciples generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 

the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2021. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other i�regula�ities; selection and 

application of approp�iate of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

p�udent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate inte�nal financial controls , that were 

operating effectively for ensu�ing the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a t�ue and fair view and are free from 

mate�ial misstatement, whether due to fraud or e�ror.

In prepa�ing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going conce�n, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going conce�n and using 

the going conce�n basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company 

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alte�native but to do so. 

Those Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repo�ting 

process.

Audito�'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from mate�ial misstatement, whether due to fraud or e�ror, and to issue an audito�'s repo�t that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a mate�ial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can a�ise from fraud or e�ror and are considered mate�ial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.

As pa�t of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Identify and assess the �isks of mate�ial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or e�ror, design and pe�fo�m audit procedures responsive to those �isks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and approp�iate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The �isk of not detecting a mate�ial 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from e�ror, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forge�y, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ove��ide of inte�nal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of inte�nal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are approp�iate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has inte�nal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Ÿ Evaluate the approp�iateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Ÿ Conclude on the approp�iateness of management's use of the going conce�n basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mate�ial unce�tainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going conce�n. If 

we conclude that a mate�ial unce�tainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audito�'s repo�t 

to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor ' s 



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

ROHA HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

72

repo�t. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

conce�n.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, st�ucture and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with gove�nance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

inte�nal control that we identify du�ing our audit.

We also provide those charged with gove�nance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards.

Repo�t on Other Legal and Regulato�y Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Audito�'s Repo�t) Order, 2020 ("the Orde�"), issued by the Central 

Gove�nment of India in te�ms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in " Annexure A" a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repo�t to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the info�mation and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessa�y for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by 

this Repo�t are in agreement with the books of accounts;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

e. On the basis of the w�itten representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from 

being appointed as a director in te�ms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Repo�t in "Annexure B". Our repo�t expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 

and operating effectiveness of the Company's inte�nal financial controls over financial 

statements.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito�'s Repo�t in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our info�mation and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-te�m contracts including de�ivative contracts as at the 

year-end for which there were any mate�ial foreseeable losses.



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

ROHA HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

73

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transfe�red to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company du�ing the year ended March 31, 2025.

iv. (a)  The Management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are mate�ial either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from bo�rowed funds or share premium or any other sources 

or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 

entities (“Inte�media�ies”), with the understanding, whether recorded in w�iting or 

othe�wise, that the Inte�media�y shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

company (“Ultimate Beneficia�ies”) or provide any guarantee, secu�ity or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficia�ies;

 (b)  Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are mate�ial either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by 

the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 

Pa�ties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in w�iting or othe�wise, that the 

company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pa�ty (“Ultimate 

Beneficia�ies”) or provide any guarantee, secu�ity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficia�ies

 (c)  Based on our audit procedure that have been considered reasonable and approp�iate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the 

representation given by the management under sub-clauses (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 

provided under paragraph (2)(g)(iv)(a) & (b) above, contain any mate�ial misstatement.

  v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend du�ing the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

software's for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

which has a features of accounting audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been 

operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software's. Du�ing 

our audit, we did not come across any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with 

and the audit trail has been prese�ved by the Company as per the statuto�y requirements for 

record retention.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito�'s Repo�t in accordance with the 

requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion, according to info�mation, explanations given to 

us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act and the �ules made thereunder are not applicable to the 

Company as it is a p�ivate company.

For Sh�idhar & Associates
Cha�tered Accountants
ICAI Fi�m Registration: 134427W

Sd/-
Abhishek Pachlangia
Pa�tner
Membership Number: 120593
UDIN : 25120593BMHZJX7708

Place : Mumbai
Date : Ap�il 30, 2025
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ANNEXURE A  
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ROHA 
HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Refe�red to in paragraph 1 under ' Repo�t on Other Legal and Regulato�y Requirements' section in the 

Independent Audito�'s Repo�t of even date]

In te�ms of the info�mation and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and books of accounts 

and records examined by us in the no�mal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we 

repo�t that : 

i. (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa�ticulars including quantitative 

details and situation of prope�ty, plant and equipment.

  (B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa�ticulars of Intangible Assets.

 (b) All Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment were not physically ve�ified by the management of the 

Company, but there is a planned programme of ve�ifying them once in eve�y two years, which in 

our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets..

 (c) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, we repo�t that as on March 31, 2025 the Company does not have any 

immovable prope�ties (other than prope�ties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 

agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed under prope�ty, plant and 

equipment. However, the Company has acquired immovable prope�ties against satisfaction of 

debts from va�ious bo�rowers who have defaulted in repayment of p�incipal and interest which are 

disclosed in Note 18 read with note no. 18.1, 18.2 and 18.3. Details of such acquired prope�ties 

which are not in the name of the Company is as under:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

  

  

Desc�iption 
of prope�ty

Gross 
ca��ying 

value 
(Amount)

Held in the 
name of

Whether promoter, 
director or their 

relative or employee

Pe�iod held 
–indicate range, 

where 
approp�iate

Reason for not 
being held in 

name of 
company

Land and 
Building

91.45 Multiple 
owners *

No  FY 2024-2025 **

Building 535.94 Multiple 
owners *

No FY 2024-2025 **

Land and 
Building

109.94 Multiple 
owners *

No  FY 2023-2024 **

Building 363.72 Multiple 
owners *

No  FY 2023-2024 **

Land and 
Building

142.08 Multiple 
owners *

No  FY 2022-2023 **

Building 258.52 Multiple 
owners *

No FY 2022-2023 **

Land and 
Building

58.76 Multiple 
owners *

No FY 2021-2022 **

Building 187.04 Multiple 
owners *

No  FY 2021-2022 **
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  * The immovable prope�ties acquired against satisfaction of debt from va�ious bo�rowers who 

have defaulted in repayment of p�incipal and interest are in the name of bo�rower.

  ** The Company has taken possession of the immovable prope�ties under SARFAESI Act, 2002 

and hold such prope�ties for disposal. Hence, the title of the immovable prope�ties are not in the 

name of the Company.

  Note: Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts other than those acquired under Secu�itization and 

Reconst�uction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Secu�ity Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI Act, 

2002) as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 83.79 lakhs and as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 83.79 lakhs, the title 

of which is in the name of the Company.

 (d) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of 

records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its prope�ty, plant and equipment or 

intangible assets or both du�ing the year. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(i)(d) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (e) In accordance with the representations made to us by the management, there have not been any 

proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami prope�ty under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (section 45 of 1988) and �ules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company is p�ima�ily engaged in the business of providing housing finance and it does not 

hold any physical invento�ies. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company.

 (b) According to info�mation and explanation given to us and on the basis of or examination of records 

of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, 

in aggregate, at points of time du�ing the year from banks on the basis of secu�ity of fixed 

deposits/ loans receivables. In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanations 

given to us, the qua�terly retu�ns / statements filed by the Company with such banks are in 

agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company of the respective qua�ters.

  Fu�ther, according to info�mation and explanation given to us and on the basis of or examination of 

records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from 

financial institutions on the basis of secu�ity of cu�rent assets.

iii. (a) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or secu�ity or granted any 

loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, fi�ms, Limited 

Liability Pa�tnerships or any other pa�ties other than loans given in the no�mal course of business 

of the Company. The Company is housing finance company whose p�incipal business is to give 

loans, and accordingly, repo�ting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) Du�ing the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantee or secu�ity. Du�ing 

the year the Company has given loans and advance in the nature of loans, being Housing Finance 

Company. The te�ms and conditions of the grant of these loans and advances in the nature of 

loans, in our opinion, p�ima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

 (c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans (together refe�red to as “loan assets”), the 

schedule of repayment of p�incipal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Note 2 (j) to the 

Financial Statements explains the Company's accounting policy relating to provisioning of loans 

assets. In accordance with that policy, loan assets with balances as at March 31, 2025, 

aggregating Rs. 776.43 lakhs were catego�ized as non-pe�fo�ming assets. Disclosures in respect 

of such loans have been provided in Note 34 (II), to the Financial Statements. Fu�ther there were 
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ce�tain loans amounting to Rs. 5,849.73 lakhs where the bo�rower has defaulted in repayment of 

p�incipal and interest, which were not required to be classified as non-pe�fo�ming assets as per 

RBI no�ms.

  Having regard to the nature of the Company's business and the volume of info�mation involved, it 

is not practicable to provide an itemized list of loan assets where delinquencies in the repayment 

of p�incipal and interest have been identified. 

 (d) The total amount overdue for more than ninety days, in respect of loans and advances in the 

nature of loans, as at the year-end is Rs. 776.43 lakhs. We are info�med that reasonable steps are 

been taken by the Company for recove�y of the p�incipal and interest as stated in the applicable 

Regulations and Loan agreements.

 (e) The Company is Housing Finance Company and p�incipal business is to give loans. Accordingly, 

repo�ting under the clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (f) According to info�mation and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

pe�fo�med, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 

repayable on demand or without specifying any te�ms or pe�iod of repayment du�ing the year. 

Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the 

director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has 

not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the 

provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(iv) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company.

v. According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits 

or amount which are deemed to be deposit from the public and hence the directives issued by the 

Rese�ve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act 

and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 with regard to the deposits accepted from the 

public are not applicable. Fu�ther, according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, no order 

has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company Law T�ibunal or the Rese�ve 

Bank of India or any Cou�t or any other T�ibunal. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(v) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Central 

Gove�nment has not presc�ibed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, in 

respect of the business activities ca��ied on by the Company. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 

3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) According to info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed 

statuto�y dues including Goods and Se�vices Tax (GST), provident fund, employees' state 

insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, se�vice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 

cess and any other statuto�y dues, to the extent applicable to the Company, with the approp�iate 

autho�ities.

  According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, 

Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statuto�y dues were in 

a�rears as at March 31, 2025 for a pe�iod of more than six months from the date they became 

payable.
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 (b) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, there are no statuto�y dues relating to GST, Provident Fund, 

Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Se�vice Tax, Duty of Customs, Value Added 

Tax or Cess or other statuto�y dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not su�rendered or disclosed any transactions, previously 

unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

as income du�ing the year.

ix. (a) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us by the management and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment 

of loans or bo�rowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender du�ing the year.

 (b) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and management representation 

received, du�ing the year (and up to the date of this repo�t), the Company has not been declared a 

willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gove�nment or gove�nment autho�ity.

 (c) According to the info�mation and explanation given to us by the management and based on the 

examination of records of the Company, in our opinion the te�m loans were applied for the purpose 

for which the loans were obtained.

 (d) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

balance sheet of the Company, we repo�t that no funds raised on sho�t-te�m basis, p�ima facie, 

have been used for long-te�m purposes by the Company.

 (e) According to the info�mation and explanation given to us by the management and examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company does not have any investment in subsidia�ies, joint 

ventures or associate companies. Hence, the question of raising any funds from any entity or 

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidia�ies, associates or joint ventures 

does not a�ise. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

 (f) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us by the management and examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company does not have any investment in subsidia�ies, joint 

ventures or associate companies. Hence, the question of raising loan du�ing the year against the 

pledge of secu�ities held in subsidia�ies, joint ventures or associate companies does not a�ise. 

Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x. (a) According to the info�mation and explanations provided to us by the management and 

examination of records of the Company, we are of the opinion that the Company has not raised any 

money by way of initial public offer or fu�ther public offer (including debt inst�uments) du�ing the 

year. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

 (b) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, du�ing the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment 

or p�ivate placement of shares or fully or pa�tly conve�tible debentures. Accordingly, clause 

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. However, du�ing the year, the Company has received funds 

by way of �ight issue of equity shares.

xi. (a) Du�ing the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, ca��ied out 

in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
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info�mation and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of mate�ial 

fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or repo�ted du�ing the year nor have we been 

info�med of such cases by the management of the Company.

 (b) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us including the representation made to us 

by the management of the Company, no repo�t under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has 

been filed by the auditors in Fo�m ADT-4 as presc�ibed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Gove�nment for the year covered by our audit du�ing the 

year and up to date of this repo�t. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company.

 (c) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has 

implemented whistle blower mechanism as required under section 177(9) of the Act and 

management represented that du�ing the year (and up to the date of this repo�t) the Company has 

not received any whistle blower complaints.

xii. According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 

Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, transactions entered into by the Company with the related pa�ties are in compliance 

with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in 

the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS 18), “Related Pa�ty Disclosures” 

presc�ibed under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant �ules issued thereunder. 

Fu�ther the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act, and 

accordingly, to this extent, the provisions stated in clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company.

xix. (a) According to info�mation and explanation given to us by the management and based on our audit 

procedure, in our opinion the Company has an inte�nal audit system commensurate with the size 

and nature of its business.

 (b) We have considered, the inte�nal audit repo�ts for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

du�ing the year and till date, in dete�mining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with him. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

xvi. (a) According to the info�mation and explanation given, the Company is not required to be registered 

under section 45-IA of the Rese�ve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company has obtained a 

ce�tificate of registration under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

 (b) According to the info�mation and explanation given, the Company has conducted its housing 

finance activities with a valid Ce�tificate of Registration (CoR) from the National Housing Bank of 

India (NHB). In te�ms of repo�t dated June 17, 2020 of the Rese�ve Bank of India (RBI), existing 

HFCs holding CoR issued by NHB need not approach RBI for fresh CoR.

 (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Rese�ve Bank of India. Accordingly, repo�ting under the clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 

applicable.
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 (d) According to the info�mation and explanations provided to us du�ing the course of audit and as 

represented by the management, the Group has one CIC.

xvii. Based on the examination of the records of the Company we repo�t that the company has not incu�red 

cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statuto�y auditors of the Company. Accordingly, repo�ting under 

the clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix. According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 

info�mation accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 

Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence suppo�ting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any mate�ial 

unce�tainty exists as on the date of the audit repo�t that the Company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pe�iod of one year from 

the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company. We fu�ther state that our repo�ting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit repo�t and 

we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a pe�iod of one year 

from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a)  According to info�mation and explanation provided to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate 

Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, provisions of 

repo�ting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

 (b)  According to info�mation and explanation provided to us the Company does not have any ongoing 

project with respect to CSR. Accodginly, repo�ting under the Clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company.

xxi. The Company is not required to prepare the Consolidated Financial Statement. Accordingly, repo�ting 

under the Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Sh�idhar & Associates
Cha�tered Accountants
ICAI Fi�m Registration: 134427W

Sd/-
Abhishek Pachlangia
Pa�tner
Membership Number: 120593
UDIN : 25120593BMHZJX7708

Place : Mumbai
Date : Ap�il 30, 2025
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ANNEXURE B  
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ROHA 
HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

[Refe�red to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Repo�t on Other Legal and Regulato�y Requirements in the ' 

Independent Audito�'s Repo�t of even date to the Members of Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited on the 

Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Repo�t on the Inte�nal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Opinion

We have audited the inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Roha Housing 

Finance P�ivate Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all mate�ial respects, adequate inte�nal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements and such inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the inte�nal control with reference to financial 

statements c�ite�ia established by the Company conside�ing the essential components of inte�nal control 

stated in the Guidance Note.

Management's Responsibility for Inte�nal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining inte�nal financial controls 

based on the inte�nal control with reference to financial statements c�ite�ia established by the Company 

conside�ing the essential components of inte�nal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inte�nal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Repo�ting issued by the Institute of Cha�tered Accountants of India (ICAI) 

(the "Guidance Note"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

inte�nal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensu�ing the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and e�rors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial info�mation, as required under the Act.

Audito�'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's inte�nal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 

the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be presc�ibed under section 143(10) of the Act, to 

the extent applicable to an audit of inte�nal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pe�fo�m the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all mate�ial respects.

Our audit involves pe�fo�ming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the inte�nal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 

inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements assessing the �isk that a mate�ial weakness , 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of inte�nal control based on the 

assessed �isk. The procedures selected depend on the audito�'s judgement including the assessment of , 

the �isks of mate�ial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or e�ror.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approp�iate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company's inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Inte�nal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's inte�nal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repo�ting and the preparation of financial 

statements for exte�nal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting p�inciples. A 

Company's inte�nal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and 

procedures that (1) pe�tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 

that transactions are recorded as necessa�y to pe�mit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting p�inciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with autho�izations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautho�ized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the Company's assets that could have a mate�ial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Inte�nal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management ove��ide of controls, mate�ial misstatements 

due to e�ror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the inte�nal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements to future pe�iods are subject to the �isk that the 

inte�nal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may dete�iorate.

For Sh�idhar & Associates
Cha�tered Accountants
ICAI Fi�m Registration: 134427W

Sd/-
Abhishek Pachlangia
Pa�tner
Membership Number: 120593
UDIN : 25120593BMHZJX7708

Place : Mumbai
Date : Ap�il 30, 2025
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AUDITOR'S ADDITIONAL REPORT
To,
The Board of Directors,
Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited 
JJT House, 44/45, Road No. 2, MIDC,
Mumbai – 400 093.

1. This repo�t is issued in accordance with the requirements of Master Direction Non-Banking Financial 

Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2022 vide Ref. No. RBI/2020-21/73 

DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated Feb�ua�y 17, 2021 (Updated as on Feb�ua�y 27, 

2025) (hereinafter refe�red to as the “Master Directions”) issued by the Rese�ve Bank of India (“RBI”).

2. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited 

(hereinafter refe�red to as the “Company”) comp�ising the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the 

related Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, on 

which we have issued our repo�t dated Ap�il 30, 2025.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

3. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a t�ue and fair view of the financial 

position, financial pe�fo�mance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

p�inciples generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 

of the Act . This responsibility also read with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2021

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

i�regula�ities; selection and application of approp�iate of accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and p�udent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

inte�nal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensu�ing the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that 

give a t�ue and fair view and are free from mate�ial misstatement, whether due to fraud or e�ror.

4. In prepa�ing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going conce�n, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

conce�n and using the going conce�n basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends 

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alte�native but to do so.

 Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repo�ting 

process.

5. The Management of the Company is also responsible for compliance with the National Housing Bank 

Act, 1987 and other relevant National Housing Bank (hereinafter refe�red to as the “NHB”) / RBI 

Directions, Circulars, Notifications, Guidelines applicable to Housing Financial Companies, as amended 

from time to time, and for providing all the required info�mation to the NHB/RBI.

Audito�'s Responsibility

6. Pursuant to the requirements of the Directions refe�red to in paragraph 1 above, it is our responsibility to 

examine the audited books and records of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 and repo�t 

on the matters specified in paragraph 70.1 of Chapter XII – Audito�'s Repo�t of the Master Directions to 

the extent applicable to the Company.
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7. We conducted our examination in accordance with the 'Guidance Note on Repo�ts or Ce�tificates for 

Special Purposes' issued by the Institute of Cha�tered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note 

requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Cha�tered Accountants of India.

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 

1, “Quality Control for Fi�ms that Pe�fo�m Audit and Reviews of Histo�ical Financial Info�mation, and 

other Assurance and Related Se�vices Engagements".

Opinion

9. Based on our examination of the audited books and records of the Company for the year ended March 

31, 2025 as produced for our examination and the info�mation and explanations given to us, we repo�t 

that:

9.1 The Company is engaged in the business of Housing finance and has obtained a ce�tificate of 

registration No. 12.0165.17 dated December 12, 2017 from the NHB. Fu�ther, the Company is also 

meeting the P�incipal Business C�ite�ia as specified in paragraph 4.1.17.

9.2 The Company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as presc�ibed under Section 

29A of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 including paid-up preference shares which are 

compulso�ily conve�tible into equity.

9.3 The Company is in compliance with the provisions of Section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 

1987.

9.4 The total bo�rowings of the Company are within the limits presc�ibed under paragraph 27.2 of the 

Master Directions.

9.5 The Company has complied with the p�udential no�ms on income recognition, accounting 

standards, asset classification, loan-to-value ratio, provisioning requirements, disclosure in 

balance sheet, investment in real estate, exposure to capital market and engagement of brokers, 

and concentration of credit/investments as specified in the Master Directions.

  The Company has complied with loan to value ratio (LTV) at the time of grant of loans. However, as 

on March 31, 2025, the LTV of the following cases exceed the regulato�y limits:

9.6 The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the half-yearly statuto�y retu�n for the pe�iod ended 

September 30, 2024 submitted to the NHB in te�ms of the 'Master Circular – Retu�ns to be 

submitted by Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)' vide Ref. No. NHB(ND)/DOS/Susp. Circular No. 

5/2020-21 dated Ap�il 13, 2022 has been co�rectly dete�mined and it is in compliance with the 

minimum capital to �isk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) presc�ibed therein. Fu�ther, as info�med by 

the management, the Company has complied with the capital adequacy ratio / CRAR for the yearly 

pe�iod ended March 31, 2025 and statuto�y retu�n for the said pe�iod will be filed in the due course.

Requirement as per NHB No. of 
cases

Amount Outstanding as on 
March 31, 2025 (Rs.)

Upto 30 lakh with LTV ratio
exceeding 90 per cent

8 12,416,412

Above 30 lakh and up to 75 lakh
with LTV ratio exceeding 80 per cent

5 21,633,401
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9.7 The Company has fu�nished to the NHB within the stipulated pe�iod the half-yearly statuto�y 

retu�n as specified in the 'Master Circular – Retu�ns to be submitted by Housing Finance 

Companies (HFCs)' vide Ref. No. NHB(ND)/DOS/Susp. Circular No. 5/2020-21 dated Ap�il 13, 2021.

9.8 The Company has fu�nished to the NHB within stipulated pe�iod the qua�terly statuto�y retu�n as 

specified in the 'Master Circular – Retu�ns to be submitted by Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)' 

vide Ref. No. NHB(ND)/DOS/Susp. Circular No. 5/2020-21 dated Ap�il 13, 2021.

9.9 The Company has complied with the requirements contained in the Master Directions in the case 

of opening of new branches / offices or in the case of closure of existing branches / offices.

9.10 The Company has complied with the provisions contained in paragraph 3.1.3, paragraph 3.1.4 and 

paragraph 18 of the Master Directions, to the extent applicable to the Company.

9.11 The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution on May 09, 2024 for non- 

acceptance of public deposits.

9.12 The Company has not accepted any public deposits du�ing the year ended March 31, 2025.

Rest�iction on Use

10. This repo�t is addressed to Board of Directors and provided to the Management of the Company solely 

for the purpose of compliance with requirement of the Directions. It should not be used by any other 

person or for any other purpose. Sh�idhar & Associates shall not be liable to the Company or to any 

other conce�ned for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment.

11. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any 

other person to whom this ce�tificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our p�ior 

consent in w�iting.

For Sh�idhar & Associates
Cha�tered Accountants
ICAI Fi�m Registration Number: 134427W

Abhishek Pachlangia
Pa�tner
Membership Number: 120953
UDIN: 25120593BMHZJY5369

Place : Mumbai 
Date : Ap�il 30, 2024
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise) (Amount in ` lakhs)

Notes
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 March 2024
Pa�ticulars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES       
      
1 SHARE HOLDERS’ FUNDS      
 (a) Share capital  3  18,050.00   16,875.00 
 (b) Rese�ves and surplus  4  10,173.10  6,186.37 
 Total share holde�'s fund   28,223.10   23,061.37 
      
2 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      
 (a) Long-te�m bo�rowings 5  45,626.33   38,462.40 
 (b) Other long te�m liabilities  6  16.33   21.80 
 (c) Long te�m provisions 7  27.28   1.85 
 Total non-Cu�rent Liabilities   45,669.94   38,486.05 
      
3 CURRENT LIABILITIES      
 (a) Sho�t te�m bo�rowings 8  13,850.80   11,518.66 
 (b) Trade payable 9  
   (i)  Total outstanding dues of micro 
   enterp�ises and small enterp�ises and   28.86   14.38 
   (ii)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
   than micro enterp�ises and small enterp�ises   73.90   111.63 
 (c) Other cu�rent liabilities 10  1,862.81   598.48 
 (d) Sho�t te�m provisions 7  12.26   44.11 
 Total Cu�rent liabilities   15,828.63   12,287.26 
      
     TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 89,721.67   73,834.68 
      
ASSETS    
      
1 NON- CURRENT ASSETS   
 (a) Prope�ty, plant and equipment and 
  intangible assets      
   (i)  Prope�ty, plant and equipment  11 (a)  99.52   104.98 
   (ii)  Intangible assets  11 (b)  12.80   6.02 
 (b) Defe�red tax assets (net) 12  178.10   134.36 
 (c) Long te�m loans & advances 13  82,368.02   67,700.39 
 (d) Other non-cu�rent assets 14  667.88   1,165.92 
 Total Non Cu�rent Assets    83,326.32   69,111.67 
      
2 CURRENT ASSETS      
 (a)  Trade receivables  15  175.28   416.33 
 (b)  Cash and bank balance  16  952.47   356.90 
 (c)  Sho�t te�m loans and advances  17  2,288.35   1,757.06 
 (d)  Other cu�rent assets  18  2,979.25   2,192.72 
 Total Cu�rent Assets    6,395.35   4,723.01 
      
  TOTAL ASSETS    89,721.67   73,834.68 
 
 The accompanying notes fo�m an integral pa�t of 
 these  Financial Statements.  1 - 53 

As per our repo�t of even date

For Sh�idhar & Associates
Cha�tered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 134427W

Sd/-
Abhishek Pachlangia
Pa�tner
Membership No.: 120593

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited
CIN:U65999MH2017PTC293277

Sd/-
Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala
Chai�man
DIN: 01342061

Sd/-
Sunil Kapoor
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01436404

Sd/-
Pankaj Rawat
Company Secreta�y
M. No. A45360

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise) (Amount in ` lakhs)

Notes
Year ended 

31 March 2025
Year ended 

31 March 2024
Pa�ticulars

I Revenue from operations      
 (i) Interest income  19  11,202.52   8,760.90 
  (ii) Fees and other charges  20  1,961.86   1,679.50 
 Total Revenue from operations    13,164.38   10,440.40 
II   Other income  21  210.99   611.47 
III Total Income (I + II)    13,375.37   11,051.87 
      
IV  Expenses      
 (i) Employee benefits expense  22  5,246.66   4,649.12 
 (ii) Finance costs  23  5,614.40   4,321.99 
 (iii) Depreciation and amo�tisation expenses  24  51.05   45.45 
 (iv) Provision on loans and advances  25  143.69   113.88 
 (v) Other expenses  26  1,702.19   1,219.43 
 Total Expenses    12,757.99   10,349.87 
      
V Profit before tax (III-IV)   617.38   702.00 
      
VI Tax expense:   27   
 (i) Cu�rent tax    200.76   210.18  
 (ii) Defe�red tax credit    (43.74)  (21.41) 
 (iii) Adjustment for previous years    (1.37)  -    
       155.65   188.77 
      
VII Profit for the year (V-VI)   461.73   513.23 
      
IX Ea�nings per equity share 
 (nominal value per share of Rs.10 each, 
 (P.Y Rs. 10 each))  28   
 Basic (Rs.)    0.27   0.31 
 Diluted (Rs.)    0.27   0.31 
      
 The accompanying notes fo�m an integral pa�t of 
 these  Financial Statements.  1 - 53 

As per our repo�t of even date

For Sh�idhar & Associates
Cha�tered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 134427W

Sd/-
Abhishek Pachlangia
Pa�tner
Membership No.: 120593

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited
CIN:U65999MH2017PTC293277

Sd/-
Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala
Chai�man
DIN: 01342061

Sd/-
Sunil Kapoor
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01436404

Sd/-
Pankaj Rawat
Company Secreta�y
M. No. A45360

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise) (Amount in ` lakhs)

For the 
year ended 

31 March 2025

For the 
year ended 

31 March 2024
Pa�ticulars

A  Cash flow from operating activities:       
 Net profit before tax    617.38   702.00 
  Adjustments for :     
  Depreciation/amo�tisation    51.05   45.45 
  Loss on sale of prope�ty, plant and equipment   0.06   -   
  Provision for gratuity and compensated absences   50.49   40.32 
  Interest income on bank deposits   (463.41)  (370.77)
  Interest expenses   5,362.23   4,154.21 
  Provision w�ite back   -     (3.71)
  Provision on Lease equalisation rese�ve   (1.38)  0.20 
  Provision on loan assets   143.69   113.88 
  Payment on increase in autho�ised share capital   10.84   -   
 Operating profit before working capital changes    5,770.95   4,681.58 
  Adjustments for:     
  (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables   241.05   (184.45)
  (Increase)/Decrease in sho�t/long te�m loans and advances  (15,342.61)  (18,050.89)
  (Increase)/Decrease in other non cu�rent assets   4.30   (16.18)
  (Increase)/Decrease in other cu�rent assets   (729.11)  (338.75)
  Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables   (23.25)  (16.16)
  Increase/(Decrease) in other cu�rent liabilities   1,268.28   (2,110.74)
  Increase/(Decrease) in provisions   (58.72)  (41.71)
 Cash flow /(used in) operation    (8,869.11)  (16,077.30)
  Interest paid on bo�rowings   (5,370.27)  (4,151.37)
  Interest received on bank deposits   428.72   370.77 
  Income taxes paid (Net of TDS And Advance Tax)   (255.08)  (229.73)
 Net cash flows (used in) operating activities    (14,065.74)  (20,087.63)
       
B  Cash flows from investing activities:       
  Proceeds from sale of  prope�ty, plant and equipment  0.04   -   
  Purchase of prope�ty, plant and equipment, 
  intangible assets under development and intangible assets  (52.47)  (67.30)
  Deposits placed / (matured) with banks (Net)   141.40   2,900.75 
 Net cash flow from /(used in) investing activities    88.97   2,833.45 
       
C  Cash flows from financing activities:       
  Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including premium)  4,700.00   2,900.00 
  Proceeds from long te�m bo�rowings   23,725.00  28,500.00 
  Repayment of long te�m bo�rowings   (14,220.03)  (13,924.25)
  Proceeds from / (repayment of) sho�t te�m bo�rowings (net)  (8.90)  (52.13)
  Payment on increase in autho�ised share capital   (10.84)  -   
 Net cash flows from financing activities    14,185.23   17,423.62 
        -   
D  Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C)   208.46   169.44 
        -   
E   Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    224.66   55.22 
       
F   Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D + E)   433.12   224.66 
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  Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as above with other bank balances     
       
  Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year as per above  433.12   224.66 
  Add: Fixed deposits with o�iginal matu�ity over 3 months  519.35   132.24 
  Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance as at the 
  end of the year   952.47   356.90 
       
  1  The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting 

Standard 3 on Cash Flow statement as specified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021      

 2  Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year include:      
  Cash on hand   83.86   15.79 
  Cheques on hand   14.93   -   
  Balances with banks:      
     - in cu�rent accounts    214.89   208.87 
     - in te�m deposits with o�iginal matu�ity of 
   less than three months*    119.44   -   
  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   433.12   224.66 
       
The accompanying notes fo�m an integral pa�t of these  
Financial Statements.   1 - 53    

As per our repo�t of even date

For Sh�idhar & Associates
Cha�tered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 134427W

Sd/-
Abhishek Pachlangia
Pa�tner
Membership No.: 120593

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited
CIN:U65999MH2017PTC293277

Sd/-
Mahesh Ramakant Tibrewala
Chai�man
DIN: 01342061

Sd/-
Sunil Kapoor
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01436404

Sd/-
Pankaj Rawat
Company Secreta�y
M. No. A45360

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Ap�il 2025
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIALS STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 

1 Ove�view

 Roha Housing Finance P�ivate Limited (RHFPL) was incorporated on March 31, 2017 in Mumbai and 

registered with Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra. RHFPL is p�incipally engaged in the business of 

providing affordable housing finance. RHFPL is registered with National Housing Bank (NHB) and NHB 

has granted RHFPL a ce�tificate of registration on December 12, 2017 vide Ce�tificate No.12.0165.17. to 

commence the business of a housing finance institution without accepting public deposits. The 

presented accounts are for the pe�iod 1st Ap�il 2024 to 31st March 2025.
  
2 Significant accounting policies   
  
a.  Basis of preparation of financial statements 

 The financial statements which have been prepared under histo�ical cost convention on the acc�ual 

basis of accounting, are in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 

(the “Act”) and comply in all mate�ial aspects with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 

133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other relevant 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The National Housing Bank Act, 1987, Master Direction – Non-

Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 as amended 

from time to time.  
    
 All assets and liabilities have been classified as cu�rent or non-cu�rent as per the Company's no�mal 

operating cycle and other c�ite�ia set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of work and 

the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 

equivalents, the Company has asce�tained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose 

of cu�rent and non-cu�rent classification of assets and liabilities.
    
 The Company complies with the p�udential no�ms in all mate�ial respects relating to income 

recognition, asset classification, and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts and other matters 

specified in the directions and guidelines issued by National Housing Bank to the extent applicable.  
    
 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those 

followed in the previous year.   
    
b. Use of estimates  
 
 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting p�inciples 

('GAAP') in India requires that management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the repo�ted 

amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial 

statements and the repo�ted amount of revenue and expenses du�ing the pe�iod. Management 

believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are 

p�udent and reasonable and based on management's evaluation of the facts and circumstances as of 

the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to 

accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in cu�rent and future years affected. 
    
c. Revenue recognition

 i)  Revenue from housing and other prope�ty loans   
 
  Repayment of housing and other prope�ty loan is by way of Equated Monthly Instalment (EMIs) 

comp�ising p�incipal and interest. Interest is calculated on monthly rest basis. Interest income is 
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allocated over the contractual te�m of the loan by applying the committed interest rate to the 

outstanding amount of loan. Interest income is acc�ued as ea�ned with the passage of time. 

Revenue from interest on non-pe�fo�ming assets is recognised on a receipt basis as per the 

guidelines presc�ibed by the NHB. 

  Log-in fees, CERSAI fees, ve�ification, legal & technical fees and other loan related charges are 

recognised when it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection which is generally at the time of Log 

in / disbursement of the loan. Cheque retu�n charges, foreclosure charges and penal interest is 

recognised on receipt basis 
    
 ii)  Revenue from other income   
 
  a)   Revenue is recognised to the extent, that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.   
 
  b)   Interest income on fixed deposits with banks is recognised on a time propo�tion basis.
    
d.  Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets   
 
 (A)  Tangible Assets   
 
  Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment, are stated at the cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation 

and impai�ment, if any thereon. The cost of acquisition includes purchase cost, taxes, duties, 

freight and other incidental costs which relate to the acquisition of Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment 

and any att�ibutable cost of b�inging the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Gain or 

loss on sale of tangible assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss after conside�ing 

the cost less accumulated depreciation on the same.
    
 (B)  Intangible Assets
   
  Intangible assets including software are capitalized where it is expected to provide future 

economic benefits and cost can be measured reliably. Costs include the expenses directly 

att�ibutable in prepa�ing the asset for its intended use. Intangible assets acquired separately are 

measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes o�iginal cost of acquisition, including 

incidental expenses related to such acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 

ca��ied at cost less accumulated amo�tization and accumulated impai�ment loss, if any. Gain or 

loss on sale of intangible assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss after 

conside�ing the cost less accumulated depreciation on the same.
    
e. Depreciation and Amo�tisation   
 
 Based on management's evaluation, useful life presc�ibed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 

represent actual useful life of Prope�ty, plant and equipment and Intangible assets. The Company uses 

Straight Line method and has used following useful lives to provide depreciation of different class of its 

Prope�ty, plant and equipment and amo�tisation Intangible assets.
  
 Pa�ticulars                                               Estimated Useful life of in years  
 IT equipment's                                6 years  
 Leasehold Improvements                  Lower of lease pe�iod or life of assets  
 Office Equipment's                          5 years  
 Laptops, Desktops                            3 years  
 Fu�niture & Fixtures                         10 years  
 Computer Software                            5 years  
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 Depreciation on addition to tangible Prope�ty, plant and equipment  is provided from the sta�t of the 

month in which the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from tangible 

Prope�ty, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of Prope�ty, 

Plant and Equipment as the case may be.    
    
 Life of Leasehold improvement is taken lower of lease pe�iod or life of assets, which is considered 5 

years   
    
f. Impai�ment of assets  
 
 The ca��ying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance sheet date, if there is any indication of 

impai�ment based on inte�nal/exte�nal factors. An impai�ment loss is recognized wherever the ca��ying 

amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of 

the assets net selling p�ice and value in use. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash 

flows are discounted to the present value using the weighted average cost of capital. After impai�ment, 

depreciation is provided on revised ca��ying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life. 

g. Investments 
  
 Transactions for purchase and sale of investments are recorded as at the trade date
    
 Investments are accounted at cost inclusive & brokerage, fees and stamp charges and classified into 

long-te�m investments and cu�rent investments. Investments that are intended to be held for one year 

or more are classified as long-te�m investments and investments that are intended to be held for less 

than one year are classified as cu�rent investments. 
    
 Long-te�m investments are valued at cost and a provision is made to recognize any diminution in value, 

other than tempora�y, dete�mined separately for each investment. 

 Cu�rent investments are valued at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. In case of investment in units of 

mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared in respect of each pa�ticular scheme of the mutual 

fund is considered as the fair value.  
    
 The profit / loss on sale of investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the trade 

date and is dete�mined on FIFO basis.   
    
h. Employee benefits 
  
 (a)  Sho�t te�m employee benefit obligations:   
 
  Liabilities for wages and sala�ies, including non-moneta�y benefits that are expected to be settled 

wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees rendered the related 

se�vices are recognized in respect of employees se�vices upto the end of the year and are 

measured at the amount expected to be paid when liabilities are settled.
    
 b)  Long te�m employee benefit obligations:  
 
  (i) Defined cont�ibution plan
  
   The Company's cont�ibution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are 

considered as defined cont�ibution plans which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss on acc�ual basis. The Company has no fu�ther obligations under these plans beyond its 

monthly cont�ibutions.  
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  (ii) Defined benefit plan   
 
   The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan cove�ing eligible 

employees. Liability with regards to gratuity (defined benefit retirement plan) is acc�ued 

based on actua�ial valuation conducted as on balance sheet date. The Company recognises 

gratuity liability based on actua�ial valuation as dete�mined by the actua�y appointed by the 

Company. Actua�ial assumptions based on ce�tain assumptions regarding rate of interest, 

sala�y growth, mo�tality, and staff att�ition as per projected unit credit method.
    
 c)  Other long te�m employee benefit obligations:   
 
  Post employment and other long te�m employee benefits are recognised as an expenses in 

Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related se�vice is rendered The expenses is 

recognised at the present value of the amount payable dete�mined using the actua�ial valuation  

technique. Actua�ial gains and losses in  respect of post employment and other long te�m benefits 

are charges to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
    
i. Cash and cash equivalents  
 
 Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comp�ise cash at bank and in hand 

and sho�t te�m investment that are readily conve�tible into known amounts of cash and, which are 

subject to an insignificant �isk of changes in value. 

j. Provision for Standard Assets, Non Pe�fo�ming Assets  
 
 Provisions on Standard Assets, Non Pe�fo�ming Assets are made in accordance with the P�udential 

No�ms as per Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 

2021 as amended from time to time.
    
k. Bo�rowing costs 
  
 Bo�rowing costs, which are directly att�ibutable to the acquisition / const�uction of Prope�ty, Plant and 

Equipment, till the time such assets are ready for intended use, are capitalised as pa�t of the cost of the 

assets. Other bo�rowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incu�red.  
    
l. Income taxes 
  
 Tax expense comp�ises of cu�rent tax (i.e. amount of tax for the pe�iod dete�mined in accordance with 

the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961), and defe�red tax charge or credit (reflecting the 

tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the pe�iod). 
    
 Cu�rent tax  
  
 Provision for cu�rent tax is made on the basis of taxable income of the accounting year in accordance 

with the Income Tax Act, 1961. In case of matters under appeal due to disallowance or othe�wise, full 

provision is made when the said liabilities are accepted by the Company. Cu�rent tax assets and 

liabilites are offset where the entity has legally enforceable �ight to offset and intends either to settle on 

net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 
    
 Defe�red Taxes
   
 Defe�red tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income 

and taxable income for the pe�iod. The defe�red tax charge or credit and the co�responding defe�red 

tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
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enacted by the balance sheet date. Defe�red tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is 

reasonable ce�tainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed 

depreciation or ca��y fo�ward of losses, defe�red tax assets are recognised only if there is a vi�tual 

ce�tainty of realisation of such assets. Defe�red tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 

are w�itten-down or w�itten up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / vi�tually ce�tain (as the case 

may be) to be realised.
    
m. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets  
 
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is 

probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 

estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits ) are not discounted to its present 

value and are dete�mined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet 

date. These will be reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cu�rent best 

estimates. 
    
 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that a�ises from past events whose existence will be 

confi�med by the occu�rence or non-occu�rence of one or more unce�tain future events beyond the 

control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also a�ises in 

extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be 

measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in 

the financial statements.
    
 Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
    
n. Leases 
  
 Lease rentals in respect of assets acquired on operating leases are charged-off to the Statement of 

profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease te�m unless another systematic basis is more 

representative of the time patte�n of the use�'s benefit.  
    
o. Collateral repossessed  
 
 In its regular course of business, the Company generally engages exte�nal and inte�nal agents to 

respossess prope�ties or other assets in its po�tfolio and recover funds, generally at auction, to settle 

outstanding debts. Any surplus funds are retu�ned to the customers/obligors. The residential 

prope�ties under legal repossession processes are treated as assets held for sale at (i) Fair value less 

cost to sell or (ii) P�incipal oustanding, whichever is less, at the repossession date.    
    
p. Ea�nings per share 
  
 Basic ea�nings per share is computed by dividing net profit for the pe�iod att�ibutable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding du�ing the pe�iod.   
    
 Diluted ea�nings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the pe�iod att�ibutable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding du�ing the pe�iod as adjusted for 

the effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive. 
    
q. Special Rese�ve/ Statuto�y rese�ve  
 
 The Company creates statuto�y rese�ve eve�y year out of its profit as section 29C of the National 

Housing Bank Act, 1987 and special rese�ve in te�ms of section 36 (i)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

read with section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.   
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)

3. Equity share capital
           
                                                As at 31 March 2025           As at 31 March 2024  
        Number   Amount   Number    Amount 
 
 A.  Autho�ised           
  Equity shares of face value 
  of Rs. 10 each     18,39,00,000   18,390.00   17,25,00,000   17,250.00 
        18,39,00,000  18,390.00   17,25,00,000   17,250.00 
 B.  Issued, subsc�ibed and paid up           
  Equity shares of face value 
  of Rs. 10 each     18,05,00,000   18,050.00   16,87,50,000   16,875.00 
         18,05,00,000   18,050.00   16,87,50,000   16,875.00 
           
 C.  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repo�ting year           
           
                                              For the year ended            For the year ended
                                                         31 March 2025               31 March 2024  
  Equity shares    No. of shares Amount    No. of shares   Amount   

  Opening balance at the beginning 
  of the year    16,87,50,000  16,875.00   16,15,00,000   16,150.00 
  Add: issued du�ing the year 
  (refer note - 3 H)    1,17,50,000   1,175.00   72,50,000   725.00 
  Outstanding at the end of the year  18,05,00,000   18,050.00  16,87,50,000   16,875.00 
           
 D.  Te�ms/�ights attached to equity shares           

  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each 
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company in general meeting may 
declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board. In the 
event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to received 
remaining assets of the company, after dist�ibution of all preferential amounts. The dist�ibution will 
be in propo�tion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.           

           
 E.  Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares and holding company: 

  Name of Shareholders                                     As at 31 March 2025            As at 31 March 2024  
        No. of shares % of holding  No. of shares   % of holding 

   (i)  JJT T�ust - T�ustee 
   Sh. Ramakant J. Tibrewala   13,89,90,279  77.00%  12,72,40,279  75.40%
   (ii)  Roha Inkjet P�ivate Limited   3,55,29,721  19.69%  3,55,29,721  21.06%
         17,45,20,000  96.69%  16,27,70,000  96.46%
           
 F.  Disclosure of shareholding promoters           

  Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2025 is as follows:           
   
                                            Shares held by promoters              % change du�ing  
  Name of promoters                   As at 31 March 2025               As at 31 March 2024  the year  
        No. of shares % of total  No. of shares % of total    
         shares  shares   
   (i) JJT T�ust - T�ustee 
  Sh. Ramakant J. Tibrewala  13,89,90,279  77.00%  12,72,40,279  75.40% 1.60%
   (ii) Sh�ikant Tibrewala    27,50,000  1.52%  27,50,000  1.63% -(0.11)%
   (iii) Roha Inkjet P�ivate Limited   3,55,29,721  19.69%  3,55,29,721  21.06% -(1.37)%
  Total      17,72,70,000  98.21%  16,55,20,000  98.09% 0.12%
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  Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows:           
   
                                            Shares held by promoters              % change du�ing  
  Name of promoters                   As at 31 March 2024              As at 31 March 2023  the year  
        No. of shares % of total  No. of shares % of total    
         shares  shares   
   (i) JJT T�ust - T�ustee 
  Sh. Ramakant J. Tibrewala   12,72,40,279  75.40%  11,99,90,279  74.30% 1.10%
   (ii)Sh�ikant Tibrewala    27,50,000  1.63%  27,50,000  1.70% -(0.07)%
   (iii) Roha Inkjet P�ivate Limited   3,55,29,721  21.06%  3,87,59,721  24.00% -(2.93)%
  Total      16,55,20,000  98.09% 16,15,00,000  100.00% -(1.90)%

 G.  As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other 
declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding 
represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.           

           
 H.  The Company has made multiple �ight issues of equity shares du�ing the year of 1,17,50,000 no of 

equity shares. The shares of face value of Rs 10 were issued at premium of Rs 30 per share to the 
existing shareholders i.e. JJT T�ust - T�ustee Sh. Ramakant J. Tibrewala.           

           
 I.  The Company has not issued any bonus shares du�ing the cu�rent year and five years immediately 

preceding cu�rent year.           
           
 J.  There are no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted 

as fully paid up by way of bonus issue and bought back du�ing the last five years.          
 
4. Rese�ves and Surplus

       (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 
 (i)  Statuto�y Rese�ves 
  (As per section 29C of the 
  National Housing Bank Act, 1987)           
  Opening Balance   323.87   221.22 
  Addition du�ing the year  92.35   102.65 
  Appropiation du�ing the year  -     -   
  Closing balance   416.22   323.87 
           
 (ii)  Secu�ities Premium Account           
  Opening Balance   5,775.00   3,600.00 
  Addition du�ing the year  3,525.00   2,175.00 
  Closing balance   9,300.00   5,775.00 
           
 (iii)  Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss:           
  Opening Balance   87.50   (323.08)
  Add : Profit transfe�red from statement of profit and loss  461.73   513.23 
  Less: Transfer to Statuto�y Rese�ve u/s 29C of the 
  National Housing Bank Act, 1987  (92.35)  (102.65)
  Less: Transfer to Statuto�y Rese�ve
  (Special Rese�ves u/s 36 (1) (Viii) of Income Tax Act, 
  1961 taken into account for the purposes of 
  Statuto�y Rese�ve under section 29C of NHB Act, 1987)  -     -   
  Closing balance   456.88   87.50 
             
 Total      10,173.10   6,186.37 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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4.1.  Details of statuto�y Rese�ves/Rese�ve Fund u/s 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987           
        
 Disclosure on Statuto�y/Special Rese�ves pursuant to  master direction no. RBI/2020-21/73 

DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated Feb�ua�y 17, 2021 issued by RBI are as under:           

 (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year           
 a)  Statuto�y Rese�ve u/s 29C of the 
  National Housing Bank Act, 1987  323.87   221.22 
 b)  Amount of special rese�ve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income 
  Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of 
  Statuto�y Rese�ve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  -     -   
 Subtotal      323.87   221.22 
           
 Addition / Approp�iation / Withdrawal du�ing the year           
 Add:            
 a)  Amount transfe�red u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  92.35   102.65 
 b)  Amount of special rese�ve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income 
  Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of 
  Statuto�y Rese�ve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  -     -   
 Subtotal     92.35  102.65 
           
 Less:           
 a)  Amount approp�iated from the Statuto�y Rese�ve 
  u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  -     -   
 b)  Amount withdrawn from the Special Rese�ve u/s 
  36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been 
  taken into account for the purpose of provision 
  u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  -     -   
 Subtotal      -     -   
           
 Balance at the end of the year           
 a)  Statuto�y Rese�ve u/s 29C of the 
  National Housing Bank Act, 1987  416.22   323.87 
 b)  Amount of special rese�ve u/s 36(1)(viii)of 
  Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the 
  purposes of Statuto�y Rese�ve under Section 
  29C of the NHB Act, 1987  -     -   
 Total      416.22   323.87 
           
4.2.  Statuto�y rese�ve is the rese�ve created by transfe��ing the sum not less than 20% of its net profit after 

tax in te�ms of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.           
           
4.3.  Secu�ities premium           

 Secu�ities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The account can be utilised in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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5. Long-Te�m Bo�rowings 

                                        Non-Cu�rent                    Cu�rent Matu�ities   
        As at  As at  As at  As at 
        31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 
 (A)  Secured Bo�rowing           
   Te�m Loan           
   -From National Housing Bank   12,073.61   8,936.25   1,528.12   1,293.12 
   -From Banks      20,975.66   20,380.73   8,721.21   7,502.99 
   -From financial institutions   12,577.06   9,145.42   3,601.47   2,713.65 
   Total       45,626.33   38,462.40   13,850.80   11,509.76 
          
  Cu�rent Matu�ity of Long-Te�m 
 Bo�rowings disclosed under the 
 head Sho�t te�m bo�rowings 
 (Refer Note no.  8)      -     -     (13,850.80)  (11,509.76)
         45,626.33   38,462.40   -     -   
          
5.1. All Secured Te�m Loans (including Cu�rent matu�ities of long-te�m debt) from Banks are secured by 

way of hypothecation of the loans given by the company as per sanction te�ms and ca��ies rate of 
interest in the range of 8.91% to 10.70 % p.a. (previous year  9.25% to 10.65%  p.a.) and having tenure of 
5 to 7 years (previous year 5 to 7 years) from the date of disbursement and are repayable in monthly or 
qua�terly instalments. Fu�ther, out of total guarantee provided by the group Companies against the 
bo�rowings, value of guarantee rated by credit rating agency have been disclosed below under loans 
guaranteed by group Companies.          

          
5.2. All secured te�m loans (including cu�rent matu�ities of long-te�m debt) from NHB and financial 

institutions are secured by way of hypothecation of the loans given by the company as per sanction 
te�ms and ca��ies rate of interest in the range of 4.90% to 10.65% p.a. (previous year 4.90% to 11.00% 
p.a.) and having tenure of 4.5 to 10 years (previous year 4.5 to 10 years) from the date of disbursement 
and are repayable in monthly or qua�terly instalments.          

          
5.3. Details of guarantee provided by promoters and group companies 

     (Amount in ` lakhs)
 Pa�ticulars     As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 
 (i)  Guaranteed by promoters           
   Te�m Loans (including cu�rent matu�ities)           
   -From National Housing Bank   4,851.07   5,937.71 
   -From Banks     26,306.47   21,377.07 
   -From Financial Institutions   12,866.53   7,420.98 
        44,024.07   34,735.76 
  (ii)  Guaranteed by group companies           
   Te�m Loans (including cu�rent matu�ities)           
   -From Banks     76.54   1,350.07 
        76.54   1,350.07 
          
  (iii)  Guaranteed by promoters and group companies           
   Te�m loans (including cu�rent matu�ities)           
   -From National Housing Bank   261.22   791.67 
   -From banks     1,030.53   1,933.26 
        1,291.75   2,724.92 
 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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 Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agency as at 31 March 2025 

 Note:- (a) Credit rating assign by CRISIL Ltd have been withdrawn on dated 25th Janua�y'24.           
                  (b)    Credit rating assign by ICRA Ltd have been withdrawn on 24th Feb�ua�y 2024.           
                  (c)  Credit rating assign by CARE Rating Ltd. has assigned CARE " A - "  as credit rating on 

December 07 , 2023. Credit rating CARE " A- " is reaffi�med by CARE Rating Ltd. on 
December 03, 2024.           

          
6. Other Long Te�m Liabilities        

 (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024
           
  Lease equalisation rese�ve   16.33   21.80 
        16.33   21.80 

7. Provisions

                                    Long Te�m                          Sho�t Te�m   
        As at  As at  As at  As at 
        31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
          
  (A)  Provision for employee benefits           
   Gratuity (refer note no.40 )   27.28   1.85   -     33.66 
         27.28   1.85   -     33.66 
          
  (B)  Provision on other assets           
  Provision on other assets  -     -     12.26   10.45 
         -     -     12.26   10.45 
          
  Total        27.28   1.85   12.26   44.11 

8. Sho�t-Te�m Bo�rowings

  (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024

 Secured Loan           
  Loans repayable on demand           
   - From Banks (refer note. 8.1 & 8.2.)   -     8.90 
   Cu�rent Matu�ity of Long te�m debt (refer note no.  5)   13,850.80   11,509.76 
        13,850.80   11,518.66 

Rating Agency  Type   As at 
31 March 2025 

As at 
31 March 2024 

 CRISIL Limited  Loan Te�m Bank Facility (CG)   -  refer below note (a) 

 CRISIL Limited  Loan Te�m Bank Facility  -  refer below note (a) 

 ICRA Limited  Loan Te�m Bank Facility  -  refer below note (b) 

 CARE Ratings Ltd  Loan Te�m Bank Facility  CARE A- , Stable  CARE A- , Stable 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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8.1.  Loan from banks includes Cash credit, overdraft facility and are secured against hypothecation of loans 
given by the company and/or fixed deposit and are repayable on demand and ca��y interest rate range 
from 7.80% to 10.55% p.a. (previous year from 7.80% to 10.45% p.a.)           

8.2.  Loan from banks includes overdraft against fixed deposits which are secured against fixed deposit and 
are repayable on demand and ca��y interest rate range from fixed deposit rate plus 1.00% p.a.           

 
8.3. There are no defaults as on balance sheet date in repayment of bo�rowings.

9. Trade payables 

 (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024

 Total outstanding dues of micro enterp�ises and 
 small enterp�ises     28.86   14.38 
  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
 enterp�ises and small enterp�ises   73.90   111.63 
       102.76   126.01 

9.1.  Trade Payables ageing schedule

Pa�ticulars  As at 31 March 2025 

 Outstanding for following pe�iods 
from due date of payment 

 Total 

 Less  than  1 
year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More  than  
3 years 

(i) MSME 28.86 -   -   -   28.86 

(ii) Others 73.90         -             -     73.90 

(iii) Disputed dues –MSME  -   -   -   -   -   

(iv)Disputed dues - Others -   -   -   -   -   

Total 102.76  -   -     102.76 

Pa�ticulars  As at 31 March 2024 

 Outstanding for following pe�iods 
from due date of payment 

 Total 

 Less  than  1 
year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More  than  
3 years 

(i) MSME 14.38 -   -   -   14.38

(ii) Others 111.63         -             -   111.63

(iii) Disputed dues –MSME  -   -   -   -   -   

(iv)Disputed dues - Others -   -   -   -   -   

Total 126.01 - -   -   126.01

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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9.2. Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterp�ises Development Act, 2006:           

 This info�mation as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterp�ises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) has been dete�mined to the extent such pa�ties have been identified 
on the basis of info�mation available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors.

10. Other Cu�rent Liabilities

 (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024          
 
 Interest acc�ued but not due   56.18   64.22 
  Advance EMI's received   0.72   38.87 
  Advance from customers   350.36   90.45 
  Statuto�y dues     101.16   150.23 
  Payable to employees    68.92   65.84 
  Loan Liability      1,049.39   -   
  Lease equalisation rese�ve   4.73   0.64 
  Other payable *     231.35   188.23 
        1,862.81   598.48 
 
 *Other payables includes amount payable on account of direct assignments of Rs.128.89 lakhs 

(previous year Rs.129.84 lakhs)           

 
          

Pa�ticular   As at 
31 March 2025 

  As at 
31 March 2024 

i) P�incipal amount due to suppliers as at the year end 28.86          14.38 

ii) Interest acc�ued, due to suppliers on the above amount, and 
unpaid as at the year end

              0.16                  0.04 

iii) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the 
appointed date under Section 16 of MSMED

-   -   

iv) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than 
Section 16)

- -   

v) Amount of Interest paid by the Company in te�ms of Section 16 
of the MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day du�ing the accounting year

-   -   

vi) Amount of Interest due and payable for the pe�iod of delay in 
making the payment, which has been paid but beyond the 
appointed date du�ing the year, but without adding the interest 
specified under MSMED Act

- 0.15 

vii) Amount of Interest acc�ued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of each accounting year to suppliers

0.16 0.07 

viii) Amount of fu�ther interest remaining due and payable even in 
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as 
above are actually paid to the small enterp�ise, for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of 
MSMED

-   -

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)

12. Defe�red tax assets (net)
           

                                              (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 
 Defe�red Tax Assets        
  - Impai�ment loss allowance   121.40   87.11 
  - Disallowance under Section 40A(7) of the Income-tax Act, 1961   40.02   31.21 
  - Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961   0.93   0.21 
  - Lease equalisation rese�ve   5.30   5.65 
  - Difference between tax depreciation and Depreciation 
 and amo�tisation charged for the financial repo�ting   10.45   10.18 
  Total (A)       178.10   134.36 
  Less: Defe�red Tax Liabilities   -     -   
  Total (B)     -      -   
  Defe�red Tax Assets(Net) (A-B)   178.10   134.36 
       
  Movement in defe�red tax assets        
 
 Pa�ticulars      As at Recognised in  As at 
        1 Ap�il 2024  profit and loss  31 March 2025
 
 Defe�red Tax Assets        
  - Impai�ment loss allowance    87.11   (34.29)  121.40 
  - Disallowance under Section 40A(7) 
 of the Income-tax Act, 1961    31.21   (8.81)  40.02 
  - Disallowance under Section 43B 
 of the Income-tax Act, 1961    0.21   (0.72)  0.93 
  - Lease equalisation rese�ve   5.65   0.35   5.30 
  - Depreciation and amo�tisation   10.18   (0.27)  10.45 
  Defe�red tax liabilities     -   -   - 
  
 Total         134.36   (43.74)  178.10 
       
  
 Pa�ticulars      As at Recognised in  As at 
        1 Ap�il 2023  profit and loss  31 March 2024
 
 Defe�red Tax Assets        
  - Impai�ment loss allowance    74.74    (12.37)  87.11 
  - Disallowance under Section 40A(7) 
 of the Income-tax Act, 1961    24.00   (7.21)  31.21 
  - Disallowance under Section 43B 
 of the Income-tax Act, 1961       (0.21)  0.21 
  - Lease equalisation rese�ve   5.60   (0.05)  5.65 
  - Depreciation and amo�tisation   8.60   (1.58)  10.18 
  Defe�red tax liabilities      -   -  
 
 Total         112.94    (21.42)  134.36 
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)

13. Loans and Advances

(Amount in ` lakhs)
                                     Non-Cu�rent                      Cu�rent Po�tion   
        As at  As at As at As at
        31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 
 Secured Loan          
   Housing loan      51,900.43   43,010.76   1,577.70   1,165.17 
   Non housing loan     30,777.84   24,965.42   912.46   695.25 
  Total - Gross       82,678.27   67,976.18   2,490.16   1,860.42 
  Less: Provisions           
   Housing loan      163.27   154.73   83.99   45.20 
   Non housing loan     146.98   121.06   117.82   58.16 
  Total provisions      310.25   275.79   201.81   103.36 
          
  Total -Net        82,368.02   67,700.39   2,288.35   1,757.06 
          
  Cu�rent Po�tion of loans 
 and advances disclosed 
 under the head Sho�t te�m 
 loans and advances 
 (Refer Note no. 17 )     -     -     (2,288.35)  (1,757.06)
         82,368.02   67,700.39   -     -   
          
  i)  Non Housing loans include loan against prope�ty.           
          
 (ii)  As ce�tified by the management, loans given by the Company are secured by equitable mo�tgage / 

registered mo�tgage of the prope�ty and assets financed and /or personal guarantees and /or 
unde�taking to create a secu�ity and /or hypothecation of asset and are considered approp�iate 
and good.          

          
 (iii)  The Company has not granted loans against gold jewelle�y as collateral.          
          
 (iv)  The Company has complied with the no�ms presc�ibed under Master Directions – Non-Banking 

Finance Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021, as amended from 
time to time and Master Directions - Rese�ve Bank of India (Non-Banking Finance Company – 
Scale Based Regulation) Direction, 2023 issued by the Rese�ve Bank of India for recognizing Non-
Pe�fo�ming Assets (NPA) in preparation of accounts. As per the no�ms, NPAs are recognized on the 
basis of more than 90 days overdue. NPAs are to be treated as bad & doubtful, if they remain 
outstanding for more than 455 days. The Company has made adequate provisions on Non- 
Pe�fo�ming Assets and standard assets in respect of Housing and Non-housing Loans as 
presc�ibed under RBI Master Directions.          

          
 (v)  Du�ing the year the company has sold loans and advances through direct assignments as well as 

assigned loans and advances under colending model II (refer note 42)

14. Other Non-Cu�rent Assets 

       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024         
 
 Advance tax (net of provision of Rs.200.76 lakhs)   54.32   19.55 
  Secu�ity deposits     48.22   52.52 
  Other Bank Balance     -   
  -Bank deposits (Refer note no. 16.2)   565.34   1,093.85 
        667.88   1,165.92 
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15. Trade receivables
    (Amount in ` lakhs)

       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024

 Receivables considered good (unsecured)   175.28   416.33 
  Receivables considered doubtful (unsecured)   -    -   
  Total - gross      175.28   416.33 
  Less:  Allowance for bad and doubtful debts   -     -   
  Total - net      175.28   416.33 
          
15.1. Trade receivables ageing schedule 

15.1. Trade receivables ageing schedule( continued)          

Pa�ticulars  As at 31 March 2025 

 Outstanding for following pe�iods from due date of payment  Total 

 Less than 
6 months 

 6 months -
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables 
–considered good 

175.28                                     
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

175.28 

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables 
–considered doubtful 

                                  
-   

                                    
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

                             
-   

(iii) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered good 

                                  
-   

                                    
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

                             
-   

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered doubtful 

                                  
-   

                                    
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

                             
-   

 Total 175.28 -   -   -   -   175.28 

Pa�ticulars  As at 31 March 2024 

 Outstanding for following pe�iods from due date of payment  Total 

 Less than 
6 months 

 6 months -
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables 
–considered good 

416.33                                     
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

416.33

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables 
–considered doubtful 

                                  
-   

                                    
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

                             
-   

(iii) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered good 

                                  
-   

                                    
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

                             
-   

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered doubtful 

                                  
-   

                                    
-   

                                   
-   

                                     
-   

                              
-   

                             
-   

 Total 416.33 -   -   -   -   416.33

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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16. Cash and bank balance
    (Amount in ` lakhs)

       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 
 (a)  Cash and cash equivalents           
   Cash on hand     83.86   15.79 
   Cheques on hand    14.93   -   
   Balances with banks       
   - Cu�rent accounts    214.89   208.87 
   - Bank deposits with  matu�ity of three months or less 
  (refer note 16.1. & 16.2.)   119.44   -   
          
  (b)  Other Bank Balance           
   Bank deposits with  matu�ity of more than 
  3 months but less than 12 months (refer note 16.1. & 16.2.)   519.35   132.24 
        952.47   356.90 
          
16.1. Fixed deposit with o�iginal matu�ity of more than twelve months but remaining matu�ity from repo�ting 

pe�iod is less than twelve months have been disclosed under “Other bank balances”.           
          
16.2 Bank deposits includes deposits ea�marked for pe�fo�mance guarantee Rs.1,084.44 lakhs (Previous 

year Rs. 1,101.11 lakhs).           
 
 Bank deposits includes deposits ea�marked for overdraft facility; SBI : Rs 118.22 lakhs. 
 
17. Sho�t-te�m loan and advances 

       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024          
 
 Cu�rent matu�ities of long te�m loans and advances 
 (refer note no. 13 )     2,288.35   1,757.06 
        2,288.35   1,757.06 
          
        
18. Other cu�rent assets  

       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024         
  
 Acc�ued Interest on fixed deposit   34.69   6.66 
  Secu�ity deposits     16.12   18.23 
  Interest acc�ued but not due on loans   799.39   656.62 
  Interest acc�ued and due on loans   93.03   68.51 
  Goods and se�vice tax input credit   -    9.05 
  Advances to Vendors    91.61   35.38 
  Prepaid Expenses     103.81   33.30 
  Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts 
 (refer note 18.1., 18.2. and 18.3.)   1,831.24   1,352.72 
  Others       9.36   12.25 
        2,979.25   2,192.72 
          
18.1. In order to recover from defaulting bo�rowers, the company has repossessed the collaterals held as 

secu�ity against the loans and advances as per SARFAESI Act 2002. The purpose of holding the assets 
is to realise collateral on a timely basis. The Company does not use non-cash collateral for its 
operations.          

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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18.2. Disclosure with respect to title deed of Immovable Prope�ty not held in the name of the Company 
acquired against satisfaction of loans and advances.

 * Assets aquired in satisfaction of debts other than under SARFAESI.

18.3. Includes immovable prope�ties amounting to Rs. 83.79 Lakhs as on March 31, 2025 (Rs. 83.79 Lakhs as 
on March 31, 2024) acquired against satisfaction of debt from va�ious bo�rowers who have defaulted in 
repayment of p�incipal and interest and all these prope�ties are in the name of the Company.

Relevant Line Item 
in the Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2025

Desc�iption of 
item of prope�ty

Gross Ca��ying 
amount (in Lakhs)

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of

Prope�ty held since

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Land and Building 91.45

Multiple 
owners (refer 

note 18.3)

Du�ing the FY 2024-25

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Building 535.94 Du�ing the FY 2024-25

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Land and Building 109.94 Du�ing the FY 2023-24

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Building 363.72 Du�ing the FY 2023-24

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Land and Building 142.08 Du�ing the FY 2022-23

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Building 258.52 Du�ing the FY 2022-23

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Land and Building 58.76 Du�ing the FY 2021-22

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Building 187.04 Du�ing the FY 2021-22

1747.45

Relevant Line Item 
in the Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2024

Desc�iption of 
item of prope�ty

Gross Ca��ying 
amount (in Lakhs)

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of

Prope�ty held since

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Land and Building 118.58

Multiple 
owners (refer 

note 18.3)

Du�ing the FY 2023-24

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Building 417.51 Du�ing the FY 2023-24

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Land and Building 149.42 Du�ing the FY 2022-23

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Building 321.72 Du�ing the FY 2022-23

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Land and Building 58.76 Du�ing the FY 2021-22

Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debts

Building 202.94 Du�ing the FY 2021-22

             1,268.93 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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19. Interest income
           

                                              (Amount in ` lakhs)
       For the  For the 
       year ended year ended
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024   

 Interest Income from loans   10,739.11   8,390.13 
  Interest on Deposits with Banks   463.41   370.77 
        11,202.52   8,760.90 
   
20.  Fee and other charges    
  
 Processing fees and other related income   1,686.33   1,679.50 
  Insurance commission income   275.53   -   
        1,961.86   1,679.50 
   
 
21. Other income    
 
 Adve�tisement income    210.33   583.16 
  Provision w�ite back    -     3.71 
  Interest on income tax refund   -     9.23 
  Miscellaneous Income    0.66   15.37 
        210.99   611.47 
   
22  Employee benefits expense    
 
 Sala�ies and wages    4,536.06   4,114.00 
  Cont�ibution to provident fund and other fund   281.54   238.07 
  Incentive      279.07   213.68 
  Staff welfare expenses    149.99   83.37 
        5,246.66   4,649.12 
   
23  Finance costs    
 
 Interest on bo�rowings    
  - Interest on te�m loan    5,265.52   4,154.21 
  - Interest on bank overdraft/Cash Credit   252.17   27.22 
  Other bo�rowing costs    96.55   140.37 
  Interest on MSME (refer note no. 9.2)   0.16   0.19 
        5,614.40   4,321.99 
   
24  Depreciation and amo�tisation    
 
 Depreciation on prope�ty, plant and equipment   47.79   43.01 
  Amo�tisation on intangible assets   3.26   2.44 
        51.05   45.45 
   
25  Provision    
  
 Provision on standard assets   34.46   45.24 
  Provision on non pe�fo�ming assets (NPA)   98.45   44.50 
  Provision on other assets   1.81   2.89 
  Loan and advances w�itten off   8.97   21.25 
        143.69   113.88 
   

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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26  Other Expenses 
  (Amount in ` lakhs)

       For the  For the 
       year ended year ended
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024  

 Rent (refer note no. 41)    230.53   184.32 
  Rates and taxes     16.46   7.27 
  Travelling expenses    192.97   139.68 
  P�inting and statione�y    42.27   44.20 
  Bank charges      13.75   11.78 
  Legal and professional charges   710.91   519.50 
  Office maintenance    72.44   66.86 
  Communication, postage and cou�ier    37.87   28.68 
  Software license fee    161.82   130.48 
  Computer expenses    42.49   16.40 
  Elect�icity      31.07   24.23 
  Commission & Brokerage   75.66   10.09 
  Membership & subsc�iption   14.33   8.56 
  Business Promotion Expense   31.80   5.15 
  Auditor remuneration (refer note. 26.1)   15.43   11.45 
  Loss on sale of assets    0.06   -   
  Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note no. 44)   10.75   8.98 
  Miscellaneous expenses   1.58   1.80 
        1,702.19   1,219.43 
   
26.1  Payment to statuto�y auditors:     
  As auditor    
  - audit fee      12.55   9.95 
  - for ce�tification     1.20   0.60 
  For taxation matters    1.36   0.60 
  For other matter     0.32   0.29 
        15.43   11.45 
   
27 Tax expense    
 
 Cu�rent tax      200.76   210.18 
  Defe�red tax credit    (43.74)  (21.41)
  Adjustment for previous years   (1.37)  -   
  Income tax expense repo�ted in the 
 statement of profit and loss   155.65   188.77 
   
28 Ea�nings per equity share    
   
  Profit available for equity shareholders   461.73   513.23 
  Nominal value of equity share (`)   10.00   10.00 
  Weighted-average number of equity shares 
 for basic ea�nings per share   17,34,61,644   16,44,69,178 
  Effect of dilution:    
  Weighted-average number of equity shares used 
 to compute diluted ea�nings per share   17,34,61,644   16,44,69,178 
  Basic ea�nings per share (`)   0.27   0.31 
  Diluted ea�nings per share (`)   0.27   0.31 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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29. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC pursuant to annex III of Master direction Non-Banking 
Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021

Pa�ticulars As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

Liabilities side Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdue

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdue

(1) Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive 
of interest acc�ued thereon but not paid:
(A) Debentures : Secured
  : Unsecured
(other than falling within the meaning of public 
deposits)
( B ) Defe�red Credits
( C ) Te�m Loans
( D ) Inter-corporate loans and bo�rowing
( E ) Commercial Paper
( F ) Public Deposits
( G ) Other Loans (specify nature)

-Cash Credit Facility
-Bank Deposit-Overdraft Facility

-
-

-
59,533.31

-
-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-

-
50,036.38

-
-
-

-
8.90

-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public 
deposits inclusive of interest acc�ued thereon 
but not paid):

(a) In the fo�m of Unsecured debentures
(b) In the fo�m of pa�tly secured debentures i.e. 
debentures where there is a sho�tfall in the value 
of secu�ity
(c) Other public deposits

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

Assets Side  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills 
receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured

                   

85,168.43
-

                   

69,457.45
-

(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other 
assets counting towards asset financing activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sund�y 
debtors 
(a) Financial lease
(b) Operating lease
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sund�y 
debtors
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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(5) Break-up of Investments
Cu�rent Investments
(1) Quoted 
(i) Shares (a) Equity
  (b) Preference
 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Gove�nment Secu�ities 
(v) Others (please specify
 
(2) Unquoted
(i) Shares (a) Equity
  (b) Preference 
 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Gove�nment Secu�ities 
(v) Others 
 
Long Te�m investments
(1) Quoted 
(i) Shares (a) Equity
  (b) Preference 
 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Gove�nment Secu�ities 
(v) Others (please specify
 
(2) Unquoted
(i) Shares (a) Equity
  (b) Preference  
 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Gove�nment Secu�ities 
(v) Others (please specify)

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

(6) Bo�rower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above: 

Catego�y Amount net of provisions

 As at 31 March 2025  As at 31 March 2024 

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

(1) Related Pa�ties 
(a) Subsidia�ies
(b) Companies in the same 
group
(c) Other related pa�ties
(2) Other than related 
pa�ties

 
-   
-   
                           
-   

84,656.37 

 
-   
-   
                               
-   
-   
   

 
-   
-   
                           
-   

84,656.37 

 
-   
-   
                              
-   

69,457.45 
                

 
-   
-   

-   
-
                                 

-
-

-
69,457.45 

                    

Total 84,656.37 - 84,656.37 69,457.45 - 69,457.45

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (cu�rent and long te�m) in shares and 
secu�ities (both quoted and unquoted) :

(8) Other info�mation  

30. Disclosure pursuant to Paragraph 4.1.17 of Master direction Non-Banking Financial Company – 
Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021

 Note: pursuant to paragraph 4.1.17 of BRI Master director read with notification  RBI/2020-21/60 
DOR.NBFC (HFC).CC.No.118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22, 2020, the company has complied 
with the p�incipal Business c�ite�ia :         

 The Board of directors of the Company has approved a detailed roadmap to fulfil the p�incipal business 
c�ite�ia as per above notification and timeline for transition in its Board meeting held on May 15, 2021 for 
submission to Rese�ve Bank.

Catego�y  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Market Value / 
Break up or 

fair 
value or NAV

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

Market Value / 
Break up or 

fair 
value or NAV

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

(1) Related Pa�ties 
    (a) Subsidia�ies
    (b) Companies in the same group
    (c) Other related pa�ties
(2) Other than related pa�ties

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Total -                 - - -

Pa�ticulars
 

  As at 
31 March 2025

 As at 
31 March 2024

(i)  Gross Non-Pe�fo�ming Assets
       (a) Related pa�ties
       (b) Other than related pa�ties
(ii) Net Non-Pe�fo�ming Assets
       (a) Related pa�ties
       (b) Other than related pa�ties
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

 
-   

776.43 
 
-   

574.62 
1,831.24 

 
-   

387.57 
 
-   

284.21 
1,352.72 

P�incipal Business C�ite�ia As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

Total assets (netted off by intangible assets)
Total Housing loans
Total Housing loans as a % of total assets (netted off by intangible 
assets)
Total Individual Housing loans
Total Individual Housing loans as a % of total assets (netted off by 
intangible assets)

89,426.96 
53,961.30 

60.34%

53,961.30 
60.34%

73,661.00 
44,568.55 

60.50%

44,568.55 
60.50%

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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31. Disclosures in te�ms of Appendix I of Liquidity Risk Management Framework RBI/2019-20/88 
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November 2019:

 (i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterpa�ty
  

  Notes:        
   (a) A “Significant counterpa�ty” is defined as a single counterpa�ty or group of connected or  

affiliated  counterpa�ties  accounting  in  aggregate  for  more  than  1%  of  the  NBFC- 
NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs        

  (b) Total  Liabilities  has  been  computed  as  Total  Assets  less  Equity  share  capital  less 
Rese�ve & Surplus and computed basis extant regulato�y ALM guidelines.        

         
 (ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in ? crore and % of total deposits) –  Not Applicable    
         
 (iii) Top 10 bo�rowings 

 (iv) Funding Concentration based on significant inst�ument / product
 

  A "significant inst�ument/product" is defined as a single inst�ument/product of group of similar 
inst�uments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds 
total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.        

  
 (v) Stock Ratios: 

 

Sr. No. No. of Significant 
Counterpa�ties

Amount (₹ lakh) % of Total Deposits % of Total Liabilities

1 17 59,055.61 -   96.03%

Pa�ticulars Amount 
(₹ lakh)

% of Total 
Bo�rowings

Top 10 bo�rowing 46,122.75 77.55%

Sr. 
No.

Name of the product Amount (₹ lakh) % of Total 
Liabilities

1 Te�m Loans 59,477.13 96.71%

2 Working Capital Bank Lines -   -

 Total 59,477.13 96.71%

Sr. No. Stock Ratio %

1 Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 0.00%

2 Commercial papers as a % of total assets 0.00%

3 Non-conve�tible debentures (o�iginal matu�ity of less than one year) as a % 
of total liabilities

0.00%

4 Non-conve�tible debentures (o�iginal matu�ity of less than one year) as a % 
of total assets

0.00%

5 Other sho�t-te�m liabilities as a % of total liabilities 25.74%

6 Other sho�t-te�m liabilities as a % of total assets 17.64%

 Total 43.38%

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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 (vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management        
 
  The company has in place a board approved ALM Policy and Risk Management Policy. Fu�ther, the 

board of directors of the Company has an overall responsibility and oversight for the management 
of all the �isks, including liquidity �isk, to which the Company is exposed to in the course of 
conducting its business. The company has in place an Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), which 
functions as the strategic decision-making body for the asset-liability management of the 
Company from �isk retu�n perspective and within the �isk appetite approved by the Board. The 
meetings of ALCO are held at qua�terly inte�val. The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before 
the Board of Directors in its next meeting for its pe�usal/approval/ratification. The main objective 
of ALCO is to assist the Board in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset-liability 
management, market �isk management, liquidity and interest rate �isk management and also to 
ensure adherence to �isk tolerance/limits set up by the Board. In addition to that, the company has 
in place a Risk Management Committee (RMC) for the effective supe�vision, evaluation, 
monito�ing and review of va�ious aspects and types of �isks, including liquidity �isk, faced by the 
Company. The meetings of RMC are held at qua�terly inte�val.

32. Disclosure of details as required under annexure IV of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial 
Company – Housing Finance Company (Rese�ve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by Rese�ve Bank of 
India vide circular Dated 17 Feb�ua�y, 2021 & under Scale Based Regulation framework for NBFCs, 
Circular DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 Dated 21 October, 2022 & Circular 
DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 Dated 19 Ap�il, 2022.

32.1 Capital to �isk asset ratio

32.2 Investments

Pa�ticulars As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

 (i) CRAR (%) 
 (ii) CRAR –Tier I Capital (%) 
 (iii) CRAR –Tier II Capital (%) 
 (iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier II Capital 
 (v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Inst�uments 

47.00%
46.57%
0.43%

-
-

46.03%
45.61%
0.42%

-
-

Pa�ticulars As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

 32.2.1. Value of investments 
 (i) Gross Value of Investments 
                  (a) In India 
                  (b) Outside India 
 (ii) Provision for Depreciation 
                  (a) In India 
                  (b) Outside India 
 (iii) Net Value of Investment 
                  (a) In India 
                  (b) Outside India 
 
 32.2.2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on 
investments 
 (i) Opening Balance 
 (ii) Add: Provisions made du�ing the year 
 (ii) Less: W�ite-off / W�itten-bank of excess provisions du�ing 
the year 
 (i) Closing Balance 

 
 

                         -   
                          -   

 
                          -   
                          -   

 
                          -   
                          -   

                                 

-   
                         -   

-
                                 
-   

 
 

                         -   
                         -   

 
                         -   
                         -   

 
                         -   
                         -   

 
                    

     -   
-
-
                         
-   

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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32.3   De�ivatives    
     
32.3.1. Fo�ward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

32.3.2. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) De�ivative

32.3.3. Disclosures on Risk Exposure in De�ivatives           

 A.  Qualitative Disclosure : The company neither  deals in any de�ivative transections nor has any 
intention in near future. Therefore, Company has not desc�ibe the �isk management policy 
pe�taining to de�ivatives.          

 B.  Quantitative Disclosure :

Pa�ticulars 
 

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

 (i)  

 (ii)  

 

(iii)  

 (iv)  

 (v) 

 The notional p�incipal of swap agreements 
 Losses which would be incu�red if   counterpa�ties failed to 
fulfil their obligations under the agreements 
 Collateral required by the HFC upon ente�ing into swaps 
 Concentration of credit �isk a�ising from the swaps 
 The fair value of the swap book 

-
-

-
-
-

-
-

-
-
-                       

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

 (i) Notional p�incipal amount of exchange traded IR de�ivatives 
unde�taken du�ing the year 
 (a)  NIL 
 (b)  NIL 
 (c)  NIL 
 (ii) Notional p�incipal amount of exchange traded IR de�ivatives 
outstanding 
 (a)  NIL 
 (b)  NIL 
 (c)  NIL 
 (iii) Notional p�incipal amount of exchange traded IR de�ivatives 
outstanding and not "highly effective" 
 (a)  NIL 
 (b)  NIL 
 (c)  NIL 
 (iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR de�ivatives 
outstanding and not "highly effective" 
 (a)  NIL 
 (b)  NIL 
 (c)  NIL 

                      

  -   
                        -   
                        -   

                        

-   
                        -   
                        -   

                        

-   
                        -   
                        -   

                       

 -   
                        -   
                        -   

                      

  -   
                        -   
                        -   

                        

-   
                        -   
                        -   

                        

-   
                        -   
                        -   

                       

 -   
                        -   
                        -   

  As at 
31 March 2024 

 As at 
31 March 2023 

De�ivatives (Notional P�incipal Amount)
Marked to Market Positions

(a) Assets (+)
(b) Liability (-)

Credit Exposure
Unhedged Exposures

-
                     

   -   
                        -   
                        -   
                        -    

-
                     

   -   
                        -   
                        -   
                        -   

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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32.5. Exposure  
  
32.5.1. Exposures to Real Estate Sector 

32.5.2. Exposure to Capital Market 

Catego�y 
 

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024

 (A)    Direct exposure 

 (i)    Residential mo�tgages :  

 Lending fully secured by mo�tgages on residential 
prope�ty that is or will be occupied by the bo�rower 
or that is rented. 

82,237.89 67,323.30

 (ii)  Commercial real estate 

 Lending secured by mo�tgages on commercial real 
estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose 
commercial premises, multi-family residential 
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, 
indust�ial or warehouse space, hotels,land 
acquisition, development and const�uction, etc.).

2,930.54 2,513.31

(B)  Indirect exposure 

 Fund based and non-fund based exposures on 
NHB and HFCs. 

 Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 85,168.43 69,836.61

Particulars 

 

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

 (i)  Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, 

convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual 

funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in 

corporate debt; 

                                -                           -   

 (ii)   Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other 

securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in 

shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible 

debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds; 

                                -                           -   

 (iii)   Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible 

bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 

mutual funds are taken as primary security; 

                                -                           -   

(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the 

collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where 

the primary security other than shares /convertible bonds / 

convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 

does not fully cover the advances;

                                -                           -   

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and 

guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market 

makers;

                                -                           -   

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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Particulars 

 

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

 (vi)   Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares 

/ bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for 

meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new 

companies in anticipation of raising resources; 

                                -                           -   

 (vii)  Bridge loans to companies against expected equity �ows / 

issues; 

                                -                           -   

 (viii)  All exposures to Venture Capital Funds/alternet investment 

fund  (both registered and unregistered) 

                                -                           -   

 Total Exposure to Capital Market  -  -

32.5.3. Details of financing of parent company products         

 There has been no product of the parent company financed by the Company du�ing the cu�rentyear 
and previous year.          

         
32.5.4. Details of Single Bo�rower Limit (SGL) / Group Bo�rower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the company         
 
 There has been no breach of Single Bo�rower Limit (SGL) / Group Bo�rower Limit (GBL) du�ingthe 

cu�rent year and previous year.  
         
32.5.5. Unsecured advances         
 
 The company has not financed any unsecured advances du�ing the cu�rent year and previous year.          
         
32.5.6. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business (refer to Paragraph 21 of master 

directions)  

32.5.7.  Miscellaneous            
 
 (i)  Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators             
  
  Du�ing the year Company has not obtained any registration from other financial sector regulators.             
            
  (ii)   Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB/ RBI and other regulators             
 
  No penalty has been levied on the Company by National Housing Bank and other regulators.            

 
            

Desc�iption  Amount  % of owned fund 

(i) Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real 
estate business 

-                           -   

(ii)Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate 
business 

-                           -   

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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33. Additional Disclosure             

33.1. Provisions & Contingencies         

 Note:          
 1 The Total Outstanding Amount mean P�incipal + acc�ued interest + other charges pe�taining to 

loans without netting off.         
 2 The catego�y of Doubtful Assets will be as under:        

(i) Break up of 'Provision against assets' shown under the 
head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

1 
2 
3 
4 
 
 
 
5 
 
 
 
 

 Provisions for depreciation on Investment 
 Provision towards NPA 
 Provision made towards Income tax 
 Other Provision and Contingencies (with details) 
 (a)  Provision on other assets 
 (b)  Provision on gratuity 
 (c)  Reversal of provision on account of COVID-19 
Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser 
loan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.) 
 (a) Provision for Standard Assets on teaser loan 
 (b) Provision for Standard Assets on CRE 
 (c) Provision for Standard Assets on CRE - RH 
 (d) Provision for Standard Assets on Housing Loans and 
Non-Housing Loans (other than CRE/CRE-RH) 

-
98.45

200.76

1.81
50.49

-

-
3.40

-
31.07

-
44.50
210.18

2.89
38.60

-

-
1.58

-
43.66

(ii) Break up of Loan & Advances 
and Provisions thereon 

 

 Housing  Non Housing 

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024

 Standard Assets 
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 
(b) Provisions made 
Sub-Standard Assets 
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 
(b) Provisions made 
Doubtful Assets –Catego�y-I 
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 
(b) Provisions made 
Doubtful Assets –Catego�y-II 
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 
(b) Provisions made 
Doubtful Assets –Catego�y-III 
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 
(b) Provisions made 
Loss Assets 
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 
(b) Provisions made 
TOTAL  

53,756.86 
 163.27 

 281.04 
 70.26 

 41.66 
 8.99 

 11.86 
 4.74 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

44,440.58 
 154.73 

 147.92 
 36.98 

 12.86 
 3.48 

 12.92 
 4.74 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

31,527.56 
 146.98 

 334.39 
 83.60 

 76.19 
 21.71 

 31.29 
 12.51 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

25,733.59 
 121.06 

 162.79 
 40.70 

 20.85 
 4.95 

 30.23 
 12.51 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

(a) Total Outstanding Amount 54,091.42  44,614.28 31,969.43 25,947.46 

(b) Provisions made 247.26 199.93  264.80  179.22

 Pe�iod for which the assets has been considered Doubtful  Catego�y 

 Upto one year:  Catego�y - I 

 One to three years:  Catego�y - II 

More than three years :  Catego�y - III 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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33.2 Draw Down from Rese�ves     
  
 The Company has not drawn down any rese�ves du�ing the cu�rent year and previous year.       
      
33.3 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs:      
      
33.3.1. Concentration of Public Deposits     

33.3.2  Concentration of Loans & Advances 

 
33.3.3. Concentration of all exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)    

33.3.4. Concentration of NPAs: 

33.3.5. Sector-wise NPAs 

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Total deposits of twenty largest depositors
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total 
deposits of the deposit taking HFC 

-
-

-
-

 Total  - -   

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Total Exposure to twenty largest bo�rowers/customers 
Percentage of loans & advances to twenty largest bo�rowers 
to total advances of the HFC 

1,099.50
1.29%

1,120.09
1.60%

Sector  Percentage of NPAs to Total 
Advances in that sector 

 As at 31 March 2025  As at 31 March 2024 

  A. Housing Loans: 
 1. Individuals 
 2. Builders/Project Loans 
 3. Corporates 
 4. Others (specify) 
 B. Non-Housing Loans:  
 1. Individuals 
 2. Builders/Project Loans 
 3. Corporates 
 4. Others (specify) 

 
0.63%

 Nil 
 Nil 
 Nil 

 
1.39%

 Nil 
 Nil 
 Nil 

 
0.39%

 Nil 
 Nil 
 Nil 

 
0.56%

 Nil 
 Nil 
 Nil 

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Total Exposure to twenty largest bo�rowers/customers 
Percentage of loans & advances to twenty largest bo�rowers 
to total advances of the HFC 

1,099.50
1.29%

1,120.09
1.60%

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 188.88 161.04

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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34. Movement of NPAs: 
 

 Note:          
 1  Movement of NPA's has been provided based on outstanding amount of NPA's as on 31 March 

2025 respective financial years.         
         
35. Overseas Assets         
 
 The Company does not hold any overseas assets du�ing the cu�rent year and previous year.         

36. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored      
 
 The Company does not have off-balance sheet SPVs (domestic or overseas) sponsored.      

37  Disclosure of Complaints  
  
37.1. Customers Complaints  

Pa�ticulars 
 

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

(I)   Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 
 
(II)   Movement of NPAs (Gross) 
  (a)  Opening balance 
  (b)  Additions du�ing the year 
  (c)  Reductions du�ing the year 
  (d)  Closing balance 
 
(III)  Movement of Net NPAs  
  (a)  Opening balance  
  (b)  Additions du�ing the year  
  (c)  Reductions du�ing the year  
  (d)  Closing balance 

 (IV)  Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions 
on standard assets)  

  (a)  Opening balance  
  (b)  Provisions made du�ing the year  
  (c)  W�ite-off / w�ite-back of excess provisions  
  (d)  Closing balance 

0.68%

 387.57 
 590.31 
 201.45 
 776.43 

 284.21 
 467.35 
 176.94 
 574.62 

 103.36 
 150.23 

 51.78 
 201.81

0.41%

 235.44 
 289.56 
 137.43 
 387.57 

 176.58 
 265.19 
 157.56 

 284.21 

 58.86 
 103.36 
 58.86 

 103.36

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

 Overseas Assets -                           -   

Name of the SPV Sponsored 

 Domestic  Overseas 

 N.A.  N.A. 

Particulars

 

  As at 

31 March 2025 

  As at 

31 March 2024 

 (a) 

 (b) 

 (c) 

 (d)  

 No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 

 No. of complaints received during the year 

 No. of complaints redressed during the year 

 No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 

-   

 46 

 45 

 1

1 

 15 

 16 

 -   

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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38. Diagrammatic representation of group st�ucture 

 

JJT T�ustMr. Sh�ikant Tibrewala

Roha Housing 
Finance P�ivate 
Limited

Roha Capital and 
Holding P�ivate 
Limited

Roha Dye Chem 
P�ivate Limited

Roha U�ja 
P�ivate Limited

Roha Intellectual 
Prope�ties Fi�m

Roha Trading 
P�ivate 
Limited - 30%  

Roha Inkjet 
P�ivate Limited

For Subsidia�y and Joint venture
refer Annexure-A

Roha Dyechem
SEZ Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. B�ijesh Tibrewala  (35.0%)
and Mr. Mahesh Tibrewala (35.0%)

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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38.1 Annexure-A 

 Wholly owned subsidia�y, step down subsidia�y and joint venture of M/s. Roha Dyechem P�ivate Limited 
is mentioned as under:

S.No. Name of the entity Place of 
business/ 
count�y of 

incorporation

Nature % of 
holding

1 Roha USA LLC USA WOS 100

2 Simpsons (UK) Limited UK WOS 100

3 Roha Europe S.L.U Spain WOS 100

4 Roha Dyechem Thailand Limited Thailand WOS 100

5 Pt Roha Lautan Pewa�na Indonesia WOS 100

6 Roha Dyechem Vietnam Limited Vietnam WOS 100

7 Roha Dyechem (Hong Kong) Limited Hongkong WOS 100

8 Roha (Australia) Pty Limited Australia WOS 100

9 Roha Sciences Mexico, S.A DE C.V. Mexico WOS 100

10 Roha Dyechem (Shanghai) Limited Shanghai WOS 100

11 Roha Dyechem LLC, Russia Russia WOS 100

12 Roha Dyechem Egypt LLC Egypt WOS 100

13 Roha (Shanghai) Food Additives Co. Limited Shanghai WOS 100

14 Roha Argentina S.R.L. Argentina WOS 100

15 Roha Asia Pacific (Thailand) Limited Thailand WOS 100

16 Roha Middle East FZC Dubai WOS 100

17 Roha Japan Limited Japan WOS 100

18 Roha Gida Katki Maddele�i Ticaret Turkey WOS 100

19 Roha D�ied Ingredients Limited (Fo�merly 
Saraf Foods Limited)

India WOS 100

20 Roha Italy SPA Italy WOS 100

21 Roha Chile SPA Chile WOS 100

22 ROHA PERU LIMITED S.A.C Pe�u WOS 100

23 Roha De Guatemala Guatemala WOS 100

24 ROHA INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED UK WOS 100

25 EURL ROHA DYECHEM ALGERIA ALGERIA WOS 100

26 ROHA FOOD INGREDIENTS KENYA LIMITED Kenya WOS 100

27 Roha Sa Ingredients Pty Ltd South Af�ica WOS 100

28 Roha Specialties Phillipines Inc. Philipines Joint Venture 48.75

29 Essential SRL Italy Step down- subsidia�y 100

30 Roha Ingedients Malayasia Malaysia Step down- subsidia�y 100

31 Roha Canada Ltd. Canada Step down- subsidia�y 100

32 Roha Polska sp. z o.o. Poland Step down- subsidia�y 100

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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39. Related pa�ty disclosure:

 In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS)-18 “Related Pa�ty Disclosures” 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as 
amended), the names of the related pa�ty where control exists/able to exercise significant influence 
along with the aggregate transactions and pe�iod end balances with them as identified and ce�tified by 
the management are as follows.    

A Related Pa�ties       
 
 Nature of relationship  N ame of related pa�ties     
 
 Person having control  JJT T�ust     
 Person having significant influence  Roha Inkjet P�ivate Limited     
 Person having significant influence  Roha Dyechem P�ivate Limited     
 Key Manage�ial Person  Sunil Kapoor, Managing Director & CEO     
 Key Manage�ial Person  Pankaj Rawat, Company Secreto�y      
        
B Statement of transactions with related pa�ties du�ing the year:       
 
 Name     Nature of transaction For the  For the
        year ended  year ended
        31 March 2025   31 March 2024
        
 Sunil Kapoor    Remuneration paid#     
 Sunil Kapoor    Re-imbursement  2.70   3.85 
 Pankaj Rawat     Remuneration paid#  12.12   10.00 
 JJT T�ust     Shares issued*  4,700.00   2,900.00 
 Roha Dyechem P�ivate Limited Guaranteed by group companies**  1,107.07   3,283.33 
 Roha Inkjet P�ivate Limited Guaranteed by group companies***  1,291.75   2,124.92 
 Jagdishprasad Tibrewala 
 Pa�ma�th Kosh   Donation for CSR  10.75   -   
        
 * Cu�rent year shares of face value Rs. 10 per share were issued at a premium of Rs. 30 per share.      
 
 # Excludes gratuity which are actua�ially valued at company level and where separate amounts are not 

identifiable.       
        
 ** The amount of guarantee of Rs. 1,107.07 (previous year  3,283.33) represents guarantee jointly and 

severally given by the group company and promoters of the Company.      
 
 *** The amount of guarantee of Rs. 1,291.75 (previous year 2,124.92) represents guarantee jointly and 

severally given by the group company and promoters of the Company.       
        
C Closing balances       
 
 Name    Nature of transaction As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024
        
 Sunil Kapoor   Remuneration payable -     -   
        
40. Employee benefits       
 
 In accordance te�ms of the revised Accounting Standard 15 'Employee Benefits', the requisite 

disclosures are as follows:       
        

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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A Defined cont�ibution plans       
 
 The Company pays fixed cont�ibution to provident fund at predete�mined rates to a registered 

provident fund administered by the Gove�nment of India, which invests the funds in pe�mitted 

secu�ities. Both the Company and employees make predete�mined cont�ibutions to the Provident 

Fund. The cont�ibutions are no�mally based on a ce�tain propo�tion of the employee's sala�y. Amount of 

` 244.15 lakhs (previous year ` 221.25 lakhs) pe�taining to employers' cont�ibution to provident and 

other fund is recognised as an expense and included in "Employee benefits expense".       
        
B Defined Benefit Plan        
 
 Gratuity         
 
 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The Company’s defined benefit gratuity 

plan requires cont�ibutions to be made to a separately administered fund. The fund has the fo�m of a 

t�ust and it is gove�ned by the Board of T�ustees. The Board of T�ustees is responsible for the 

administration of the plan assets. Application has been made to Income Tax Autho�ities for obtaining 

approval to treat as approved gratuity fund.       
        
 The gratuity benefit is provided through annual cont�ibutions to a fund administered and managed by 

insurance company. Under this scheme, the settlement obligation remains with the Company       
        
 The most recent actua�ial valuation of the defined benefit obligation along with the fair valuation of the 

plan assets in relation to the gratuity scheme was ca��ied out as at 31 March 2025. The present value of 

the defined benefit obligations and the related cu�rent se�vice cost and past se�vice cost, were 

measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Based on the actua�ial valuation obtained in this 

respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation and the plan assets 

as at Balance Sheet date:      

I  Assumptions 

II  Change in present value of obligations 

Pa�ticulars  For the year ended
 31 March 2025 

 For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

Discount Rate 
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 
Rate of Retu�n on Plan Assets
Average future se�vice (in Years)

6.55 % p.a 
 2.00 % p.a 

7.18%
 28.40 Years

7.18 % p.a 
 2.00 % p.a 

7.01%
 28.37 Years

Pa�ticulars  For the year ended
 31 March 2025 

 For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the 
year
Acquisition adjustment 
Interest Cost 
Past Se�vice Cost 
Cu�rent Se�vice Cost
Cu�tailment Cost / (Credit) 
Settlement Cost / (Credit)
Benefits paid 
Actua�ial (gain)/ loss on obligations 

123.87 

 -   
 8.89 

 -   
 37.27 

 -   
 -   

 (22.10)
 11.02 

96.27 

 -   
 7.03 

 -   
 25.93 

 -   
 -   

 (16.36)
 11.00 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year  158.95  123.87

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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III  Change in fair value of plan assets 

IV  Fair value of plan assets 

V  Actua�ial gain/loss recognised 

VI  The amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet is as under :  

 

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Fair value of plan asset at the beginning of year
Acquisition Adjustments 
Expected Retu�n on Plan Assets
Employers’Cont�ibutions
Benefit Paid 
Actua�ial Gain /( loss) on Plan Assets 

88.36 
 -   

 6.34 
 58.72 

 (22.10)
 0.35 

59.36 
 -   

 4.16 
 40.00 

 (16.36)
 1.20 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year  131.67  88.36

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Fair value of plan asset at the beginning of year 
Acquisition Adjustments 
Actual retu�n on plan assets 
Employers’ Cont�ibutions 
Benefits Paid 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 
Funded Status 

88.36 
 -   

 6.70 
 58.72 

 (22.10)
 131.68 
 (27.28)

59.36 
 -   

 5.36 
 40.00 

 (16.36)
 88.36 

 (35.51)

Excess of actual over estimated retu�n on plan assets 0.35 1.20

Pa�ticulars  For the year ended
 31 March 2025

 For the year ended 
31 March 2024

Actua�ial gain/(loss) for the year - Obligation 
Actua�ial (gain)/loss for the year - Plan Assets 
Total (gain) / loss for the year 
Actua�ial (gain) / loss recognized in the year 

(11.02)
 (0.35)
 10.67 
 10.67

(11.00)
 (1.20)

 9.80 
 9.80

Unrecognized actua�ial (gains)/losses at the end of the 
year

- -

Pa�ticulars  As at 
31 March 2025

 As at 
31 March 2024

Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 
Funded Status 
Unrecognized Actua�ial (gains) / losses 

158.95 
 131.67 

 (27.28)
 -   

123.87 
 88.36 

 (35.51)
 -   

Net Asset / (Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet  (27.28) (35.51)

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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VII  Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss is as under :  

VIII  Long te�m and sho�t te�m classification is as under :  

41. In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 19 on 'Leases', the following disclosures are 

made in respect of Operating Leases:      
 
 The Company has taken premises on lease. Operating lease rentals recognised du�ing the year Rs. 

230.53 lakhs (previous year Rs.184.32 lakhs). The total of the future minimum lease payments under 

non-cancellable pe�iod of the operating leases are as follows:       

 (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024

 Not later than one year   167.38    187.60 
 Later than one year but not later than five years  183.24    271.84 
 Later than five years   -      -   
        350.62   459.44 
42. Transfer of Loan Exposure       

 (a) Du�ing the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has assigned loan and advances under Co-
lending Model II. Under the a�rangement, the significant �isk and rewards associated with the 
assets has been transfe�red to the buyer, these assets have been derecognised on the Company's 
balance sheet.      

  Details of loans not in default transfe�red

 

Pa�ticulars For the year ended
 31 March 2025

For the year ended 
31 March 2024

Cu�rent Se�vice Cost 
Past Se�vice Cost 
Interest Cost 
Expected Retu�n on Plan Assets 
Cu�tailment Cost / (Credit) 
Settlement Cost / (Credit) 
Net actua�ial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 

37.27 
 -   

 8.89 
 (6.34)

 -   
 -   

 10.67 

25.93 
 -   

 7.03 
 (4.16)

 -   
 -   

 9.80 

Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 50.49  38.60

Pa�ticulars As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

Long-te�m
Sho�t-te�m

27.28
-

35.51
-

 27.28 35.51

Pa�ticulars
 

Assignment through Colending

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Total amount of loans transfe�red through colending 
Weighted average residual matu�ity (in months) 
Weighted average holding pe�iod (in months) 
Retention of beneficial economic interest 
Coverage of tangible secu�ity coverage 
Rating-wise dist�ibution of rated loans 

177.27 
 198 
 24 

20%
100%

 unrated

177.27 
 210 

 12 
20%

100%
 unrated

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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 (b) As at 31 March 2025, the Company has sold loan and advances under the assignment deals as a 
source of finance. Under the te�ms of these assignments, as the significant �isk and rewards 
associated with these assets were assigned to the buyer, these assets were derecognised on the 
Company's balance sheet. 

 
  Details of loans not in default transfe�red
 

43 Segment Repo�ting :       
 
 The Company is operating in one business segment which is lending of Housing and other prope�ty 

loans and all activities incidental to the main business activity. It has its operations within India. 
Therefore, there is no geographical segments as per Accounting Standard 17 (AS-17) "Segment 
Repo�ting".       

        
44 As per provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company was required to spend INR 10.75 

lakhs (INR 8.98 Lakhs in Previous year) being 2% of average net profits made du�ing the three 
immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy on the 
activities specified in Schedule VII of the Act. Company is not require to fo�m the CSR committee as per 
section 135 (9) the Act . 

A

B

C

Pa�ticulars
 

Assignment through 
Direct Assignment

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Total amount of loans transfe�red through Direct Assignment
Weighted average residual matu�ity (in months) 
Weighted average holding pe�iod (in months) 
Retention of beneficial economic interest 
Coverage of tangible secu�ity coverage 
Rating-wise dist�ibution of rated loans 

14,336.29 
 163 

 9 
10%

100%
 unrated

7,798.14 
 141 

 3 
10%

100%
 unrated

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Gross Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act
Add: Amount Unspent from previous years

10.75 
-   

8.98
- 

Total Gross amount required to be spent du�ing the year 10.75 8.98

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Amount approved by the Board to be spent du�ing the year 10.75   8.98 

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

(i) Const�uction/acquisition of an asset 
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 

-
19.73

-
-

Total amount spent du�ing the year on 19.73 -

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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D Acc�ual towards unspent obligations in relation to  

 
E Details ongoing CSR projects

 

 *Details of Unspent amount as at Year end

F Details of CSR expenditure in respect of other than ongoing projects  

G Disclosures on Sho�tfall

H Details of related pa�ted transactions in relation to CSR expenditure
 

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

(i) Ongoing projects 
(ii) Other than Ongoing projects 

-
-

-
-

Total acc�ual towards unspent obligations in relation to - -

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Balance unspent at the beginning of the year* 
Amount required to be spent du�ing the year 
Amount spent du�ing the year 

-
-
-

-
-
-

Balance unspent as at end of the year - -

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

With the Company's Account 
In Separate CSR Unspent Account 

-
-

-
-

Total - -

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Balance unspent at the beginning of the year  
Amount deposited in Specified Fund of Schedule VII of the Act 
within 6 months  
Amount required to be spent du�ing the year  
Amount spent du�ing the year  

8.98 
 

(8.98)
 10.75 

 (10.75)

-   

 -   
 8.98 

 -   

Balance unspent as at end of the year - 8.98

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Amount Required to be spent by the Company du�ing the year  
Actual Amount Spent by the Company du�ing the year  
PY Excess adjusted du�ing the CY  
Sho�tfall/(Excess) at the end of the year  
Total of previous years sho�tfall  

19.73 
 (19.73)

 -   
 -   
 -   

8.98 
 -   
 -   

 8.98 
 -   

Pa�ticulars   As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Related pa�ty transactions in relation to CSR expenditure 10.75 -

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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45. The Company has no foreign cu�rency transactions du�ing the year.   
    
46. Unhedged foreign cu�rency   
 
 The Company is not having any unhedged foreign cu�rency exposure as at March 31,2025.   
    
47. Value of impo�ts on CIF basis:    
 
 The Company has not impo�ted any goods du�ing the cu�rent year and previous pear.   
    
48. Contingent liabilities and commitments:   

 (Amount in ` lakhs)
       As at  As at 
       31 March 2025 31 March 2024

 (a)  Contingent liabilities  -     -   
 (b)  Commitments       
    Undisbursed loans - Housing  9,614.15   8,683.38 
    Undisbursed loans - Non Housing  1,416.68   532.63 
        11,030.83   9,216.01 

49. Details of resolution plan implemented under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress 
as per RBI circular dated August 6, 2020 (Resolution Framework 1.0) and May 05, 2021 (Resolution 
Framework 2.0) as at March 31, 2025 are given below: 

 * As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bank�uptcy Code, 2016 

50. Others       
 
 (a) The Code on Social Secu�ity 2020 has been notified in the Official Gazette on 29th Sep 2020, 

which could impact the cont�ibutions by the Company towards ce�tain employment benefits. The 

effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the �ules are yet to 

be framed. Impact if any of the change will be assessed and accounted in pe�iod of notification of 

the relevant provisions.       

 (b) The Company has evaluated subsequent events and dete�mined that there have been no events 

that have occu�red that would require adjustments to our disclosures in the financial statements.       
        

Type of Bo�rower Exposure to 
accounts classified 

as Standard
consequent to 

implementation of 
resolution plan 

–Position as at the 
end of the previous 

half-year i.e. 
September 30, 

2023 (A)

Of (A), aggregate 
debt 

that slipped into 
NPA 

du�ing the half-
year ended March 

31, 2024.

Of (A) amount 
w�itten off du�ing 

the half-year

Of (A) amount paid 
by the bo�rowers 

du�ing the halfyear

Exposure to 
accounts classified 

as Standard 
consequent to 

implementation of 
resolution plan 

–Position as at the 
end of this half-

year i.e. March 31, 
2024.

Personal Loan
Corporate 
persons *
Of which, MSMEs
Others
Total

568.18
-   
-   
-   

568.18

-
-
-
-
-

                        -   
                        -   
                        -   
                        -   
                        -   

71.77
-
-
-

71.77

496.41
-
-
-

496.41

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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51. Additional regulato�y info�mation required by Schedule III       
        
 (i) The management confi�ms that no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the 

company for holding benami prope�ty under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 
of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.        

 (ii) The Company has bo�rowed funds from banks and financial institutions on the basis of secu�ity of 
Loans and advances given which are in the nature of long te�m which includes cu�rent matu�ities of 
long-te�m. As on the repo�ting date cu�rent matu�ities of loan in the nature of long te�m is classified 
under cu�rent assets in the Balance Sheet. However, no amount has been bo�rowed by the 
Company based on the loans and advances in the nature of sho�t-te�m loans and advances.       

 (iii) The Company has bo�rowed working capital loan from banks against the secu�ity of fixed 
deposits. The monthly / qua�terly retu�ns / statements filed by the Company with such banks are in 
agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company of the respective qua�ters. 
Fu�ther, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits from banks on the basis of 
secu�ity of fixed deposits/loans and advances.       

 (iv) The management confi�ms that the Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank 
or financial institution or gove�nment or any gove�nment autho�ity or other lenders.       

 (v) The management confi�ms that the company has no transactions with the companies st�uck off 
under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 .       

 (vi) The company has not entered into any scheme of a�rangement which has an accounting impact on 
cu�rent or previous financial year.       

 (vii) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from bo�rowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(is), including foreign entities (“Inte�media�ies”) with the understanding, whether recorded 
in w�iting or othe�wise, that the Inte�media�y shall lend or invest in pa�ty identified by or on behalf 
of the Company (Ultimate Beneficia�ies). The Company has not received any fund from any 
pa�ty(s) (Funding Pa�ty) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficia�ies”) or provide any guarantee, secu�ity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficia�ies.       

 (viii) There is no income su�rendered or disclosed as income du�ing the cu�rent or previous year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,that has not been recorded in the books of 
account.       

 (ix) The company has not traded or invested in c�ypto cu�rency or vi�tual cu�rency du�ing the cu�rent 
or previous year.       

 (x) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of 
Companies beyond the statuto�y pe�iod.       

 (xi) The bo�rowings obtained by the company from banks and financial institutions have been applied 
for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.      

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe�wise)
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52. Ratios 

 Notes:     
 The ratios presc�ibed under additional regulato�y info�mation required by schedule III are disclosed to 

the extant applicable.          

53. (a)  Previous years figures have regrouped, reclassified, rea�ranged wherever necessa�y.

Ratio Numerator Denominator  As at 
31 March 

2025 

 As at 
31 March 

2024 

% 
Va�iance

Reason of va�iance

(a) Cu�rent ratio Cu�rent 
assets

Cu�rent 
liabilities

0.40 0.38 5.1% Cu�rent ratio is higher 
than the previous year is 
due to  increase in sho�t 
te�m loan and advances 
a n d  o t h e r  c u � r e n t 
assets.

(b) Debt-Equity 
ratio

Bo�rowing Shareholder 
fund

2.11 2.17 -2.8% Debt equity ratio is 
s l ight ly  lower  t han 
previous year due to 
i n c r e a s e  i n 
Shareholde�'s fund.

(c) Debt se�vice 
coverage 
ratio

EBIT Interest 
expenses 
and sho�t 
te�m 
bo�rowing

0.10 0.32 -67% Debt se�vice coverage 
ra t io  i s  lower  t han 
previous year due to 
increase in bo�rowings.

(d) Retu�n on 
equity ratio

Profit after 
tax

Shareholder 
fund

0.02 0.02 -26.5% Retu�n on equity ratio is 
s l ight ly  lower  t han 
previous year due to 
s l i g h t  d r o p  i n 
profitability.

(e) Net profit 
ratio

Profit after 
tax

Total income 0.03 0.05 -25.7% Net profit ratio is slightly 
lower than prev ious 
year due to slight drop in 
profitability.

(f) Retu�n on 
capital 
employed

EBIT Capital 
employed

0.08 0.08 3.3% R e t u � n  o n  C a p i t a l 
employed is marginally 
higher than previous 
year due to increase in 
EBIT.
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